

MONTANA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER

2020 ISSUE NO. 1
JANUARY 17, 2020
PAGES 1-122



MONTANA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER

ISSUE NO. 1

The Montana Administrative Register (MAR or Register), a twice-monthly publication, has three sections. The Proposal Notice Section contains state agencies' proposed new, amended, or repealed rules; the rationale for the change; date and address of public hearing; and where written comments may be submitted. The Rule Adoption Section contains final rule notices which show any changes made since the proposal stage. All rule actions are effective the day after publication of the adoption notice unless otherwise specified in the final notice. The Interpretation Section contains the Attorney General's opinions and state declaratory rulings. Special notices and tables are found at the end of each Register.

Inquiries regarding the rulemaking process, including material found in the Montana Administrative Register and the Administrative Rules of Montana, may be made by calling the Secretary of State's Office, Administrative Rules Services, at (406) 444-9000.

Page Number

TABLE OF CONTENTS

LABOR AND INDUSTRY, Department of, Title 24

24-138-77 (Board of Dentistry) Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Amendment and Adoption - Dental Hygienist Committee - Definitions - Functions for Dental Auxiliaries - Initial Licensure of Dentists by Examination - Initial Licensure of Dental Hygienists by Examination - Unprofessional Conduct for Denturists - Denturist Scope of Practice—Dentures Over Implants.	1-8
24-155-8 (Board of Massage Therapy) Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Amendment and Adoption - Licensure of Out-of-State Applicants - Unprofessional Conduct - Records - Standards of Practice.	9-17
24-156-86 (Board of Medical Examiners) Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Amendment and Adoption - Application for Licensure - Chart Review - Definitions - ECP Licensure Qualifications - ECP License Application - Continuing Education and Refresher Requirements - ECP Training Courses - Medical Direction - Levels of ECP Licensure Including Endorsements - ECP Scope of Practice - CIHC Endorsement.	18-27
24-171-40 (Board of Outfitters) Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Amendment - Outfitter Records - Safety and First Aid Provisions - Operations Plans and Amendments - Unprofessional Conduct and Misconduct.	28-31

PUBLIC HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, Department of, Title 37

37-904 Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Amendment and Repeal - Child Care. 32-40

RULE ADOPTION SECTION

STATE AUDITOR, Office of, Title 6

6-260 (Classification Review Committee) Corrected Notice of Amendment - Establishment, Deletion, or Revision of Classifications for Various Industries for Supplementing the NCCI Basic Manual for Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability. 41

COMMERCE, Department of, Title 8

8-94-176 Notice of Amendment - Administration of the 2021 and 2023 Biennia Treasure State Endowment Program - Emergency Grants. 42

LABOR AND INDUSTRY, Department of, Title 24

24-174-73 (Board of Pharmacy) Notice of Adoption - Positive Identification for Controlled Substance Prescriptions. 43

24-181-7 Notice of Amendment and Repeal - Private Alternative Adolescent Residential or Outdoor Programs Obsolete Rules. 44

24-189-40 (Board of Psychologists) Notice of Amendment, Adoption, and Repeal - Definitions - Required Supervised Experience - Continuing Education Implementation - Requirements for Licensees Providing Telehealth Services - Licensees From Other States or Canadian Jurisdictions. 45

NATURAL RESOURCES AND CONSERVATION, Department of, Title 36

36-22-201 (Board of Oil and Gas Conservation and the Department) Notice of Amendment - Privilege and License Tax. 46

PUBLIC HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, Department of, Title 37

37-873 Notice of Adoption, Amendment, and Repeal - Healthy Learning Environments in Montana Public Schools. 47-90

37-899 Notice of Amendment - Updating Medicaid Fee Schedules With Medicare Rates - Procedure Codes - Updating Effective Dates. 91-92

PUBLIC HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, Continued

37-900 Notice of Amendment - Hospice Rate Increase.	93
37-903 Notice of Amendment - Big Sky Rx Premium Change.	94
37-905 Notice of Amendment - Member Copayment.	95

REVENUE, Department of, Title 42

42-1006 Notice of Amendment - Statutory Deadlines for Request for Informal Classification and Appraisal Reviews.	96
42-1007 Notice of Amendment - Trended Depreciation Schedules for Valuing Personal Property.	97-100
42-1008 Notice of Amendment - Beer Wholesaler and Table Wine Distributor Limited Delivery Exceptions.	101-106
42-1011 Notice of Amendment - Specialty and Unique Crops - Additional Requirements for Agricultural Land Classification.	107-108

SPECIAL NOTICE AND TABLE SECTION

Function of Administrative Rule Review Committee.	109-110
How to Use ARM and MAR.	111
Recent Rulemaking by Agency.	112-122

BEFORE THE BOARD OF DENTISTRY
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY
STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the amendment of)	NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON
24.138.206 dental hygienist)	PROPOSED AMENDMENT AND
committee, 24.138.301 definitions,)	ADOPTION
24.138.406 functions for dental)	
auxiliaries, 24.138.502 initial licensure)	
of dentists by examination,)	
24.138.503 initial licensure of dental)	
hygienists by examination,)	
24.138.2302 unprofessional conduct)	
for denturists, and the adoption of)	
New Rule I denturist scope of practice)	
– dentures over implants)	

TO: All Concerned Persons

1. On February 7, 2020, at 10:00 a.m., a public hearing will be held in the Large Conference Room, 301 South Park Avenue, 4th Floor, Helena, Montana, to consider the proposed amendment and adoption of the above-stated rules.

2. The Department of Labor and Industry (department) will make reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities who wish to participate in this public hearing or need an alternative accessible format of this notice. If you require an accommodation, contact the Board of Dentistry no later than 5:00 p.m., on January 30, 2020, to advise us of the nature of the accommodation that you need. Please contact Kevin Bragg, Board of Dentistry, 301 South Park Avenue, P.O. Box 200513, Helena, Montana 59620-0513; telephone (406) 841-2390; Montana Relay 1 (800) 253-4091; TDD (406) 444-2978; facsimile (406) 841-2305; or dlibsdden@mt.gov (board's e-mail).

3. The rules proposed to be amended are as follows, stricken matter interlined, new matter underlined:

24.138.206 DENTAL HYGIENIST COMMITTEE (1) remains the same.

(2) The committee shall meet ~~at least once a year and~~ as needed to review issues pertaining to dental hygienists and make recommendations to the full board.

AUTH: 37-4-205, MCA

IMP: 37-4-205, MCA

REASON: In reviewing the requirements for standing committees, the board noticed that a specific requirement for a yearly meeting existed for the hygienist committee, although the committee did not always have business to discuss. The board is amending this rule to minimize costs to licensees that result from a required meeting

and to create uniform committee standards.

24.138.301 DEFINITIONS For the purposes of this chapter, the following definitions apply:

(1) and (2) remain the same.

(3) "Certified dental assistant" is a dental auxiliary who has successfully completed all of the following exams and holds current certification from the Dental Assisting National Board:

(a) general chairside assisting (GC);

(b) radiation health and safety (RHS); and

(c) infection control (ICE).

(3) through (10) remain the same but are renumbered (4) through (11).

AUTH: 37-1-131, 37-4-205, 37-4-340, 37-29-201, MCA

IMP: 37-1-131, 37-4-101, 37-4-205, 37-4-340, 37-4-408, 37-29-201, MCA

REASON: The 2019 Montana Legislature enacted Chapter 157, Laws of 2019 (Senate Bill 157), an act revising the supervision requirements for dental auxiliaries/assistants who have the dental assisting national board (DANB) certification. While the bill is codified at 37-4-408, MCA, the legislature did not define the criteria for DANB certification in statute. DANB currently offers multiple exams and certifications such as "certified orthodontic assistant," which could be misunderstood to be a type of "certified dental assistant." To prevent any confusion, the board determined it is reasonably necessary to amend this rule and clarify that a DANB certified dental assistant will have successfully taken the three exams listed.

To implement the bill and allow auxiliaries to work under general supervision while ensuring adequate public protection, the board concluded that certified dental assistants must maintain current certification. The statute now requires that DANB certified assistants "hold[s]" certification, which the board interprets to mean maintains current certification, not simply being certified at a point in time. Since 37-4-408, MCA, allows DANB certified auxiliaries to practice, in certain circumstances, with less supervision by a dentist than a non-DANB certified auxiliary, the board believes that the continued education and training required for an auxiliary to maintain certification is necessary to help the auxiliary maintain the skills needed to safely treat dental patients. As a result, to implement the legislation and protect public safety, the board is amending this rule to clarify what constitutes DANB dental assistant certification and specify that DANB certification must be maintained by the auxiliary/assistant to continue practicing under general supervision. The board determined that providing a definition of a certified dental assistant in this rule is more efficient than continued explanations in ARM 24.138.406. The clarification is necessary since the board allows for non-certified auxiliaries to perform certain functions as well and no specific definition of a certified auxiliary exists.

24.138.406 FUNCTIONS FOR DENTAL AUXILIARIES (1) Allowable functions for a dental auxiliary practicing ~~Dental auxiliaries may work~~ under the direct supervision of a licensed dentist ~~shall include dental procedures as allowed by board rule and subject to (2), in which~~ per ARM 24.138.301 if the auxiliary:

- (a) ~~the auxiliary~~ was instructed and qualified to perform in a dental assisting program accredited by the Commission on Dental Accreditation or its successor; or
- (b) ~~the auxiliary~~ was instructed and trained by a licensed dentist; or
- (c) ~~the auxiliary~~ was instructed and trained in a board-approved continuing education course.

(2) A certified dental assistant may work under the general supervision of a licensed dentist per ARM 24.138.301.

~~(2)~~ (3) A dental auxiliary will be allowed to working under the direct supervision of a licensed dentist per ARM 24.138.301 may perform the following dental procedures including, but not limited to:

(a) making radiographic exposures as prescribed by the supervising dentist as referenced in (12); ~~and~~

(b) remains the same.

(c) taking impressions for study ~~or working~~ casts;

(d) through (o) remain the same.

(4) A certified dental assistant working under the general supervision of a licensed dentist per ARM 24.138.301 is prohibited from performing the following functions:

(a) initiating, adjusting, and monitoring nitrous oxide flow for a patient who has been prescribed and administered nitrous oxide by a licensed dentist;

(b) applying silver diamine fluoride agents;

(c) placing and removing rubber dams;

(d) placing and removing matrices;

(e) polishing amalgam restorations; and

(f) applying topical anesthetic agents.

(5) A certified dental assistant working under the general supervision of a licensed dentist may place pit and fissure sealants following an in-person comprehensive oral examination or periodic examination within the preceding 30 days.

~~(3)~~ (6) Dental auxiliaries performing any intraoral procedure must be under the direct supervision of a licensed dentist, except that a certified dental assistant may work under the general supervision of a licensed dentist.

(7) No dentist shall allow any dental auxiliary to perform the following:

(a) through (f) remain the same.

(g) taking final impressions of the involved arch for crowns, bridges, implant prosthesis, partial dentures, ~~or complete dentures~~, orthodontic appliances, sleep apnea appliances, or bruxism appliances;

(h) through (k) remain the same.

(l) air polishing; ~~or~~

(m) prophylaxis as ~~per~~ defined in ARM 24.138.301.

~~(4)~~ (8) Dentists shall refrain from delegating not delegate to dental auxiliaries any duties or responsibilities regarding patient care that cannot be delegated to dental auxiliaries under 37-4-408, MCA, and board rules.

(5) and (6) remain the same but are renumbered (9) and (10).

~~(7)~~ (11) It shall be the responsibility of the The employing dentist to shall verify that a dental auxiliary's qualifications are in compliance comply with the statutes and rules of the Board of Dentistry board.

~~(8)~~ (12) A dentist licensed to use or direct the use of an x-ray producing device must ~~assure~~ ensure that the radiation source under the dentist's jurisdiction is used only by individuals competent to use it, as per ARM 37.14.1003. Only a licensed dentist ~~is allowed to~~ may prescribe radiation dosage and exposure.

~~(a)~~ The A dental auxiliary, under the direct supervision of a licensed dentist, ~~will qualify to~~ may expose radiographs only if the auxiliary:

~~(a)~~ remains the same but is renumbered (i).

~~(b)~~ (ii) has been certified in dental radiology ~~by the U.S.~~ as a result of military experience; or

~~(c)~~ (iii) has successfully completed a board-approved radiology written examination. ~~The written examination must be passed prior to the dentist allowing the auxiliary to expose radiographs.~~

(b) A certified dental assistant may expose radiographs under the general supervision of a licensed dentist.

~~(d)~~ remains the same but is renumbered (c).

~~(9) A list of board approved examinations will be kept on file in the board office.~~

~~(10) The board will accept documentation of (8)(a) through (d) as certification for radiographic exposure.~~

(13) Proof of current certification must be readily available for review by the public or the board upon request.

AUTH: 37-4-205, 37-4-408, MCA

IMP: 37-4-408, MCA

REASON: In September of 2019, the board published MAR Notice No. 24-138-76 containing proposed changes to this rule to implement Senate Bill 157. After considering the comments and concerns regarding the proposed changes, the board did not proceed with any amendments to this rule in that notice, but instead discussed the concerns and suggestions at the December 6, 2019 full board meeting.

Senate Bill 157 revised the supervision requirements for DANB certified assistants but did not specifically provide the functions allowed under general supervision of a licensed dentist, nor any prohibited functions. Following consideration of comments in MAR Notice No. 24-138-76, the board is now amending this rule to implement the bill by clarifying both allowable and forbidden functions for DANB certified assistants working under general supervision. The board is adding (4)(a) through (f) to clearly delineate the functions the board concluded are outside the expertise of a DANB certified assistant and prohibited under general supervision.

The board is adding (5) to recognize that DANB certified assistants may place pit and fissure sealants for patients with a recent comprehensive or periodic oral examination. This amendment ensures public safety while acknowledging that DANB certified assistants are skilled enough to undertake this procedure in conjunction with a diagnosis from a licensed dentist.

While reviewing and amending this rule, the board determined it is reasonably necessary to amend (7)(g) to clarify those functions prohibited for all dental

auxiliaries. The amendments recognize the complexity of creating certain impressions and devices while ensuring proper fit and safety. The board is amending (12)(a)(ii) to ensure the rule includes all types of relevant military experience that may qualify an auxiliary to expose radiographs. It is reasonably necessary to amend (12)(b) to align with the new definition in ARM 24.138.301 that requires DANB certified assistants to have completed the radiographical requirement to expose patients to radiation. Non-certified assistants' completion of the RHS course is optional. The board is adding (13) to specify that proof of DANB certification must be available for patient and board review. In discussing the requirement, the board decided to impose the least restrictive alternative to actual board registration to better streamline regulation while ensuring adequate public safety.

24.138.502 INITIAL LICENSURE OF DENTISTS BY EXAMINATION

(1) through (1)(b) remain the same.

~~(c) affidavits from three persons not related to the candidate, of the candidate's good moral character;~~

(d) through (i) remain the same but are renumbered (c) through (h).

(2) through (4) remain the same.

AUTH: 37-1-131, 37-4-205, MCA

IMP: 37-1-131, 37-4-301, MCA

REASON: While reviewing the rules, staff observed that the dentist and dental hygienist licensure rules had not been updated to current processes. The board agreed and is amending this rule and ARM 24.138.503 to no longer require good moral character affidavits. The board concluded that adequate information to demonstrate character is obtained through the application's disciplinary/criminal history questions, the results of each applicant's National Practitioner Data Bank (NPDB) self-query, and Professional Background Information Services (PBIS) background checks. The changes will align with current standardized application procedures and facilitate initial licensure of dentists and hygienists.

24.138.503 INITIAL LICENSURE OF DENTAL HYGIENISTS BY EXAMINATION

(1) through (1)(b) remain the same.

~~(c) affidavits from two persons not related to the candidate, of the candidate's good moral character;~~

(d) through (i) remain the same but are renumbered (c) through (h).

(2) through (4) remain the same.

AUTH: 37-1-131, 37-4-205, MCA

IMP: 37-1-131, 37-4-401, 37-4-402, MCA

24.138.2302 UNPROFESSIONAL CONDUCT FOR DENTURISTS

(1) through (1)(b) remain the same.

(c) ~~failure~~ failing to maintain an office(s) in sanitary condition consistent with current accepted sterilization and disinfection protocols for treatment rooms,

sterilization and laboratory areas, or operating under unsanitary conditions after a warning from the board;

(d) through (i) remain the same.

~~(j) fitting, attempting to fit or advertising to fit a prosthesis on or over a dental implant;~~

~~(k) (j)~~ (j) commission of an act of sexual abuse, sexual misconduct, or sexual exploitation by the licensee, whether or not related to the licensee's practice of dentistry; and

~~(l) (k) failure failing~~ to respond to correspondence from the board, or ~~failure failing~~ to comply with final orders of the board; and

(l) making and fitting dentures over dental implants in violation of board rules.

AUTH: 37-1-136, 37-1-319, 37-29-201, MCA

IMP: 37-1-316, 37-1-319, 37-29-402, 37-29-403, MCA

REASON: In 2018, as a result of litigation, the board agreed to strike (1)(j) which provides that a denturist "fitting, attempting to fit or advertising to fit a prosthesis on or over a dental implant" is unprofessional conduct. After reconsideration and multiple discussions, the board proposed in September of 2019 to amend this rule and adopt a new rule in MAR Notice No. 24-138-76. After considering the comments and concerns received on the proposed changes, the board did not proceed at that time with any amendments to this rule and did not adopt the new rule. The board instead discussed the concerns and suggestions at the December 6, 2019 full board meeting and decided to proceed with the changes in this notice.

The board is adopting NEW RULE I to recognize that denturists can safely fit dentures over implants with a written referral from a licensed dentist among other requirements. To align with the provisions of NEW RULE I, the board determined it is reasonably necessary to amend this rule by striking (1)(j) and adding (1)(l) to establish that it is unprofessional conduct for a denturist to make and fit dentures over implants in violation of the requirements in board rules.

4. The proposed new rule is as follows:

NEW RULE I DENTURIST SCOPE OF PRACTICE – DENTURES OVER IMPLANTS (1) A denturist may make and fit dentures over implants under the following conditions:

(a) the fitting must be performed after written referral from a Montana-licensed dentist;

(b) the denturist may not refer directly for implant placement;

(c) the denture must be fully soft-tissue supported; and

(d) the denture must be manually removable without tools.

(2) A denturist may not cut, surgically remove, or surgically reduce any tissue or natural teeth in the process of making and fitting an implant-retained denture.

(3) A denturist may not fit or adjust any abutment or otherwise adjust any appurtenance to a dental implant, except on the denture itself.

(4) A denturist may reline or rebase the original implant-retained denture.

AUTH: 37-1-131, 37-29-201, MCA
IMP: 37-1-131, 37-29-102, 37-29-103, MCA

REASON: In 2018, as a result of litigation, the board agreed to revise ARM 24.138.2302(1)(j). After extensive consideration, a public hearing, and receiving significant public comment in MAR Notice No. 24-138-76, the board is proposing to adopt NEW RULE I. This new rule recognizes that denturists can safely fit dentures over implants if a treating dentist first examined the denture candidate to ensure that the implants are stable enough to support a denture. The board determined that, to ensure the safety of this process, a medical diagnosis from a dentist is first required to begin a referral. The board also determined that a denturist can safely fit a denture over an implant first deemed in stable condition by a dentist if the denture itself is not a fixed denture, but is soft-tissue supported and manually removable. The board determined that (2) is necessary to clarify that only a dentist can safely cut tissue or natural teeth as part of the fitting process, because any necessary cutting would first require a medical diagnosis. The board also concluded that only a treating dentist can safely adjust an abutment prior to fitting the denture because of possible concerns regarding over-torquing the abutment, and possible resulting damage to the underlying bone structure. Finally, the board determined that a denturist can safely reline or rebase a denture, which the denturist initially fitted, because such a reline or rebase would not necessarily require additional consultation from the treating dentist if the patient was otherwise receiving needed care and maintenance for the supporting implants from their treating dentist. The board is proposing NEW RULE I to allow denturists to work with a patient's treating dentist when making and fitting dentures over implants to help ensure public safety while expanding accessibility for Montana consumers.

5. Concerned persons may present their data, views, or arguments either orally or in writing at the hearing. Written data, views, or arguments may also be submitted to the Board of Dentistry, 301 South Park Avenue, P.O. Box 200513, Helena, Montana 59620-0513, by facsimile to (406) 841-2305, or e-mail to dlibsdden@mt.gov, and must be received no later than 5:00 p.m., February 14, 2020.

6. An electronic copy of this notice of public hearing is available at dentistry.mt.gov (department and board's web site). Although the department strives to keep its web sites accessible at all times, concerned persons should be aware that web sites may be unavailable during some periods, due to system maintenance or technical problems, and that technical difficulties in accessing a web site do not excuse late submission of comments.

7. The board maintains a list of interested persons who wish to receive notices of rulemaking actions proposed by this board. Persons who wish to have their name added to the list shall make a written request that includes the name, e-mail, and mailing address of the person to receive notices and specifies that the person wishes to receive notices regarding all board administrative rulemaking proceedings or other administrative proceedings. The request must indicate

whether e-mail or standard mail is preferred. Such written request may be sent or delivered to the Board of Dentistry, 301 South Park Avenue, P.O. Box 200513, Helena, Montana 59620-0513; faxed to the office at (406) 841-2305; e-mailed to dlibsdden@mt.gov; or made by completing a request form at any rules hearing held by the agency.

8. The bill sponsor contact requirements of 2-4-302, MCA, apply and have been fulfilled. The primary bill sponsor was contacted on May 14, 2019, by telephone and on December 4, 2019, by e-mail.

9. Regarding the requirements of 2-4-111, MCA, the board has determined that the amendment of ARM 24.138.206, 24.138.301, 24.138.406, 24.138.502, 24.138.503, and 24.138.2302 will not significantly and directly impact small businesses.

Regarding the requirements of 2-4-111, MCA, the board has determined that the adoption of NEW RULE I will not significantly and directly impact small businesses.

Documentation of the board's above-stated determinations is available upon request to the Board of Dentistry, 301 South Park Avenue, P.O. Box 200513, Helena, Montana 59620-0513; telephone (406) 841-2390; facsimile (406) 841-2305; or to dlibsdden@mt.gov.

10. Kevin Bragg, Executive Officer, has been designated to preside over and conduct this hearing.

BOARD OF DENTISTRY
AIMEE AMELINE, DDS
PRESIDENT

/s/ DARCEE L. MOE
Darcee L. Moe
Rule Reviewer

/s/ THOMAS K. LOPACH
Thomas K. Lopach, Interim Commissioner
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY

Certified to the Secretary of State January 7, 2020.

BEFORE THE BOARD OF MASSAGE THERAPY
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY
STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the amendment of) NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON
ARM 24.155.608 licensure of out-of-) PROPOSED AMENDMENT AND
state applicants, 24.155.901) ADOPTION
unprofessional conduct, and the)
adoption of New Rules I records, and)
II standards of practice)

TO: All Concerned Persons

1. On February 11, 2020, at 11:00 a.m., a public hearing will be held in the Small Conference Room, 301 South Park Avenue, 4th Floor, Helena, Montana, to consider the proposed amendment and adoption of the above-stated rules.

2. The Department of Labor and Industry (department) will make reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities who wish to participate in this public hearing or need an alternative accessible format of this notice. If you require an accommodation, contact the Board of Massage Therapy no later than 5:00 p.m., on February 4, 2020, to advise us of the nature of the accommodation that you need. Please contact Steve Gallus, 301 South Park Avenue, P.O. Box 200513, Helena, Montana 59620-0513; telephone (406) 841-2370; Montana Relay 1 (800) 253-4091; TDD (406) 444-2978; facsimile (406) 841-2305; or dlibsdlmt@mt.gov (board's e-mail).

3. The rules proposed to be amended are as follows, stricken matter interlined, new matter underlined:

24.155.608 LICENSURE OF OUT-OF-STATE APPLICANTS (1) through (2)(c) remain the same.

(d) verification of an active license, certification, or registration in good standing from another state or jurisdiction, whose current requirements ~~include each of the following~~ are substantially equivalent to Montana requirements for licensure, including:

(i) proof of completing a massage therapy program demanding a course of studies that includes, at a minimum, ~~each of the following:~~ 500 hours; and

~~(A) 200 hours of in-class and instructor-supervised massage and bodywork assessment, theory, and application instruction;~~

~~(B) 150 hours combined of instruction on the body systems (anatomy, physiology, and kinesiology) and pathology; and~~

~~(C) 150 hours combined of business and ethics instruction and instruction in an area or related field that completes the massage program of study; and~~

(ii) remains the same.

AUTH: 37-1-131, ~~37-33-405~~, MCA

IMP: 37-1-131, 37-1-304, ~~37-33-502~~, MCA

REASON: The board determined it is reasonably necessary to amend this rule to align with the department's standardized application procedures and facilitate effective and timely processing of applications. By repealing the requirements of proof of education in specific areas, staff may assess substantial equivalency with a broader comparison of licensing standards in various states where applicants hold a current, active license. The board concluded the amendments will remove an unnecessary obstacle to timely licensure while still ensuring licensure of qualified applicants. Authority and implementation citations are amended to accurately reflect all statutes implemented through the rule and provide the complete sources of the board's rulemaking authority.

24.155.901 UNPROFESSIONAL CONDUCT (1) The following conduct is unprofessional conduct justifying disciplinary action against a licensee:

(a) and (b) remain the same.

(c) engaging in or soliciting sexual contact or sexual intercourse, as those terms are defined in 45-2-101, MCA, with a client, when such act or solicitation is related to the practice of massage therapy, or failing to refrain from any provision of [NEW RULE II(6)];

(d) through (g) remain the same.

(h) failing to maintain records in accordance with [NEW RULE I];

(h) and (i) remain the same but are renumbered (i) and (j).

~~(2) Upon a finding of unprofessional conduct as defined in (1), and determined in accordance with the Montana Administrative Procedure Act, the board may impose sanctions, including but not limited to those allowed pursuant to 37-1-136 and 37-1-312, MCA. Any additional cost or expense incurred by a licensee as a result of a sanction is the burden of the licensee. As additional forms of sanction, and without limiting the availability of any other sanction, the board may:~~

~~(a) require supervision, inspections, reports, additional continuing education or other training;~~

~~(b) limit the licensee's scope of practice in any reasonable manner considering the circumstances; and~~

~~(c) impose any other condition of licensure, probation, reinstatement, or relicensure the board deems necessary or appropriate to protect the health, safety, or welfare of the public or to rehabilitate the licensee.~~

AUTH: 37-1-131, 37-1-136, 37-1-319, MCA

IMP: 37-1-136, 37-1-316, 37-1-319, MCA

REASON: The board determined it is reasonably necessary to amend this rule by updating the behavior the board considers to be unprofessional conduct in conjunction with the adoption of NEW RULES I and II. Upon enacting professional conduct standards similar to (1)(c), other states have reported decreases in human trafficking and other illegal activities under the guise of the massage therapy profession. The board further concluded that maintaining adequate records is necessary to enhance public safety and welfare and is adding (1)(h) to clearly

establish that violating NEW RULE I is also unprofessional conduct. The board is striking the provisions of (2) as an unnecessary duplication of statutory language.

4. The proposed new rules are as follows:

NEW RULE I RECORDS (1) Licensees must maintain the following records for each client:

- (a) an initial intake form which includes:
 - (i) name of client;
 - (ii) health history;
 - (iii) current health status;
 - (iv) consent of the client to treat;
 - (v) date; and
 - (vi) client signature; and
- (b) session notes, including:
 - (i) date;
 - (ii) services provided;
 - (iii) comments from licensed therapist; and
 - (iv) signature or initials of licensed therapist.

(2) Licensees must document in the client's records, at the time the initial intake form is required, if the client refuses to complete the client intake form.

(3) Licensees are required to maintain records for four years from the last date of service to the client.

(4) Any violation of this rule is considered unprofessional conduct.

AUTH: 37-1-131, 37-1-136, 37-1-319, MCA

IMP: 37-1-131, 37-1-136, 37-1-319, MCA

REASON: The board is adopting this new rule to clearly establish requirements for licensee recordkeeping. The board concluded that requiring licensees to maintain certain records will facilitate more effective complaint processing and assist both the public and licensees throughout the process. Furthermore, the board determined it is reasonably necessary to require that licensees collect and maintain certain data to elevate professionalism and enhance client protection.

NEW RULE II STANDARDS OF PRACTICE AND CODE OF ETHICS

(1) PROFESSIONALISM. The licensee must provide optimal levels of professional therapeutic massage and bodywork services and demonstrate excellence in practice by promoting healing and well-being through responsible, compassionate, and respectful touch. In the licensee's professional role, the licensee shall:

- (a) treat each client with respect, dignity, and worth;
- (b) use professional verbal, nonverbal, and written communications;
- (c) provide an environment that is safe and comfortable for the client and which, at a minimum, meets all legal requirements for health and safety;

- (d) use standard precautions to ensure professional hygienic practices and maintain a level of personal hygiene appropriate for practitioners in the therapeutic setting;
 - (e) wear clothing that is clean, modest, and professional;
 - (f) obtain voluntary and informed consent from the client prior to initiating the session;
 - (g) if applicable, conduct an accurate needs assessment, develop a plan of care with the client, and update the plan as needed;
 - (h) use appropriate draping to protect the client's physical and emotional privacy;
 - (i) be knowledgeable of the licensee's scope of practice and practice only within these limitations;
 - (j) refer to other professionals when in the best interest of the client and practitioner;
 - (k) seek other professional advice when needed;
 - (l) respect the traditions and practices of other professionals and foster collegial relationships; and
 - (m) not falsely impugn the reputation of any colleague.
- (2) **LEGAL AND ETHICAL REQUIREMENTS.** The licensee must comply with all the legal requirements in applicable jurisdictions regulating the profession of therapeutic massage and bodywork. In the licensee's professional role, the licensee shall:
- (a) obey all local, state, and federal laws;
 - (b) refrain from any behavior that results in illegal, discriminatory, or unethical actions;
 - (c) accept responsibility for the licensee's own actions;
 - (d) report to the proper massage therapy regulatory body within 30 days of discovery of any evidence, such as first-hand knowledge, indicating any unethical, incompetent, or illegal act committed by other licensees;
 - (e) maintain accurate and truthful records.
- (3) **CONFIDENTIALITY.** The licensee shall respect the confidentiality of client information and safeguard all records. In the licensee's professional role, the licensee shall:
- (a) protect the confidentiality of the client's identity and information in all conversations, advertisements, and any and all other matters unless disclosure of identifiable information is requested by the client in writing, is medically necessary, or is required by law;
 - (b) protect the interests of clients who are minors or clients who are unable to give voluntary and informed consent by obtaining prior written permission from a legal guardian;
 - (c) solicit only information that is relevant to the professional client/therapist relationship;
 - (d) securely retain client files for a minimum period of four years from the termination of the therapeutic relationship; and
 - (e) dispose of client files in a secure manner.

(4) BUSINESS PRACTICES. The licensee shall practice with honesty, integrity, and lawfulness in the business of therapeutic massage and bodywork. In the licensee's professional role, the licensee shall:

(a) provide a physical setting that is safe and meets all applicable legal requirements for health and safety;

(b) maintain adequate progress notes for each client session, if applicable;

(c) accurately and truthfully inform the public of services provided;

(d) honestly represent all professional qualifications and affiliations;

(e) promote the licensee's business with integrity and avoid potential and actual conflicts of interest;

(f) advertise in a manner that is honest, dignified, accurate and representative of services provided and remains consistent with board statutes and rules;

(g) advertise in a manner that is not misleading to the public and shall never use sensational, sexual, or provocative language and/or pictures to promote the licensee's business;

(h) comply with all laws regarding sexual harassment;

(i) not exploit the trust and dependency of others, including clients and employees/co-workers;

(j) disclose a schedule of fees in advance of the session;

(k) make financial arrangements in advance which are clearly understood by, and safeguard the best interests of, the client or consumer;

(l) follow Generally Accepted Accounting Principles;

(m) file all applicable municipal, state, and federal taxes;

(n) maintain accurate financial records, contracts and legal obligations, appointment records, tax reports, and receipts for the most recent three fiscal years;

(o) act in a manner that justifies public trust and confidence, enhances the reputation of the profession, and safeguards the interest of individual clients. The licensee will:

(i) have a sincere commitment to provide the highest quality of care to those who seek their professional services;

(ii) represent their qualifications honestly, including education and professional affiliations, and provide only those services that they are qualified to perform;

(iii) accurately inform clients, other health care practitioners, and the public of the scope and limitations of their discipline;

(iv) acknowledge the limitations of and contraindications for massage and bodywork and refer clients to appropriate health professionals;

(v) provide treatment only where there is reasonable expectation that it will be advantageous to the client;

(vi) consistently maintain and improve professional knowledge and competence, striving for professional excellence through regular assessment of personal and professional strengths and weaknesses and through continued education training;

(vii) conduct their business and professional activities with honesty and integrity, and respect the inherent worth of all persons;

(viii) refuse to unjustly discriminate against clients and/or health professionals;

(ix) safeguard the confidentiality of the client's identity and information in all conversations, advertisements, and any and all other matters unless disclosure of identifiable information is requested by the client in writing, is medically necessary, or is required by law;

(x) respect the client's right to treatment with informed and voluntary consent. The licensee will obtain and record the informed consent of the client, or client's advocate, before providing treatment. This consent may be written or verbal;

(xi) respect the client's right to refuse, modify, or terminate treatment regardless of prior consent given;

(xii) provide draping and treatment in a way that ensures the safety, comfort, and privacy of the client;

(xiii) exercise the right to refuse to treat any person or part of the body for just and reasonable cause;

(xiv) refrain, under all circumstances, from participating in a sexual relationship or sexual conduct with the client, whether consensual or otherwise, from the beginning of the client/therapist relationship and for a minimum of six months after the termination of the client therapist relationship, unless an ongoing current sexual relationship existed prior to the date the therapeutic relationship began;

(xv) avoid any interest, activity, or influence which might be in conflict with the practitioner's obligation to act in the best interests of the client or the profession;

(xvi) respect the client's boundaries with regard to privacy, disclosure, exposure, emotional expression, beliefs, and the client's reasonable expectations of professional behavior. Practitioners will respect the client's autonomy; and

(xvii) refuse any gifts or benefits that are intended to influence a referral, decision or treatment, or that are purely for personal gain and not for the good of the client.

(5) ROLES AND BOUNDARIES. The licensee shall adhere to ethical boundaries and perform the professional roles designed to protect both the client and the practitioner, and safeguard the therapeutic value of the relationship. In the licensee's professional role, the licensee shall:

(a) recognize the licensee's personal limitations and practice only within these limitations;

(b) recognize the licensee's influential position with the client and not exploit the relationship for personal or other gain;

(c) recognize and limit the impact of transference and counter-transference between the client and the licensee;

(d) avoid dual or multidimensional relationships that could impair professional judgment or result in exploitation of a client, student, employee, supervisee, mentee, trainee, or anyone else with whom a power differential exists;

(e) acknowledge and respect the client's freedom of choice in the therapeutic session;

(f) respect the client's right to refuse the therapeutic session or any part of the therapeutic session;

(g) refrain from practicing under the influence of alcohol, drugs, or any illegal substances, with the exception of a prescribed dosage of prescription medication which does not impair the licensee;

(h) have the right to refuse and/or terminate the service to a client who is abusive or under the influence of alcohol, drugs, or any illegal substance; and

(i) have the right to refuse and/or terminate the service to a client who exhibits language or behavior which the therapist deems as an immediate or potential risk to the safety of the client, the licensee, or the therapeutic relationship.

(6) PREVENTION OF SEXUAL MISCONDUCT AND INAPPROPRIATE TOUCH. The licensee shall refrain from any behavior that sexualizes, or appears to sexualize, the client/therapist relationship. The licensee recognizes the intimacy of the therapeutic relationship may activate practitioner and/or client needs and/or desires that weaken boundaries which may lead to sexualizing the therapeutic relationship. In the licensee's professional role, the licensee shall:

(a) refrain from participating in a sexual relationship or sexual conduct with the client, whether consensual or otherwise, from the beginning of the client/therapist relationship and for a minimum of six months after the termination of the client/therapist relationship, unless an ongoing current sexual relationship existed prior to the date the therapeutic relationship began. In the case of a pre-existing ongoing sexual relationship, providing therapeutic massage and bodywork on such a person is discouraged, but may be done with informed consent which acknowledges the power differential in a therapeutic relationship and the complexities of dual relationships;

(b) in the event the client initiates sexual behavior, interrupt therapy to clarify the purpose of the therapeutic session. Provided that the client's initial sexual behavior ceases, the licensee may, at the licensee's discretion, take action to terminate or continue the session. The licensee shall terminate the session if the sexual conduct continues;

(c) with the exception of a pre-existing ongoing sexual relationship, as set forth in (a), recognize that sexual activity with clients, students, employees, supervisees, mentees, trainees, or anyone else with whom a power differential exists, is prohibited even if consensual;

(d) not touch the genitalia;

(e) only perform therapeutic treatments beyond the normal narrowing of the ear canal and normal narrowing of the nasal passages:

(i) as indicated in the plan of care;

(ii) after receiving informed voluntary written consent; and

(iii) only if the licensee is expressly authorized under state law;

(f) only perform therapeutic treatments in the oral cavity:

(i) as indicated in the plan of care;

(ii) after receiving informed voluntary written consent; and

(iii) only if the licensee is permitted to do so under state law;

(g) only perform therapeutic treatments into the anal canal:

(i) as indicated in the plan of care;

(ii) after receiving informed voluntary written consent; and

(iii) only if the licensee is expressly authorized under state law; and

(h) only provide therapeutic breast massage:

- (i) as indicated in the plan of care;
 - (ii) after receiving informed voluntary written consent; and
 - (iii) only if the licensee is permitted to do so under state law.
- (7) Any violation of this rule is unprofessional conduct and may subject a licensee to disciplinary proceedings.

AUTH: 37-1-131, 37-1-136, 37-1-319, MCA
IMP: 37-1-131, 37-1-136, 37-1-319, MCA

REASON: The board determined it is reasonably necessary to adopt this new rule and clearly establish licensee standards of practice and ethical guidelines to enhance the profession and elevate public health, safety, and welfare. The board notes that this rule incorporates an amended version of a nationally accepted standard that is accessible and comprehensible to readers. While adopting this rule, the board is also incorporating the violation of certain standards and ethics into the unprofessional conduct rule at ARM 24.155.901 in this notice.

5. Concerned persons may present their data, views, or arguments either orally or in writing at the hearing. Written data, views, or arguments may also be submitted to the Board of Massage Therapy, 301 South Park Avenue, P.O. Box 200513, Helena, Montana 59620-0513, by facsimile to (406) 841-2305, or e-mail to dlibsdlmt@mt.gov, and must be received no later than 5:00 p.m., February 14, 2020.

6. An electronic copy of this notice of public hearing is available at www.massagetherapists.mt.gov (department and board's web site). Although the department strives to keep its web sites accessible at all times, concerned persons should be aware that web sites may be unavailable during some periods, due to system maintenance or technical problems, and that technical difficulties in accessing a web site do not excuse late submission of comments.

7. The board maintains a list of interested persons who wish to receive notices of rulemaking actions proposed by this board. Persons who wish to have their name added to the list shall make a written request that includes the name, e-mail, and mailing address of the person to receive notices and specifies that the person wishes to receive notices regarding all board administrative rulemaking proceedings or other administrative proceedings. The request must indicate whether e-mail or standard mail is preferred. Such written request may be sent or delivered to the Board of Massage Therapy, 301 South Park Avenue, P.O. Box 200513, Helena, Montana 59620-0513; faxed to the office at (406) 841-2305; e-mailed to dlibsdlmt@mt.gov; or made by completing a request form at any rules hearing held by the agency.

8. The bill sponsor contact requirements of 2-4-302, MCA, do not apply.

9. Regarding the requirements of 2-4-111, MCA, the board has determined that the amendment of ARM 24.155.608 and 24.155.901 will not significantly and directly impact small businesses.

Regarding the requirements of 2-4-111, MCA, the board has determined that the adoption of New Rules I and II will not significantly and directly impact small businesses.

Documentation of the board's above-stated determinations is available upon request to the Board of Massage Therapy, 301 South Park Avenue, P.O. Box 200513, Helena, Montana 59620-0513; telephone (406) 841-2370; facsimile (406) 841-2305; or to dlibsdlmt@mt.gov.

10. Steve Gallus, Executive Officer, has been designated to preside over and conduct this hearing.

BOARD OF MASSAGE THERAPY
TAMARA LEACH, CHAIRPERSON

/s/ DARCEE L. MOE
Darcee L. Moe
Rule Reviewer

/s/ THOMAS K. LOPACH
Thomas K. Lopach, Interim Commissioner
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY

Certified to the Secretary of State January 7, 2020.

BEFORE THE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY
STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the amendment of)	NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON
ARM 24.156.1304 and 24.156.1404)	PROPOSED AMENDMENT AND
application for licensure, 24.156.1623)	ADOPTION
chart review, 24.156.2701 definitions,)	
24.156.2711 ECP licensure)	
qualifications, 24.156.2713 ECP)	
license application, 24.156.2718)	
continuing education and refresher)	
requirements, 24.156.2720 ECP)	
training courses, 24.156.2732 medical)	
direction, 24.156.2751 levels of ECP)	
licensure including endorsements,)	
24.156.2771 ECP scope of practice,)	
and the adoption of New Rule I CIHC)	
endorsement)	

TO: All Concerned Persons

1. On February 11, 2020, at 2:00 p.m., a public hearing will be held in the Small Conference Room, 301 South Park Avenue, 4th Floor, Helena, Montana, to consider the proposed amendment and adoption of the above-stated rules.

2. The Department of Labor and Industry (department) will make reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities who wish to participate in this public hearing or need an alternative accessible format of this notice. If you require an accommodation, contact the Board of Medical Examiners no later than 5:00 p.m., on February 4, 2020, to advise us of the nature of the accommodation that you need. Please contact Samuel Hunthausen, Board of Medical Examiners, 301 South Park Avenue, P.O. Box 200513, Helena, Montana 59620-0513; telephone (406) 841-2360; Montana Relay 1 (800) 253-4091; TDD (406) 444-2978; facsimile (406) 841-2305; or dlibsdmed@mt.gov (board's e-mail).

3. GENERAL STATEMENT OF REASONABLE NECESSITY: The board determined it is reasonably necessary to amend the rules throughout to provide consistency, simplicity, better organization, and ease of use for the reader and update out-of-date processes with current, standardized department procedures.

The 2019 Montana Legislature enacted Chapter 220, Laws of 2019 (Senate Bill 38), an act generally revising emergency care provider laws and allowing emergency care providers to be involved in community-integrated health care services. The bill was signed by the Governor on May 1, 2019 and became effective July 1, 2019. Department staff, with collaboration from the Department of Public Health and Human Services, recommended new rules and rule amendments to the board. The board is now proposing to amend certain rules and adopt one new rule

to implement the legislation by establishing the qualifications and process for licensees to obtain the emergency care provider endorsement for community-integrated health care. Where additional specific bases for a proposed action exist, the board will identify those reasons immediately following that rule.

Authority and implementation citations are being amended throughout to accurately reflect all statutes implemented through the rules and provide the complete sources of the board's rulemaking authority.

4. The rules proposed to be amended are as follows, stricken matter interlined, new matter underlined:

24.156.1304 APPLICATION FOR LICENSURE (1) and (1)(a) remain the same.

(b) the initial license fee; and

(c) a copy of the registration by the commission; ~~and~~

~~(d) applicant's current original unopened National Practitioner Data Bank (NPDB) self-query report.~~

(2) The board or its designee will obtain a query from the National Practitioner Data Bank for each applicant.

AUTH: 37-1-131, 37-25-201, MCA

IMP: 37-1-131, 37-25-302, MCA

REASON: Submitting a "self-query" from the National Practitioner Data Bank (NPDB) involves an applicant seeking a report from the NPDB, waiting to receive the report via the U.S. Postal Service, then mailing the unopened envelope containing the report to the board. If an applicant accidentally or intentionally opens the envelope prior to mailing it to the board, the board cannot accept the report and must seek a new one, which delays the licensure process.

Previously, the board removed the requirement for physicians, physician assistants, podiatrists, and emergency care providers to request and submit the unopened paper NPDB self-queries. Currently, only nutritionist and acupuncturist license applicants are still required by rule to obtain self-queries. The board is amending this rule and ARM 24.156.1404 to remove the self-query requirement for nutritionist and acupuncturist licensees for consistency and to reduce licensure processing time.

Department staff are trained and prepared to obtain NPDB reports for all applicants and the financial cost to the board and department will be minimal. Further, the applications will be processed faster and with less effort by applicants.

24.156.1404 APPLICATION FOR LICENSURE (1) An applicant for an acupuncture license shall submit an application, ~~on a form prescribed by the department. The application must be complete and accompanied by the appropriate fees, and the following information and/or documentation:~~

~~(a) applicant's current original unopened National Practitioner Data Bank (NPDB) self-query report;~~

(b) remains the same but is renumbered (a).

~~(c) (b) applicant's clean needle exam results from the Council of Colleges of Acupuncture and Oriental Medicine or its successor; and~~

~~(d) (c) acupuncture certification examination results provided by the National Commission for the Certification of Acupuncture and Oriental Medicine; and~~

~~(e) copy of birth certificate or driver's license.~~

(2) The board or its designee will obtain a query from the National Practitioner Data Bank for each applicant.

~~(2) remains the same but is renumbered (3).~~

~~(3) Applicants whose applications are received, processed, and determined to be incomplete will be sent a letter from the board office specifying the deficiencies which may include, but not be limited to, appropriate fees, verifications, character references, and any other supplemental information the board or its designee deems appropriate. An incomplete application will be held for a period of one year at which time the application will be treated as an expired application and all fees will be forfeited. The applicant may correct any deficiencies and submit missing or additionally requested information or documentation necessary to complete the application within one year from the date the initial application is received in the board office.~~

~~(4) The applicant may voluntarily withdraw the application prior to the one-year deadline set forth in (3) being placed on a board agenda by submitting a written request for withdrawal in writing to the board office. All application fees submitted will be forfeited.~~

~~(5) After withdrawal of an application, the applicant will be required to submit a new application, including supporting documentation and appropriate fees, to begin the licensing and verification process again.~~

~~(6) Completed applications shall be reviewed by the board or its designee, which may request such additional information or clarification of information provided in the application as deemed reasonably necessary.~~

AUTH: 37-13-201, MCA

IMP: 37-13-201, 37-13-302, MCA

REASON: See REASON for ARM 24.156.1304.

Additionally, board legal counsel recommended the board strike several provisions from this rule since application processing for all boards is addressed in the department's standardized application and licensure procedures. To align with the standardized procedures, the board is also simplifying (4) regarding voluntary application withdrawal.

24.156.1623 CHART REVIEW (1) Chart review for a physician assistant having less than one year of full-time practice experience from the date of initial licensure in Montana must be 20 percent for the first six months of practice, and then may be reduced to 10 percent for the next six months, on a monthly basis, for each supervision agreement.

(2) remains the same.

AUTH: 37-1-131, 37-20-202, MCA

IMP: 37-1-131, 37-20-101, 37-20-301, MCA

REASON: At the June 2019 meeting of the Montana Academy of Physician Assistants (MTAPA) the board's executive officer was questioned about whether ARM 24.156.1623(1) applied to all newly licensed PAs in Montana, or whether "initial licensure" could mean licensure in other states, in which case (1) would not apply to PAs with more than one year of full-time experience outside of Montana prior to Montana licensure. The board concluded that all PAs who receive a Montana license must be subject to the minimums stated in (1) regardless of other licensure or experience in other states prior to Montana licensure. The board determined that the rule could be clearer in this regard and is amending the rule to specify that initial licensure in Montana is the trigger for the minimums stated in (1).

24.156.2701 DEFINITIONS (1) through (1)(b) remain the same.

(c) "CIHC" means community-integrated health care as defined under 37-3-102, MCA.

(c) through (s) remain the same but are renumbered (d) through (t).

AUTH: 37-3-203, 50-6-203, MCA

IMP: 37-3-102, 37-3-203, 50-6-101, 50-6-105, 50-6-201, 50-6-202, 50-6-203, 50-6-301, 50-6-302, MCA

24.156.2711 ECP LICENSURE QUALIFICATIONS (1) and (1)(a) remain the same.

(b) possesses a current active or inactive NREMT certification equal to or greater than the level applied for, or successfully completes a written and practical third-party examination approved by the board, or provides a current unrestricted EMR, EMT, AEMT, or paramedic substantially equivalent ECP license or certification in another state ~~in which the applicant was originally tested and~~ which has a complaint process;

~~(c) provides all the information necessary to establish eligibility for licensure according to the board's requirements;~~

(d) and (e) remain the same but are renumbered (c) and (d).

AUTH: 37-1-131, 50-6-203, MCA

IMP: 37-1-304, 50-6-203, MCA

REASON: Following a request by the department's licensing bureau, board legal counsel recommended the board amend this rule to allow ECP licensees without NREMT registration to provide a "substantially equivalent" license or certification from another state as their credential for licensure rather than a specified type of license. This amendment reflects the 2019 Legislature's passage of House Bill 105, which requires boards to issue licenses to out-of-state applicants if the out-of-state licensure standards are substantially equivalent to Montana's. Following staff recommendations to address unnecessary licensure delays, the board is deleting the requirement from (1)(b) that out-of-state applicants must have tested for that

credential in that licensure state. The board is striking (1)(c) as it is addressed in the department's standardized application procedures.

24.156.2713 ECP LICENSE APPLICATION (1) remains the same.

(2) The board or its designee will obtain a query from the NPDB for each applicant.

(3) and (4) remain the same.

(5) Applicants licensed in another state or jurisdiction shall cause all states and jurisdictions in which the applicant holds or has ever held a license or certification to submit a current verification of licensure directly to the board on behalf of the applicant.

(6) remains the same.

AUTH: 37-1-131, 50-6-203, MCA

IMP: ~~37-1-104~~, 37-1-131, 50-6-203, MCA

REASON: The board is amending (2) to ensure that designated department staff can request the NPDB query for an ECP applicant. The department's licensing bureau requested this change following the adoption and implementation of amendments in MAR Notice No. 24-156-85 in 2019. Additionally, the licensing bureau suggested the board amend (5) to add "or certification" because some jurisdictions issue a certificate as opposed to a license.

24.156.2718 CONTINUING EDUCATION AND REFRESHER

REQUIREMENTS (1) All licensed ECPs are required to complete continuing education (CE) and refresher requirements prior to their license expiration date.

(a) through (4) remain the same.

(5) The lead instructor is responsible for the quality, consistency, and management of the refresher training at the EMR and EMT levels and shall maintain records of all courses conducted including an agenda and detailed student performances that document the licensee's ability demonstrated during the refresher.

(6) The medical director is responsible for the quality, consistency, and management of the refresher training at the EMT with endorsement(s), AEMT, and paramedic levels. The medical director may assign duties as appropriate, but retains the overall responsibility for the refresher.

(7) All ECPs shall ~~submit upon renewal an affidavit stating that the ECP is competent in the licensure level skills, including endorsement skills~~ affirm understanding of their recurring duty to comply with CE requirements as part of license renewal.

~~(a) Affidavits of EMR and EMT levels shall be signed by both the ECP and a lead instructor or medical director.~~

~~(b) Affidavits of EMT with endorsement(s), AEMT, and paramedic levels shall be signed by both the ECP and their medical director.~~

(a) The ECP is responsible for maintaining documentation of completed CE and refresher and their medical director's authorization/attestation of continued

competence (including endorsement skills) on a board-approved form which shall be made available to the board upon request.

(c) remains the same but is renumbered (b).

~~(8) Documentation of all CE and continued competence must be retained by the ECP, and made available to the board upon request.~~

AUTH: 50-6-203, MCA

IMP: 50-6-203, MCA

REASON: Following the 2019 rule amendments of MAR Notice No. 24-156-85, licensing staff recommended several changes to this rule to address potential confusion during future ECP renewal periods and continuing education audits. Board counsel concurred, and the board is now amending (1) to specify that "expiration date" means the license expiration date and not a different date. Further, the board is amending (5) and (6) to clarify the responsibilities of lead instructors and medical directors for refresher trainings and mirror the provisions of ARM 24.156.2720.

Following a recommendation by department legal staff, the board is amending (7) to align the affirmation of CE requirements at renewal with the provisions of 37-1-306, MCA. The amendments fall within standardized department procedures that licensees with mandatory CE affirm an understanding of their CE requirements, as part of a complete renewal application, instead of affirming CE completion. Other amendments to (7) clarify that licensees must maintain CE documentation and provide it to the board upon request. With these amendments, the board is striking (8) as unnecessarily duplicative.

24.156.2720 ECP TRAINING COURSES (1) through (1)(c) remain the same.

(d) a final competency evaluation including a practical skill evaluation; and

(e) certificate of successful completion which states:

(i) full name of student;

(i) through (iii) remain the same but are renumbered (ii) through (iv).

(2) remains the same.

~~(3) All EMR and EMT level courses must designate a lead instructor who shall maintain overall responsibility for the quality, consistency, and management of the course.~~

~~(4) (3)~~ All AEMT and paramedic level levels of ECP courses must designate a lead instructor and a medical director. The lead instructor is under the supervision of the board and medical director for these courses.

(5) remains the same but is renumbered (4).

~~(6) (5)~~ The lead instructor of an EMR course shall:

~~(a) document student skill and proficiency on board approved forms~~ issue a certificate as provided under (1)(e);

(b) remains the same.

(c) provide at least one instructor per six students when practical skills are taught or evaluated.

~~(7) (6)~~ The lead instructor of an EMT course shall:

(a) ~~document student skill and proficiency on board-approved forms~~ issue a certificate as provided under (1)(e);

(b) remains the same.

(c) provide at least one instructor per six students when practical skills are taught or evaluated; and

(d) provide the clinical experience as specified under (2)(a); ~~and,~~

~~(e) have access to a medical director who is available for consult.~~

~~(8)~~ (7) The lead instructor and medical director of an AEMT or paramedic course shall:

(a) ~~document student skill and proficiency on board-approved forms~~ issue a certificate as provided under (1)(e);

(b) through (d) remain the same.

(e) provide sufficient patient ~~volume~~ accessibility to allow students to complete all clinical experiences within the course dates.

~~(9)~~ (8) Requests for extension of required course completion times stated in ~~(8)(c)~~ (7)(c) must be submitted in writing and may be granted by the board or its designee.

AUTH: 50-6-203, MCA

IMP: 50-6-203, MCA

REASON: Since this rule's April 27, 2019 effective date, licensing staff provided several suggested amendments to board legal counsel to clarify the reporting requirements of this rule and avoid potential licensee confusion. Following the recommendations and additional discussion, the board is amending several sections to increase clarity and reduce staff and licensee questions.

The board is amending (1)(d) to require a practical skill evaluation to ensure licensure applicants have appropriate practical skills that may not be evaluated by NREMT during that organization's certification process. Further, the board is amending (1)(e) per board counsel recommendation to require that certificates of successful ECP course completion include the student's full name. Because this is not currently required, licensing staff has received certificates with no name.

The board is amending (6) regarding the responsibilities of lead instructors for EMR and EMT courses in evaluating practical skills and issuing certificates. Board counsel recommended the changes to address questions and confusion in this area.

24.156.2732 MEDICAL DIRECTION (1) through (10) remain the same.

(11) A medical director may not unilaterally alter a patient care plan developed by a physician, PA, or APRN for care provided by an ECP with a CIHC endorsement.

AUTH: 37-3-203, 50-6-203, MCA

IMP: 37-3-102, 37-3-203, 50-6-101, 50-6-105, 50-6-201, 50-6-202, 50-6-203, 50-6-301, 50-6-302, MCA

24.156.2751 LEVELS OF ECP LICENSURE INCLUDING ENDORSEMENTS

(1) through (1)(a)(i) remain the same.

- (ii) naloxone; ~~and~~
- (iii) lead instructor; ~~and~~ and
- (iv) CIHC.
- (b) through (b)(iv) remain the same.
- (v) naloxone; ~~and~~
- (vi) lead instructor; ~~and~~ and
- (vii) CIHC.
- (c) and (c)(i) remain the same.
- (ii) AEMT-99; ~~and~~
- (iii) lead instructor; ~~and~~ and
- (iv) CIHC.
- (d) remains the same.
- (i) critical care paramedic; ~~and~~
- (ii) lead instructor; ~~and~~ and
- (iii) CIHC.

AUTH: 37-3-203, 50-6-203, MCA

IMP: 37-3-102, 37-3-203, 50-6-101, 50-6-105, 50-6-201, 50-6-202, 50-6-203, 50-6-301, 50-6-302, MCA

24.156.2771 ECP SCOPE OF PRACTICE (1) through (7)(b) remain the same.

(c) practice at the EMR level, even if the ECP is licensed at a higher level in another state, unless the individual is licensed at an EMT with endorsement(s), AEMT, or paramedic level, and the federally managed incident has medical direction provided by a Montana licensed physician approved by the board as a medical director, and the physician authorizes the individual to function beyond the basic EMR level;

(d) through (8) remain the same.

~~(9) In the event of an emergency response in which chemical agents are used or suspected as being used, ECPs at all levels who are appropriately trained are authorized by the board to carry antidote auto injector kits and administer them as instructed to themselves and any others. Instruction in the use of antidote kits is required in all ECP initial and refresher courses.~~

AUTH: 50-6-203, MCA

IMP: 50-6-203, MCA

REASON: When the board eliminated all references to the "basic" level of ECP licensure in MAR Notice No. 24-156-85, a reference in this rule was overlooked. The board is now removing the remaining reference from (7)(c). Additionally, public comments received in that rulemaking project indicated that (9) is unnecessary and already addressed through statewide practice guidelines. The board was unable to make such a substantial change in that project's final notice and is now amending the rule accordingly.

5. The proposed new rule is as follows:

NEW RULE I CIHC ENDORSEMENT (1) An applicant for CIHC endorsement shall submit an application, the appropriate fees, and:

(a) verification of completion of a board-approved curriculum in community-integrated health care provided by an accredited institution of higher learning, which must include 48 hours of clinical experience; and

(b) attestation of a minimum of one year of experience at the applicant's current level of licensure.

(2) An ECP acting under a current CIHC endorsement shall:

(a) act within their scope of practice according to the Montana ECP Practice Guidelines;

(b) follow the patient care plan developed by the physician, PA, or APRN directing the CIHC to their patient, which may not be unilaterally altered by the ECP's medical director; and

(c) consult their medical director regarding scope of practice.

AUTH: 37-3-203, 50-6-203, MCA

IMP: 37-3-102, 37-3-203, 50-6-101, 50-6-105, 50-6-201, 50-6-202, 50-6-203, 50-6-301, 50-6-302, MCA

6. Concerned persons may present their data, views, or arguments either orally or in writing at the hearing. Written data, views, or arguments may also be submitted to the Board of Medical Examiners, 301 South Park Avenue, P.O. Box 200513, Helena, Montana 59620-0513, by facsimile to (406) 841-2305, or e-mail to dlibsmed@mt.gov, and must be received no later than 5:00 p.m., February 14, 2020.

7. An electronic copy of this notice of public hearing is available at www.medicalboard.mt.gov (department and board's web site). Although the department strives to keep its web sites accessible at all times, concerned persons should be aware that web sites may be unavailable during some periods, due to system maintenance or technical problems, and that technical difficulties in accessing a web site do not excuse late submission of comments.

8. The board maintains a list of interested persons who wish to receive notices of rulemaking actions proposed by this board. Persons who wish to have their name added to the list shall make a written request that includes the name, e-mail, and mailing address of the person to receive notices and specifies that the person wishes to receive notices regarding all board administrative rulemaking proceedings or other administrative proceedings. The request must indicate whether e-mail or standard mail is preferred. Such written request may be sent or delivered to the Board of Medical Examiners, 301 South Park Avenue, P.O. Box 200513, Helena, Montana 59620-0513; faxed to the office at (406) 841-2305; e-mailed to dlibsmed@mt.gov; or made by completing a request form at any rules hearing held by the agency.

9. The bill sponsor contact requirements of 2-4-302, MCA, apply and have been fulfilled. The primary bill sponsor was contacted on December 2, 2019, by electronic mail and December 5, 2019, by telephone and U.S. Postal Service mail.

10. Regarding the requirements of 2-4-111, MCA, the board has determined that the amendment of ARM 24.156.1304, 24.156.1404, 24.156.1623, 24.156.2701, 24.156.2711, 24.156.2713, 24.156.2718, 24.156.2720, 24.156.2732, 24.156.2751, and 24.156.2771 will not significantly and directly impact small businesses.

Regarding the requirements of 2-4-111, MCA, the board has determined that the adoption of NEW RULE I will not significantly and directly impact small businesses.

Documentation of the board's above-stated determinations is available upon request to the Board of Medical Examiners, 301 South Park Avenue, P.O. Box 200513, Helena, Montana 59620-0513; telephone (406) 841-2360; facsimile (406) 841-2305; or to dlibsdmed@mt.gov.

11. Samuel Hunthausen, Executive Officer, has been designated to preside over and conduct this hearing.

BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS
ANA DIAZ, Ph.D.
PRESIDENT

/s/ DARCEE L. MOE
Darcee L. Moe
Rule Reviewer

/s/ THOMAS K. LOPACH
Thomas K. Lopach, Interim Commissioner
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY

Certified to the Secretary of State January 7, 2020.

BEFORE THE BOARD OF OUTFITTERS
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY
STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the amendment of)	NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON
ARM 24.171.408 outfitter records,)	PROPOSED AMENDMENT
24.171.412 safety and first aid)	
provisions, 24.171.520 operations)	
plans and amendments, and)	
24.171.2301 unprofessional conduct)	
and misconduct)	

TO: All Concerned Persons

1. On February 11, 2020, at 10:00 a.m., a public hearing will be held in the Small Conference Room, 301 South Park Avenue, 4th Floor, Helena, Montana, to consider the proposed amendment of the above-stated rules.

2. The Department of Labor and Industry (department) will make reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities who wish to participate in this public hearing or need an alternative accessible format of this notice. If you require an accommodation, contact the Board of Outfitters no later than 5:00 p.m., on February 4, 2020, to advise us of the nature of the accommodation that you need. Please contact Steve Gallus, Board of Outfitters, 301 South Park Avenue, P.O. Box 200513, Helena, Montana 59620-0513; telephone (406) 841-2370; Montana Relay 1 (800) 253-4091; TDD (406) 444-2978; facsimile (406) 841-2305; or dlibsout@mt.gov (board's e-mail).

3. The rules proposed to be amended are as follows, stricken matter interlined, new matter underlined:

24.171.408 OUTFITTER RECORDS (1) through (3) remain the same.

(4) In general, outfitter records, including, but not limited to the operations plans, shall be maintained as confidential information and shall not be released to any person or organization without written permission of the outfitter, subpoena or order of a court, or written request of a state or federal agency for law enforcement purposes. A specific outfitter's number of NCHU is confidential information, but whether an outfitter has NCHU of a particular category is public information. Also, while total acreage of private lands where any outfitter is authorized to operate is a matter of public record, where a particular outfitter is authorized to operate is a confidential matter between the landowner and the outfitter. The Department of Fish, Wildlife and Parks or the Private Land/Public Wildlife Council may use board data to create a map depicting all private land where any outfitter is authorized to operate, excluding private lands that allow unrestricted public access and are managed under cooperative agreements with adjacent public lands. All inquiries for outfitter records shall be reviewed and considered in relation to this rule and the

competing interests between the public's right to know and the rights of privacy involved in the particular records requested.

AUTH: 37-1-131, 37-47-201, MCA

IMP: 37-1-131, 37-47-201, 37-47-301, 37-47-304, MCA

REASON: The 2019 Montana Legislature enacted Chapter 236, Laws of 2019 (Senate Bill 222), an act revising the board's rulemaking authority. The bill became effective October 1, 2019. The board is amending ARM 24.171.408 and 24.171.520 to implement the bill and reflect the changes to 37-47-201 and 37-47-304, MCA, regarding reporting requirements for certain private lands.

Implementation citations are being amended to accurately reflect all statutes implemented through the rule.

24.171.412 SAFETY AND FIRST AID PROVISIONS (1) through (6) remain the same.

(7) Each watercraft or vessel shall contain a serviceable U.S. Coast Guard approved personal floatation device for each person onboard and a rescue throw line measuring at least 55 feet in length. Children under 12 are required to wear a personal floatation device. Watercraft 16 feet and longer are required to be equipped with a throwable Type IV floatation device. Personal floatation devices must be readily accessible at all times.

(8) remains the same.

AUTH: 37-47-201, MCA

IMP: 37-47-201, MCA

REASON: Following recent news stories involving client deaths from drowning, and at the request of associations that represent fishing outfitters and guides, the board has determined it is reasonably necessary to amend this rule to impose a higher duty on guides and outfitters to protect clients consistent with its mission to protect public health, safety, and welfare. Many other states require safety throw lines, and federal law requires PFDs to be readily accessible. The board is amending this rule to adopt these standards for the board's licensees.

24.171.520 OPERATIONS PLANS AND AMENDMENTS (1) through (1)(c) remain the same.

(i) the name of each public land agency, and owners of private lands that allow unrestricted public access and are managed under cooperative agreements with adjacent public lands;

(ii) remains the same.

(iii) total acreage on a per-owner basis of the private land where the outfitter is authorized to operate for any duration of time and for any species of game; ~~and~~

(iv) the legal description of the private acreage where the outfitter is authorized to operate, either by geo-code number assigned by the Montana Department of Revenue, or by aliquot parts. If less than the entire section or parcel

is reported, then the boundary shall be described down to the quarter-quarter section or the government lot number; and

(v) with respect to (ii) through (iv), outfitters are not required to report private lands that allow unrestricted public access and are managed under cooperative agreements with adjacent public lands;

(d) through (5) remain the same.

AUTH: 37-1-131, 37-47-201, MCA

IMP: 37-1-131, 37-47-201, 37-47-304, MCA

REASON: See REASON for ARM 24.171.408.

24.171.2301 UNPROFESSIONAL CONDUCT AND MISCONDUCT

(1) through (3)(d) remain the same.

(e) not use alcohol or any other controlled substance as defined in Title 50, chapter 32, MCA, including marijuana and marijuana derivatives, to the extent that the use impairs the user physically or mentally, while engaged by a client;

(f) through (j) remain the same.

(k) not have hunting or fishing privileges or a wildlife conservation license suspended, revoked, placed on probation, or voluntarily surrendered in the state of Montana or any other jurisdiction;

(l) have a valid wildlife conservation license before providing guiding services;

(l) through (q) remain the same but are renumbered (m) through (r).

AUTH: 37-1-131, 37-1-319, 37-47-201, MCA

IMP: 37-1-312, 37-1-316, 37-1-319, 37-47-201, 37-47-325, 37-47-341, MCA

REASON: The board has determined it is reasonably necessary to amend (3)(e) to clarify that impairment from any controlled substance while performing job-related functions is unprofessional conduct. Board members have received anecdotal reports that outfitters and guides are performing services for clients while impaired by marijuana. Although the board recognizes that, under the Montana Medical Marijuana Act, 50-46-301, MCA, et. seq., registered card holders may use marijuana, it is necessary for the public's protection to prohibit all outfitters and guides from using marijuana to the extent the use impairs the outfitter or guide while engaged in professional duties.

The board is also amending (3)(k) and adding (3)(l) because board staff noticed that, while 37-47-304, MCA, requires outfitters and guides to have a wildlife conservation license at the time of application, board statutes and rules do not clearly state this as a continuing requirement. The board recognizes the legislative intent to require all licensees to maintain a valid wildlife conservation license before providing guiding services and is amending this rule to clarify that requirement.

4. Concerned persons may present their data, views, or arguments either orally or in writing at the hearing. Written data, views, or arguments may also be

submitted to the Board of Outfitters, 301 South Park Avenue, P.O. Box 200513, Helena, Montana 59620-0513, by facsimile to (406) 841-2305, or e-mail to dlibsout@mt.gov, and must be received no later than 5:00 p.m., February 14, 2020.

5. An electronic copy of this notice of public hearing is available at www.outfitter.mt.gov (department and board's web site). Although the department strives to keep its web sites accessible at all times, concerned persons should be aware that web sites may be unavailable during some periods, due to system maintenance or technical problems, and that technical difficulties in accessing a web site do not excuse late submission of comments.

6. The board maintains a list of interested persons who wish to receive notices of rulemaking actions proposed by this board. Persons who wish to have their name added to the list shall make a written request that includes the name, e-mail, and mailing address of the person to receive notices and specifies that the person wishes to receive notices regarding all board administrative rulemaking proceedings or other administrative proceedings. The request must indicate whether e-mail or standard mail is preferred. Such written request may be sent or delivered to the Board of Outfitters, 301 South Park Avenue, P.O. Box 200513, Helena, Montana 59620-0513; faxed to the office at (406) 841-2305; e-mailed to dlibsout@mt.gov; or made by completing a request form at any rules hearing held by the agency.

7. The bill sponsor contact requirements of 2-4-302, MCA, apply and have been fulfilled. The primary bill sponsor was contacted on December 19, 2019, by telephone.

8. Regarding the requirements of 2-4-111, MCA, the board has determined that the amendment of ARM 24.171.408, 24.171.412, 24.171.520, and 24.171.2301 will not significantly and directly impact small businesses.

Documentation of the board's above-stated determination is available upon request to the Board of Outfitters, 301 South Park Avenue, P.O. Box 200513, Helena, Montana 59620-0513; telephone (406) 841-2370; facsimile (406) 841-2305; or to dlibsout@mt.gov.

9. Steve Gallus, Executive Officer, has been designated to preside over and conduct this hearing.

BOARD OF OUTFITTERS
JOHN WAY, CHAIRPERSON

/s/ DARCEE L. MOE
Darcee L. Moe
Rule Reviewer

/s/ THOMAS K. LOPACH
Thomas K. Lopach, Interim Commissioner
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY

Certified to the Secretary of State January 7, 2020.

BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES OF THE
STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the amendment of) NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON
ARM 37.80.101, 37.80.102,) PROPOSED AMENDMENT AND
37.80.201, 37.80.202, 37.80.205,) REPEAL
37.80.316, 37.80.317, and 37.80.501,)
and the repeal of 37.80.206)
pertaining to child care)

TO: All Concerned Persons

1. On February 6, 2020 at 10:00 a.m., the Department of Public Health and Human Services will hold a public hearing in the auditorium of the Department of Public Health and Human Services Building, 111 North Sanders, Helena, Montana, to consider the proposed amendment and repeal of the above-stated rules.

2. The Department of Public Health and Human Services will make reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities who wish to participate in this rulemaking process or need an alternative accessible format of this notice. If you require an accommodation, contact the Department of Public Health and Human Services no later than 5:00 p.m. on January 30, 2020, to advise us of the nature of the accommodation that you need. Please contact Heidi Clark, Department of Public Health and Human Services, Office of Legal Affairs, P.O. Box 4210, Helena, Montana, 59604-4210; telephone (406) 444-4094; fax (406) 444-9744; or e-mail dphhslegal@mt.gov.

3. The rules as proposed to be amended provide as follows, new matter underlined, deleted matter interlined:

37.80.101 PURPOSE AND GENERAL LIMITATIONS (1) and (2) remain the same.

(3) The Child Care Assistance Program will be administered in accordance with:

(a) remains the same.

(b) the Montana Child Care Manual, dated ~~July 1, 2018~~ June 1, 2020, adopted and incorporated by this reference. The manual contains the policies and procedures utilized in the implementation of the department's Child Care Assistance Program. A copy of the manual is available at each child care resource and referral agency; at the Department of Public Health and Human Services, Human and Community Services Division, 111 N. Jackson St., P.O. Box 202925, Helena, MT 59620-2925; and on the department's web site at www.childcare.mt.gov.

AUTH: 52-2-704, 53-4-212, MCA

IMP: 52-2-702, 52-2-704, 52-2-713, 52-2-731, 53-2-201, 53-4-211, 53-4-601, 53-4-611, 53-4-612, MCA

37.80.102 DEFINITIONS As used in this chapter, the following definitions apply:

~~(1) "Absent days" means a payment to assist households when a child care provider requires payment for a child's absence.~~

(2) through (32) remain the same but are renumbered (1) through (31).

AUTH: 52-2-704, 53-4-212, MCA

IMP: 52-2-704, 52-2-713, 52-2-721, 52-2-722, 52-2-723, 52-2-731, 53-2-201, 53-4-211, 53-4-601, 53-4-611, 53-4-612, MCA

37.80.201 NONFINANCIAL REQUIREMENTS FOR ELIGIBILITY AND PRIORITY FOR ASSISTANCE (1) through (6) remain the same.

~~(7) Payment may only be made for care listed on the authorization plan.~~

(8) through (12) remain the same but are renumbered (7) through (11).

AUTH: 40-4-234, 52-2-704, 53-4-212, MCA

IMP: 52-2-704, 52-2-713, 52-2-721, 52-2-722, 52-2-723, 52-2-731, 53-2-201, 53-4-211, 53-4-601, 53-4-611, MCA

37.80.202 FINANCIAL REQUIREMENTS FOR ELIGIBILITY; PAYMENT FOR CHILD CARE SERVICES; PARENT'S COPAYMENT (1) through (9) remain the same.

(10) Persons providing child care services subsidized under this chapter are paid at the lesser of the provider's usual and customary rate or the rates specified in ARM 37.80.205. ~~This total monthly payment due to the child care provider is computed by multiplying the applicable payment rate times the number of child care hours or days for the month for which payment is allowed under this chapter.~~ The portion of the total monthly payment that the department is required to pay is computed by subtracting the parent's monthly copayment from the total monthly payment due.

(11) through (13) remain the same.

~~(14) Benefits are only paid for actual care provided during the authorization and corresponding certification period, except as provided in ARM 37.80.205 and 37.80.206.~~

(15) remains the same but is renumbered (14).

AUTH: 52-2-704, 53-4-212, MCA

IMP: 52-2-704, 52-2-713, 52-2-721, 52-2-722, 52-2-723, 52-2-731, 53-2-201, 53-4-211, 53-4-212, 53-4-601, 53-4-611, MCA

37.80.205 CHILD CARE RATES: PAYMENT REQUIREMENTS (1) The department calculates provider rates based on market rate surveys required by the Child Care and Development Block Grant Act of 2014. A half-time day rate is calculated for ~~six~~ five or less hours of care during a calendar day. A full-time day rate is calculated for more than ~~six~~ five hours and up to 12 hours during a calendar day.

(2) and (3) remain the same.

(4) Providers are paid for ~~child care provided~~ actual attendance when the child is present if a child attends less than 85% of the authorized time listed on the authorization plan. ~~Payment for child care when the child is absent is only allowed as described in ARM 37.80.206.~~

(5) Providers are paid the entire monthly amount listed on the authorization plan when a child attends at least 85% of the authorized time listed on the authorization plan.

(5) through (7) remain the same but are renumbered (6) through (8).

(9) The department has the discretion to adjust rates for child care provided during non-traditional hours as defined in ARM 37.80.102.

(a) In order for an adjusted rate to be paid, the approved care must be provided for at least one hour between 6 p.m. to 6 a.m. Monday through Friday or after 6 p.m. Friday to 6 a.m. Monday.

(8) and (9) remain the same but are renumbered (10) and (11).

(12) Child care facilities must notify the child care resource and referral agency when a child is absent without explanation for five consecutive working days unless the child has been attached to a different provider. If the provider fails to notify the child care resource and referral agency when a child is absent without explanation for five consecutive working days, the department is not required to pay for any care from the date the child last attended the facility.

AUTH: 52-2-704, 53-4-212, MCA

IMP: 52-2-704, 52-2-713, MCA

37.80.316 REQUIREMENTS AND PROCEDURES FOR CHILD CARE PAYMENTS (1) through (4) remain the same.

(5) The provider must submit a claim for covered child care services on the billing form provided by the department. Except as provided in (4)(a), a completed billing form with all information and documentation necessary to process the claim must be received by the resource and referral agency of the department within 60 calendar days after the last day of the calendar month in which the service was provided. Timely filing of claims in accordance with the requirements of this rule is a prerequisite for payment. In addition:

(a) remains the same.

(b) ~~The claim must indicate the child's actual attendance accurately, within one half hour. The provider's claim may be rounded to the nearest half hour of total daily attendance.~~ The claim must accurately reflect the child's time in and time out as indicated on the provider's sign-in/sign-out records.

(c) through (7) remain the same.

AUTH: 52-2-704, MCA

IMP: 52-2-704, 52-2-711, 52-2-713, MCA

37.80.317 AUTHORIZATION OF SERVICES – AUTHORIZATION PLANS

(1) Child care assistance is provided for through an authorization of services and an authorization plan. The authorization of services and authorization plan include the following information:

- (a) through (c) remain the same.
- (d) name of the child care provider; and
- (e) amount of child care payment based on the number of hours per week authorized; and
- (e) remains the same but is renumbered (f).

AUTH: 52-2-704, 53-4-212, MCA

IMP: 52-2-704, 52-2-713, MCA

37.80.501 TERMINATION OF CHILD CARE ASSISTANCE (1) Child care assistance will be terminated if any of the following occurs:

- (a) remains the same.
 - (b) a parent has been given a grace period and does not meet the activity requirement or is not participating in the TANF funded case assistance program at the end of the grace period;
 - ~~(c) the parent no longer needs child care to allow the parent to participate in an activity specified in ARM 37.80.201;~~
 - (d) remains the same but is renumbered (c).
 - (d) a family moves outside of the state of Montana; or
 - ~~(e) a parent who was participating in the TANF funded cash assistance program is no longer a participant in that program and is not otherwise eligible for child care assistance under the provisions of ARM 37.80.201;~~
 - ~~(f) the child no longer meets the age requirements of ARM 37.80.102.~~
 - (g) remains the same but is renumbered (e).
- (2) When child care assistance is terminated due to the household's loss of eligibility, as specified in (1)(b), (c), ~~(e)~~ (d), or ~~(f)~~ (e), notice of termination must be sent to both the parent and the provider at least 15 calendar days prior to the effective date of termination, except for ~~(1)(e)~~ TANF cases in which a ten-calendar-day notice is required. No notice is required from the state when child care is terminated by the parent or provider, or for the other reasons specified in (1)(a), ~~(d)~~, or ~~(g)~~.

- (a) through (4) remain the same.

AUTH: 52-2-704, MCA

IMP: 52-2-704, MCA

- 4. The department proposes to repeal the following rule:

37.80.206 ABSENT DAYS is found on page 37-17807 of the Administrative Rules of Montana.

AUTH: 52-2-704, MCA

IMP: 52-2-704, MCA

5. STATEMENT OF REASONABLE NECESSITY

The Department of Public Health and Human Services (department) administers the Best Beginnings Child Care Scholarship (BBCCS) Program which is funded by federal funds through the Child Care Development Fund (CCDF) with some matching state general fund monies. The BBCCS Program offers child care assistance for low income families with parents working and/or attending school, families referred by Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF), and children referred by Child Protective Services (CPS). The BBCCS Program has eligibility determined through Child Care Resource and Referral (CCR&R) agencies.

The proposed administrative rule changes are necessary to revise the department's policy manual for the program and to conform the department's rules for the administration of the BBCCS Program to federal regulations at 45 CFR Part 98.

ARM 37.80.101

This proposed rule amendment would adopt and incorporate by reference proposed revisions to the Early Childhood Services Bureau (ECBS) Child Care Policy Manual (manual) effective February 1, 2020. The proposed rule amendment is necessary to incorporate the manual revisions described below.

Policy Section 1-1: Table of Contents

The department proposes changes to revise the subheading to proposed changes to policy sections 6-3 and 6-6.

Policy Section 1-10: Timely Notices and Termination

The department proposes to remove the term "certification plan" because it is no longer an accurate term. A family on the Best Beginnings Child Care Scholarship is given a 12-month eligibility period. The department proposes to remove examples of when a 15-day notice and no advance notice would be given. These are redundant and do not reflect all possible examples.

Policy Section 3-1: OPA, Pathways, CCR&R Coordination

The department proposes to remove language about a case closing due to an unpaid copayment. This language must be removed to meet federal regulations, 45 CFR Part 98.21(a)(5).

Policy Section 3-2: Tribal TANF Coordination

The department proposes to remove language about a case closing due to an unpaid copayment. This language must be removed to meet federal regulations, 45 CFR Part 98.21(a)(5).

Policy Section 3-3: Working Caretaker Relative Child Care

The department proposes to remove language about a case closing due to an unpaid copayment. This language must be removed to meet federal regulations, 45 CFR Part 98.21(a)(5).

Policy Section 6-3: Issuing the Authorization of Services and Certification Plan

The department proposes to rename the Policy Section to "Issuing the Authorization of Services and Authorization Plan." The term "certification plan" is no longer used. The department proposes to allow the parent to determine the child care needs for their child after the family is determined eligible for the Best Beginnings Child Care Scholarship. This promotes continuity of care for a child because the parent knows the child's needs. The department proposes to put a limit on the weekly maximum number of hours a child can be authorized for payment by the Best Beginnings Child Care Scholarship to avoid abuse of this policy.

Policy Section 6-4: Copayment Requirements

The department proposes to remove language about a family's case closing due to an unpaid copayment. A family has a monthly copayment as an eligibility requirement, and this will be reviewed at an initial application or at annual re-determination. The case will not close during a 12-month eligibility period. Current policy is contrary to federal regulations, 45 CFR Part 98.21(a)(5).

Policy Section 6-6: Absent Days and Continuity of Care

The department proposes to rename the Policy Section to "Continuity of Care." The department proposes to remove all language about Absent Days to align with payment practices in ARM 37.80.205. The department proposes in ARM 37.80.205 to pay the monthly authorized amount when a child attends a child care provider for 85% of the authorized time. Absent Days were used as payment practice to pay child care providers for occasional absences. The department proposes changes to ARM 37.80.205 that will pay for occasional absences because only 85% attendance for a month is required.

Policy Section 6-7: Invoice and Payment Processes

The department proposes to revise language about how invoices are used in the payment process. The department proposes to require a child's actual time in and time out of a child care facility. A child care provider providing care for a child receiving the Best Beginnings Child Care Scholarship is required to keep sign-in/sign-out records where a parent signs actual time in and time out of a child. The department will be able to increase program integrity by aligning how sign-in/sign-out records are maintained and what information is found on invoices. The department proposes to remove the term "Absent Days" following proposed changes to Policy Section 6-6.

ARM 37.80.102

The department proposes to remove the definition for "Absent Days" following proposed changes to ARM 37.80.205. The department proposes payment practices changes that will include payment for occasional absences.

ARM 37.80.201

The department proposes to remove language about payments based on an authorization plan. The department proposes changes to ARM 37.80.205 to include payment practices.

ARM 37.80.202

The department proposes to remove redundant language. The department proposes to move language to ARM 37.80.205 because payment practices are included in this rule.

ARM 37.80.205

The department proposes to revise language to clarify payment practices on how child care providers are paid for child care services under the Best Beginnings Child Care Scholarship program. The department proposes to revise the definition for payment of a half-time day from six hours to five hours. The department has received feedback from child care providers that a half-time day is defined by most as less than five hours per day. The department proposes to align with the business practices of child care providers.

ARM 37.80.206

The department proposes to repeal this rule to align with ARM 37.80.205 proposed changes.

ARM 37.80.316

The department proposes to change how a child care provider indicates the time a child attends the facility. By receiving actual time a child enters and leaves a child care facility, the department will improve program integrity. Actual time on the invoice can be compared to the times signed off by the parent on sign-in/sign-out records kept by the child care provider.

ARM 37.80.317

The department proposes to add the amount of a child care payment to an authorization plan. By providing this information, a child care provider will be able to determine what a monthly payment would be for a child if he or she attended 85% of the authorized time during a month.

ARM 37.80.501

The department proposes to revise the reasons a case can be terminated to align with federal regulations, 45 CFR Part 98, 98.21(a)(5). Federal regulations allow a case to be closed in the following circumstances: excessive unexplained absences, a change in residency outside of the state, and if a parent has not met an activity requirement after being given a grace period. The department allows a parent to choose to close a case with a written request.

Fiscal Impact

The Best Beginnings Child Care Scholarship (BBCCS) Program is administered by the department using funds through the federal Child Care Development Fund

(CCDF), matching state general fund, and required state Maintenance of Effort (MOE). The department expects the proposed rules will have a fiscal impact to the state.

The BBCCS Program offers child care assistance for families with parents attending school and/or working under the Non-TANF Program, families referred by Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF), and children from Child Protective Services (CPS). In State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2019, 4,956 children from Non-TANF families, 1,737 children referred by TANF, 193 children referred by the Working Caretaker Relative Program, 45 children referred by Tribal IV-E, and 1,881 children referred by CPS were receiving child care assistance. There was a total of 8,043 unduplicated children.

The Child Care Development Fund requires that not less than 70% must be used to fund direct services, child care assistance payments to providers for eligible children. The BBCCS did not meet the direct fund requirement in Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 2017. In order to exceed this fiscal requirement, the department proposes to pay a child care provider the total monthly authorized amount when a child attends 85% of the authorized time.

Absent Days have an average annual expenditure of \$940,000. The department proposes to eliminate Absent Days, and the resulting savings of approximately \$1,000,000 will be applied to meeting full payments for children that attend 85% of the authorized time.

The department proposes to pay an additional percentage for child care provided during hours that fall outside of traditional child care hours of 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. It is estimated the proposed rulemaking will cost the department \$112,000.

As of August 2019, there were 259 licensed child care centers, 199 licensed family providers, 366 licensed group providers, 55 Family, Friend, and Neighbor (FFN) providers, and 116 Relative Care Exempt (RCE) providers. Child care providers may be small businesses. The department expects child care providers who have children receiving child care assistance and attending full-time will see a benefit because the provider will receive the entire month's authorized payment. The impact on an individual small business will be based on the number of children with child care assistance served by the child care provider, the number of child care hours each child with child care assistance is authorized for, and the number of hours each child attends at the child care provider's facility per month.

The department intends to apply these amendments June 1, 2020.

6. Concerned persons may submit their data, views, or arguments either orally or in writing at the hearing. Written data, views, or arguments may also be submitted to: Heidi Clark, Department of Public Health and Human Services, Office of Legal Affairs, P.O. Box 4210, Helena, Montana, 59604-4210; fax (406) 444-9744;

or e-mail dphhslegal@mt.gov, and must be received no later than 5:00 p.m., February 14, 2020.

7. The Office of Legal Affairs, Department of Public Health and Human Services, has been designated to preside over and conduct this hearing.

8. The department maintains a list of interested persons who wish to receive notices of rulemaking actions proposed by this agency. Persons who wish to have their name added to the list shall make a written request that includes the name, e-mail, and mailing address of the person to receive notices and specifies for which program the person wishes to receive notices. Notices will be sent by e-mail unless a mailing preference is noted in the request. Such written request may be mailed or delivered to the contact person in 6 above or may be made by completing a request form at any rules hearing held by the department.

9. The bill sponsor contact requirements of 2-4-302, MCA, do not apply.

10. With regard to the requirements of 2-4-111, MCA, the department has determined that the amendment and repeal of the above-referenced rules will significantly and directly impact small businesses.

/s/ Robert Lishman for Flint Murfitt
Flint Murfitt
Rule Reviewer

/s/ Sheila Hogan
Sheila Hogan, Director
Public Health and Human Services

Certified to the Secretary of State January 7, 2020.

BEFORE THE CLASSIFICATION REVIEW COMMITTEE

In the matter of the amendment of)	CORRECTED NOTICE OF
ARM 6.6.8301 pertaining to)	AMENDMENT
establishment, deletion, or revision of)	
classifications for various industries)	
for supplementing the NCCI Basic)	
Manual for Workers' Compensation)	
and Employers Liability)	

TO: All Concerned Persons

1. On September 20, 2019, the Classification Review Committee published MAR Notice No. 6-260 pertaining to the public hearing on the proposed amendment of the above-stated rule at page 1548 of the 2019 Montana Administrative Register, Issue Number 18. On December 27, 2019, the committee published the notice of amendment of the above-stated rule at page 2339 of the 2019 Montana Administrative Register, Issue Number 24.

2. This corrected notice is necessary because the July 1, 2020 effective date for the rule was not included in the notice of amendment. The effective date was included in the notice of proposed amendment.

3. The effective date of the rule amendment is July 1, 2020.

/s/ Michael Winsor
Michael Winsor
Rule Reviewer

/s/ Greg Roadifer
Greg Roadifer
Committee Chair

Certified to the Secretary of State January 7, 2020.

BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the amendment of) NOTICE OF AMENDMENT
ARM 8.94.3816 pertaining to the)
administration of the 2021 and 2023)
Biennia Treasure State Endowment)
Program – Emergency Grants)

TO: All Concerned Persons

1. On December 6, 2019, the Department of Commerce published MAR Notice No. 8-94-176 pertaining to the proposed amendment of the above-stated rule at page 2182 of the 2019 Montana Administrative Register, Issue Number 23.
2. No comments or testimony were received.
3. The department has amended the above-stated rule as proposed.

/s/ Amy Barnes
Amy Barnes
Rule Reviewer

/s/ Tara Rice
Tara Rice
Director
Department of Commerce

Certified to the Secretary of State January 7, 2020.

BEFORE THE BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY
STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the adoption of New) NOTICE OF ADOPTION
Rule I pertaining to positive)
identification for controlled substance)
prescriptions)

TO: All Concerned Persons

1. On November 8, 2019, the Board of Pharmacy published MAR Notice No. 24-174-73 regarding the public hearing on the proposed adoption of the above-stated rule, at page 1954 of the 2019 Montana Administrative Register, Issue No. 21.

2. On December 6, 2019, a public hearing was held on the proposed adoption of the above-stated rule in Helena. One comment was received by the December 6, 2019 deadline.

3. A summary of the comment and the board response are as follows:

COMMENT 1: One commenter expressed support for the entirety of the proposed rule in MAR Notice No. 24-174-73.

RESPONSE 1: The board appreciates all comments received during the rulemaking process.

4. The board has adopted New Rule I (24.174.842) exactly as proposed.

BOARD OF PHARMACY
TONY KING, PharmD
PRESIDENT

/s/ DARCEE L. MOE
Darcee L. Moe
Rule Reviewer

/s/ THOMAS K. LOPACH
Thomas K. Lopach, Interim Commissioner
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY

Certified to the Secretary of State January 7, 2020.

BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the amendment of)	NOTICE OF AMENDMENT AND
ARM 24.101.413 and the repeal of)	REPEAL
ARM 24.181.301, 24.181.402,)	
24.181.403, 24.181.404, 24.181.501,)	
24.181.505, 24.181.601, 24.181.603,)	
24.181.605, 24.181.607, 24.181.608,)	
24.181.609, 24.181.610, 24.181.611,)	
24.181.612, 24.181.613, 24.181.615,)	
24.181.616, 24.181.620, 24.181.621,)	
24.181.622, 24.181.623, 24.181.624,)	
24.181.625, 24.181.626, 24.181.627,)	
24.181.628, 24.181.701, 24.181.704,)	
24.181.706, 24.181.708, 24.181.710,)	
24.181.711, 24.181.716, 24.181.717,)	
24.181.718, 24.181.719, 24.181.722,)	
24.181.723, 24.181.724, 24.181.728,)	
24.181.730, 24.181.802, 24.181.803,)	
24.181.807, 24.181.810, and)	
24.181.2101, pertaining to private)	
alternative adolescent residential or)	
outdoor programs obsolete rules)	

TO: All Concerned Persons

1. On December 6, 2019, the Department of Labor and Industry (department) published MAR Notice No. 24-181-7 regarding the proposed amendment and repeal of the above-stated rules, at page 2192 of the 2019 Montana Administrative Register, Issue No. 23.

2. No comments were received by the January 3, 2020 deadline.

3. The department has amended and repealed the above-stated rules as proposed.

/s/ DARCEE L. MOE
Darcee L. Moe
Rule Reviewer

/s/ THOMAS K. LOPACH
Thomas K. Lopach, Interim Commissioner
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY

Certified to the Secretary of State January 7, 2020.

BEFORE THE BOARD OF PSYCHOLOGISTS
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY
STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the amendment of)	NOTICE OF AMENDMENT,
ARM 24.189.301 definitions,)	ADOPTION, AND REPEAL
24.189.607 required supervised)	
experience, 24.189.2107 continuing)	
education implementation, the)	
adoption of New Rule I requirements)	
for licensees providing telehealth)	
services, and the repeal of 24.189.620)	
licensees from other states or)	
Canadian jurisdictions)	

TO: All Concerned Persons

1. On September 20, 2019, the Board of Psychologists (board) published MAR Notice No. 24-189-40 regarding the public hearing on the proposed amendment, adoption, and repeal of the above-stated rules, at page 1567 of the 2019 Montana Administrative Register, Issue No. 18.

2. On October 16, 2019, a public hearing was held on the proposed amendment, adoption, and repeal of the above-stated rules in Helena. No comments were received by the October 18, 2019 deadline.

3. The board has amended ARM 24.189.301, 24.189.607, and 24.189.2107 exactly as proposed.

4. The board has adopted New Rule I (24.189.415) exactly as proposed.

5. The board has repealed ARM 24.189.620 exactly as proposed.

BOARD OF PSYCHOLOGISTS
LORETTA BOLYARD, Ph.D.
CHAIRPERSON

/s/ DARCEE L. MOE
Darcee L. Moe
Rule Reviewer

/s/ THOMAS K. LOPACH
Thomas K. Lopach, Interim Commissioner
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY

Certified to the Secretary of State January 7, 2020.

BEFORE THE BOARD OF OIL AND GAS CONSERVATION AND
THE DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES AND CONSERVATION
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the amendment of) NOTICE OF AMENDMENT
ARM 36.22.1242 pertaining to the)
Board of Oil and Gas Conservation)
privilege and license tax)

TO: All Concerned Persons

1. On September 20, 2019, the Department of Natural Resources and Conservation and the Board of Oil and Gas Conservation published MAR Notice No. 36-22-201 pertaining to the proposed amendment of the above-stated rule at page 1601 of the 2019 Montana Administrative Register, Issue Number 18.
2. The department has amended the above-stated rule as proposed.
3. The department received no comments on the proposed amendment.

/s/ Steve Durrett
Steve Durrett, Chairman
Board of Oil and Gas
Conservation

/s/ John E. Tubbs
John E. Tubbs
Director
Department of Natural Resources and
Conservation

/s/ Robert Stutz
Robert Stutz
Rule Reviewer

Certified to the Secretary of State January 7, 2020.

BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
AND HUMAN SERVICES
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the adoption of New)	NOTICE OF ADOPTION,
Rules I through IV, the amendment of)	AMENDMENT, AND REPEAL
ARM 37.111.801, 37.111.804,)	
37.111.805, 37.111.810, 37.111.811,)	
37.111.812, 37.111.825, 37.111.832,)	
37.111.833, 37.111.834, 37.111.840,)	
37.111.841, 37.111.842, 37.111.846,)	
and the repeal of 37.111.831)	
pertaining to healthy learning)	
environments in Montana public)	
schools)	

TO: All Concerned Persons

1. On June 21, 2019, the Department of Public Health and Human Services published MAR Notice No. 37-873 pertaining to the public hearing on the proposed adoption, amendment, and repeal of the above-stated rules at page 795 of the 2019 Montana Administrative Register, Issue Number 12. On July 26, 2019, the department published a notice of extension of comment period until September 16, 2019, at page 1016 of the Montana Administrative Register, Issue Number 14.

2. The department has amended the following rules as proposed: ARM 37.111.834 and 37.111.842. The department has repealed the following rule as proposed: ARM 37.111.831.

3. The department has adopted the following rules as proposed, but with the following changes from the original proposal, new matter underlined, deleted matter interlined:

NEW RULE I (37.111.826) INDOOR AIR QUALITY (1) remains as proposed.

(2) Air filters ~~shall~~ must have a minimum efficiency reporting value of between 8 and 13 as recommended by the National Air Filtration Association and the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) unless other types of non-MERV rated filters are used.

(a) The department recommends that schools with ventilation systems using MERV rated air filters change their filters to MERV 13 or greater during times of poor outdoor air quality.

(b) Schools using electrostatic air filters must clean the filters according to manufacturer specifications.

(3) The school facility manager, school administrator, lead teacher, or other administrator-approved staff ~~Indoor air quality inspections must be completed annually~~ annual indoor air quality inspections using the Walk Through Inspection

Checklist from EPA's Indoor Air Quality Tools for Schools or other department-approved inspection form.

(a) Schools must maintain records of indoor air quality inspection on site for no less than three years and the records must be made available to the local health authority and the department upon request.

AUTH: 50-1-206, MCA

IMP: 50-1-206, MCA

NEW RULE II (37.111.827) OUTDOOR AIR QUALITY (1) Schools ~~shall~~ must reference the Recommendations for Outdoor Activities Based on Air Quality for School and Child Care Facilities developed by the Montana Department of Public Health and Human Services and the Montana Department of Environmental Quality to determine local air quality conditions and choose to cancel outdoor recess and delay or not delay outdoor school-sponsored events.

(2) Schools must have a protocol in place on how to limit the infiltration of seal school buildings to outside air into the school during poor air quality conditions.

AUTH: 50-1-206, MCA

IMP: 50-1-206, MCA

NEW RULE III (37.111.813) SCIENCE, SHOP INDUSTRIAL ARTS, AND ART LABORATORY SAFETY (1) remains as proposed.

(2) Schools containing science labs, shop industrial arts classrooms or buildings, and art labs that use and store hazardous chemicals must maintain a Chemical Hygiene Plan (CHP) and designate a ~~school and district~~ Chemical Hygiene Officer (dCHO) in accordance with the requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) Occupational Exposure to Hazardous Chemicals in Laboratories standard 29 CFR 1910.1450.

(3) ~~Chemical Hygiene Plans~~ CHPs must include plans for appropriate selection, storage, inventory, use, and disposal of hazardous chemicals, and biological materials.

(a) The dCHO has primary responsibility for ensuring the implementation of all components of the ~~Chemical Hygiene Plan (CHP)~~.

(b) The school Chemical Hygiene Officer (sCHO) must oversee the implementation and enforcement of the schools' CHP at their school(s). A science chairperson, ~~or~~ equivalently qualified faculty member, or staff member with knowledge of the chemicals used in the school may be ~~designed~~ designated as the sCHO.

(4) ~~Material~~ Safety Data Sheets (SDS) for all materials in science labs, shop industrial arts classrooms or buildings, and art labs, and lab storage rooms will be stored in those rooms and be accessible at all times.

(a) The SDS must also be kept in a secure, remote site outside of the science labs, shop industrial arts classroom or buildings, and art labs, and lab storage rooms.

~~(b) The SDS must be made publicly available online.~~

(5) remains as proposed.

(6) Unused hazardous materials must be disposed of in a timely manner as stated by the manufacturer and approved by the ~~Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ)~~. Schools must consult with the DEQ and the department for additional information about how they can properly discard hazardous material.

~~(7) The department may work with the Department of Labor and Industry to determine if stop work orders are necessary to protect the safety of school employees and students.~~

AUTH: 50-1-206, MCA

IMP: 50-1-203, 50-1-206, MCA

NEW RULE IV (37.111.802) INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE (1) For purposes of this subchapter, the department adopts and incorporates by reference the following:

(a) Department of Public Health and Human Services and Department of Environmental Quality "Recommendations for Outdoor Activities Based on Air Quality for School and Child Care Facilities" (~~2016~~ 2018 edition).

(b) through (2) remain as proposed.

AUTH: 50-1-206, MCA

IMP: 50-1-203, 50-1-206, MCA

4. The department has amended the following rules as proposed, but with the following changes from the original proposal, new matter underlined, deleted matter interlined:

37.111.801 DEFINITIONS (1) through (6) remain as proposed.

(7) "First-draw sample" means a ~~one-liter~~ 250 milliliter sample of tap water that has stood motionless in the plumbing pipes for at least six hours and is collected without flushing the tap.

(8) through (15) remain as proposed.

(16) "Local education agency (LEA)" means the local school district board of trustees recognized as the administrative agency for a public elementary or secondary school.

(16) remains as proposed but is renumbered (17)

(18) "Pest" means any animal, plant, or other organism which has a harmful effect on humans, their food, or the conditions of their school, workplace, home, or recreation sites.

(19) "Radon" is a colorless, odorless, tasteless gas and comes from the natural breakdown of uranium in the ground.

(~~17~~) (20) "Sanitarian" means a person, by reason of the person's special knowledge of the physical, biological, and chemical sciences and the principles and methods of public health acquired by professional education and practical experience through inspectional, educational, or enforcement duties, who is qualified under Title 37, chapter 40, part 1, MCA, and represents the health officer to practice the profession of sanitarian.

~~(18)~~ (21) "School" means a building or structure or portion thereof occupied ~~or used at least 180 days per year~~ for the teaching of individuals, the curriculum of which satisfies the basic instructional program approved by the Board of Public Education for pupils in any combination of kindergarten through grade 12, but excludes home schools as that term is defined in 20-5-102(2)(e), MCA.

(19) and (20) remain as proposed but are renumbered (22) and (23).

AUTH: 50-1-206, MCA

IMP: 50-1-203, 50-1-206, MCA

37.111.804 PRECONSTRUCTION REVIEW (1) Before construction commences, plans for construction of a new school or an addition to or an alteration of an existing school must be submitted to the department or local health authority for review and approval. Plans must include the following where applicable:

(a) location and detail of classrooms used for science or science laboratories, ~~home economics~~ consumer science, art classrooms, art supply rooms, mechanic/carpentry, and ~~shops~~ industrial arts, including location and ~~venting~~ ventilation detail of lockable storage area of chemicals and other hazardous products;

(b) through (2) remain as proposed.

(3) Schools ~~will~~ must be constructed in locations which present the least risk of exposure to pollutants or other health hazards originating onsite or offsite. If potential environmental concerns are identified during the preconstruction process, and the Local Education Agency (LEA) still desires to consider the site, a more comprehensive environmental review must be performed with the help of the department, ~~or the~~ local health authority, or DEQ.

(4) The topography of the site must permit good drainage of surface water away from the school building to eliminate significant areas of standing water and infiltration of surface water into the school building.

~~(4)~~ (5) All chemical storage areas in new construction ~~should~~ must be constructed to maintain negative air pressure to eliminate contamination of the school's indoor air quality by being vented to the outside of the building.

~~(5)~~ (6) Gas supply lines serving science laboratories, ~~home economics~~ consumer science, ~~shops~~ industrial arts, and other rooms utilizing multiple outlets must have a master shut-off valve that is readily accessible to the instructor or instructors-in-charge without leaving the classroom or storage area.

~~(6)~~ (7) Shops Industrial arts classrooms or buildings and other rooms using electrically operated instruction equipment which presents a significant safety hazard to the student utilizing such equipment must be supplied with a master electric switch readily accessible to the instructor or instructors-in-charge without leaving the classroom or storage area.

(8) Janitorial storage spaces must be constructed to meet the following requirements:

(a) must be lockable;

(b) must include a storage area for equipment and chemicals; and

(c) must be vented to the outside of the building.

(9) Hot and cold water must be provided to handwashing sinks and shower facilities. Hot water must not be below 100° F nor exceed a temperature of 120° F.

(10) The department recommends the use of radon prevention strategies in new construction.

(7) (11) Construction may not commence until all plans required by (1) through ~~(6)~~(9) have been approved by the department or local health authority. The department or local health authority ~~shall~~ must complete this review within 60 days after submission to them of complete plans and specifications. Construction must be in accordance with the plans as approved unless permission is granted in writing by the department or local health authority to make changes.

(8) remains as proposed but is renumbered (12).

AUTH: 50-1-206, MCA

IMP: 50-1-203, 50-1-206, MCA

37.111.805 EXISTING BUILDING: CHANGE OF USE (1) An existing building not currently used as a school may not be used as a school without the prior approval of the department or local health authority.

(a) When a proposal to use an existing building as a school involves physical modification, plans meeting the requirements of ARM 37.111.804(1) through ~~(6)~~(9) must be submitted to the department or local health authority for review and approval. If no physical modification is involved, the department or local health authority may waive the requirement for submission of plans if an inspection by the department or local health authority indicates that the proposed school meets the requirements of this subchapter.

(b) The use of modular or mobile buildings in response to temporary or permanent closure of the existing school facility, segments thereof, or classroom overflow may be granted a one-year written exemption from the requirements of ARM 37.111.804 by the department or local health authority. Plans to continue use of modular or mobile buildings past one year must be shared with the local health authority or department.

AUTH: 50-1-206, MCA

IMP: 50-1-203, 50-1-206, MCA

37.111.810 INSPECTION (1) Representatives of the department or local health authority must be permitted to enter any school at any reasonable time for the purpose of making inspections to determine compliance with this subchapter. Annual ~~internal~~ inspections must be conducted by a school administrator, facility manager, or other staff member approved by the school administration, as well as having a department or local health authority inspection once a year, or as more often if necessary. The department or local health authority may determine that special circumstances or local conditions warrant inspections with greater or less frequency. Upon receiving a complaint, the local health authority may determine if more inspections are necessary.

(2) and (3) remain as proposed.

(4) Following each inspection, representatives of the department or local health authority ~~shall~~ must give the school administration a copy of an inspection report which notes any deficiencies and sets a time schedule for compliance. The report must document deficiencies ~~include written citations for every rule violation.~~

AUTH: 50-1-206, MCA

IMP: 50-1-203, 50-1-206, MCA

37.111.811 PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS (1) A school must comply with the following physical requirements:

~~(a) Adequate lockable, vented, and convenient janitorial facilities including a sink and storage area for equipment and chemicals must be provided.~~

(b) remains as proposed but is renumbered (a).

~~(c)~~ (b) Adequate coat/jacket and book storage for each ~~pupil~~ student must be provided.

~~(d)~~ (c) Beginning September 1, 2021, The the school shall have and follow written policies and procedures regarding the storage, administration, and lawful disposal of prescription, nonprescription, and over-the-counter medication.

~~(e)~~ (d) All non-emergency medication must be kept in a locked, nonportable container, stored in its original container with the original prescription label. Epinephrine, naloxone, and student emergency medication may be kept in portable containers and transported by the school nurse or other authorized school personnel.

(e) Food is not allowed to be stored in refrigeration units with medications.

~~(f) The school~~ Schools must comply with the applicable requirements of Section 7 of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938 (29 U.S.C 207) and 39-2-215, MCA, requiring employers to provide a nursing mother reasonable break time and a place to express breast milk after the birth of her child. ~~The school must provide a place for an employee to express breast milk.~~

(g) The school must provide reasonable accommodations for ~~lactating pupils~~ students and staff on the school campus to express breast milk, breastfeed an infant child, or address other needs related to breastfeeding. Reasonable accommodations include, but are not limited to, ~~all the following:~~

(i) access to a ~~private and secure room~~ place, that is shielded from view and free from intrusion from the public, students, and other staff, other than a toilet room or sick room, to express breast milk or breastfeed an infant child;

(ii) through (iv) remain as proposed.

(h) The school must take measures consistent with the programmatic and developmental needs of its students to ensure the safe use and secure storage of any equipment including but not limited to: kitchen appliances, ~~shop~~ industrial arts equipment, maintenance tools, and hazardous art supplies.

(i) To reduce the spread of animal-borne diseases, livestock and poultry must be located more than 50 feet from food service areas, offices, or classrooms except those offices and classrooms associated with animal husbandry activities or other demonstrations as approved by the school administration. In classrooms, offices, or food service areas where livestock and poultry are approved by the administrator, animals must not have contact with eating or serving surfaces.

(2) remains as proposed.

AUTH: 50-1-206, MCA

IMP: 50-1-203, 50-1-206, MCA

37.111.812 SAFETY REQUIREMENTS (1) Janitorial and other storage areas that contain toxic or hazardous materials must be kept locked between periods of use. Custodial closets, boiler rooms, and other areas where hazardous or poisonous compounds are stored ~~should~~ must be inaccessible to students.

(2) and (3) remain as proposed.

~~(4) Water Hot and cold water must be provided to handsinks handwashing sinks and shower facilities. Hot water may must not be below 100°F not nor exceed a temperature of 120°F.~~

(5) remains as proposed but is renumbered (4).

~~(6) The topography of the site must permit good drainage of surface water away from the school building to eliminate significant areas of standing water and infiltration of surface water into the school building.~~

(7) and (8) remain as proposed but are renumbered (5) and (6).

~~(9) (7)~~ Playground inspection results must be made available for review by the local health authority or the department upon request.

~~(40) (8)~~ Periodic maintenance and repair is must be performed on playground equipment according to the manufacturer's specifications. Repairs, not including the leveling of fall protection material, must be documented.

(11) remains as proposed but is renumbered (9).

AUTH: 50-1-206, MCA

IMP: 50-1-203, 50-1-206, MCA

37.111.825 HEALTH SUPERVISION AND MAINTENANCE (1) and (2) remain as proposed.

(3) If a ~~child~~ student or a staff member develops symptoms of any reportable communicable or infectious illness as defined by ARM 37.114.203 while at school, the responsible school officials shall do the following:

(a) isolate the ~~child~~ student or staff member immediately from other ~~children~~ students or staff;

(b) if the individual is a student, inform the parent or guardian as soon as possible about the illness and request him or her to pick up the ~~child~~ student; and

(c) consult with a physician, other qualified medical professional, or the local county health department to determine if report the case should be reported to the local health officer pursuant to 37-2-301, MCA.

(4) Schools shall develop and enforce policies on first aid which include, at a minimum, the following:

(a) and (b) remain as proposed.

(c) emergency coverage, including the presence of a person with a ~~currently~~ valid American Red Cross, ~~or American Heart Association,~~ or American Health and Safety Institute CPR and first aid certification from an equivalent first aid course, during school-sponsored activities, including field trips, athletic, and other off-

campus events. Recommendations for first aid supplies, health history tracking, emergency contact forms, chronic disease management training, and policies may be secured from the Department of Public Health and Human Services, Public Health and Safety Division, Food and Consumer Safety Section and the Chronic Disease Prevention and Health Promotion Bureau, 1400 Broadway, P.O. Box 202951, Helena, Montana 59620-2951.

(5) In addition to the requirements of 50-40-104 and 20-1-220, MCA, "no tobacco use/electronic cigarette" signs must be posted at school building entrances and should be clearly visible in each hallway, entryway, gymnasium, lunchroom, and restroom, though not in each classroom. Smoking Tobacco/electronic cigarette use must be prohibited in school vehicles at all times while used by children for school-related functions.

(6) In addition to the requirements of this rule, school officials should also be aware of the need to comply with the laws and rules relating to the immunization of children in ARM Title 37, chapter 114 and communicable disease reporting in 37-2-301, MCA. Copies of these requirements may be obtained from the Department of Public Health and Human Services, Public Health and Safety Division, ~~Office of Epidemiology and Scientific Support~~ Communicable Disease and Epidemiology Section, 1400 Broadway, P.O. Box 202951, Helena, Montana 59620-2951, or by visiting the website at <https://dphhs.mt.gov/publichealth/epidemiology>.

(7) remains as proposed.

AUTH: 50-1-206, MCA

IMP: 50-1-203, 50-1-206, MCA

37.111.832 WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM (1) through (7) remain as proposed.

(8) ~~Starting October 1, 2019, schools~~ Schools must sample all water fountains and sinks used for food preparation. All other potential human consumption fixtures (HCF) must be sampled, unless the school or school district submits a testing plan to the DEQ to test a representative sample of potential HCFs in the school for lead. Proposed testing plans will be approved or denied by the DEQ. Initial samples must be taken ~~within one year of the start date~~ by December 31, 2021. All samples must be analyzed by a Montana certified lab using EPA-approved standard drinking water methods for the detection and quantification of lead.

(a) Schools ~~shall~~ must submit to the department a basic schematic and inventory identifying plumbing materials, all fixture locations, and those fixtures meeting the definition of a HCF. Templates for creating the schematic and inventory are available from the department or the Montana Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) and ~~should~~ can be used to complete this requirement. Lead service lines must be clearly identified in the inventory and should be considered for replacement.

(b) The schematic and inventory ~~shall~~ must be maintained by the school and shall record any repair, modification, or change in water source that may result in a change in lead exposure from water. Sample results for each HCF must also be maintained in conjunction with the plan and inventory.

(c) remains as proposed.

(d) Each first-draw sample for lead must be ~~one liter~~ 250 milliliters in volume and must have stood motionless in the plumbing system of each sampling site for at least six hours. For fixtures with hot and cold water, first-draw samples ~~shall~~ must only be collected from the cold water. First-draw samples may be collected by a school representative instructed in the proper sampling procedures specified in this rule.

(e) All sample results must be submitted electronically to DEQ in a format approved by the department. All sample results must be submitted to DEQ no later than ~~48~~ 72 hours after the school has received the results. Sample results may be submitted to DEQ by certified labs on behalf of the school.

(f) through (h) remain as proposed.

(9) By September 1, 2021, All all schools shall must create and implement a flushing program unless the school meets the waiver requirements indicated under (9)(c).

(a) Schools ~~shall~~ must use the template provided by the department to produce their flushing program.

(b) Flushing will be required following any period of time during which the school is inactive.

(c) remains as proposed.

Table 1.

Bin Placement	Lead Detection	Follow-up Actions
1	Above 15.0 ug/L	Immediately discontinue use of the affected HCF by physical removal or plumbing disconnection. Remediation is required before the school can resume use of the HCF, subject to the follow-up sampling requirements of Table 2. Remedial action must be completed within 6 months of the bin determination.
2	5.0 ug/L up to 15.0 ug/L	Evaluate the conditions at the affected HCF. Determine appropriate remedial action(s) to reduce lead concentration(s) to below 5.0 ug/L. Remedial action must be completed within 6 months of the bin determination. <u>Remediation is required before the school can resume use of the HCF, subject to the follow-up sampling requirements of Table 2. Schools may continue to use the HCF until remediation has occurred only if a daily flushing program for the HCF is implemented.</u>
3	Below 5.0 ug/L	HCF below 5.0 ug/L does not require remedial action but <u>routine monitoring must be sampled according to conducted as stated in Bin 3 of Table 2.</u>

Table 2.

Bin Placement	Routine and Follow-up Sampling Requirement
1	Each Bin 1 HCF will be required to be resampled after remediation to show effectiveness of the remediation effort before it is returned to service. The HCF must be resampled within one year of the sample <u>taken after the remediation</u> that returned the fixture to service <u>to confirm that the HCF continues to deliver water below 5.0 ug/L.</u>
2	Each Bin 2 HCF must be resampled after remediation. The HCF must be resampled within one year of the HCF's last sample.
3	<u>Routine Monitoring</u> - Each Bin 3 HCF must be sampled within every 3 years <u>once every 3 calendar years of the last sample date</u> to confirm that the HCFs continue to deliver water below 5.0 ug/L. <u>Schools may submit a waiver to sample HCFs on an alternative frequency. Waivers must be submitted to the DEQ in writing using a form approved by the department. Sampling frequency may be adjusted by the DEQ based on test results and inventory.</u>

AUTH: 50-1-206, MCA

IMP: 50-1-203, 50-1-206, MCA

37.111.833 SEWAGE WASTE WATER SYSTEM (1) In order to ensure ~~sewage waste water~~ is completely and safely disposed of, a school must:

- (a) connect to a public ~~sewage waste water~~ system meeting the requirements of ARM Title 17, chapter 38, subchapter 1; or
- (b) if the school is not utilized by more than 25 persons daily at least 60 days out of the calendar year, including staff and students, and an adequate public ~~sewage waste water~~ system satisfying the requirements of ARM Title 17, chapter 38, subchapter 1 is not available, utilize a non-public system whose construction and use meet the construction and operation standards contained in DEQ Circular 4.
- (2) remains as proposed.
- (3) A ~~sewage waste water~~ system design of a type other than described in this rule may be utilized only if it is designed by a professional engineer and offers equivalent sanitary protection as determined by the department, DEQ, or local health authority.

AUTH: 50-1-206, MCA

IMP: 50-1-203, 50-1-206, MCA

37.111.840 LAUNDRY FACILITIES (1) remains as proposed.

(2) Towels and other laundry items must be machine washed at a minimum temperature of 120°F for a minimum time of ten minutes and dried to greater or equal to 130°F for ten minutes in a hot air tumble dryer.

AUTH: 50-1-206, MCA

IMP: 50-1-203, 50-1-206, MCA

37.111.841 CLEANING AND MAINTENANCE (1) A school must comply with the following cleaning and maintenance requirements:

(a) through (l) remain as proposed.

(m) All cleaning supplies need to have an ~~EOA~~ EPA registration number, a "use by" reading letter, be stored with approved ventilation, and ~~stored~~ out of the reach of ~~children~~ students.

(n) and (o) remain as proposed.

AUTH: 50-1-206, MCA

IMP: 50-1-203, 50-1-206, MCA

37.111.846 NOXIOUS PLANT AND ANIMAL CONTROL (1) through (4) remain as proposed.

(5) Schools must develop and implement an approved Integrated Pest Management (IPM) program beginning September 1, ~~2020~~ 2021. Students, parents, and staff ~~will~~ must be notified when chemicals for IPM are going to be used.

(6) and (7) remain as proposed.

(8) Except as provided in (9)(c), at least 24 hours before the application of a pesticide to an area of the school that is used by or is accessible to ~~children~~ students, the school administrator must notify parents or guardians of ~~children~~ students of the application. A notice of application must include:

(a) through (i) remain as proposed.

(9) During the school term the required notification must be made by individual notice delivered by phone, face-to-face oral communication, electronic mail, postal mail, or facsimile. A school or school district may also develop a registration system to provide this notification only to those parents who wish to receive the notification. If the school or school district develops a registration system, the school administrator must provide written notice to the parents or guardians of the ~~children~~ students at the beginning of the school year, or upon a ~~child's~~ student's enrollment, that pesticides may be used in or around the school, and must explain to each parent or guardian how to register to be notified at least 24 hours before a pesticide treatment.

(a) remains as proposed.

(b) Immediately before starting the application of a pesticide, the certified applicator must post in the area of the school where the pesticide is to be applied, a sign 8.5x11-inch in size, or greater. ~~The department recommends that the print f~~Fonts must be no smaller than 26 point (one-fourth inch). The school administrator must ensure the sign remains posted and ~~children~~ students are kept out of the treated area until the reentry interval on the label, if any, has expired, or, if the label does not specify a reentry interval, for at least 24 hours.

(c) A school administrator may authorize an immediate pesticide treatment without prior notification if the school administrator determines an emergency exists. An emergency includes an immediate and unanticipated threat to the health and safety of the individuals at the school. An emergency does not exempt the school from the requirements of ~~(9)(f)~~ (10).

(d) through (d)(ii) remain as proposed.

(iii) applications of rodenticides in tamper-resistant bait stations or in areas inaccessible to ~~children~~ students; and

(iv) applications of silica gels and other ready-to-use pastes, foams, or gels that will be used in areas inaccessible to ~~children~~ students.

(10) and (10)(a) remain as proposed.

(b) If a school administrator authorizes a pesticide application under (9)(c), all the information that is required in a notice under ~~(9)(e)~~ (8) must be included in the record.

(c) Records ~~required to~~ must be kept for at least five years, and must be made available to the local health authority, the department, or the public for review upon request.

AUTH: 50-1-206, MCA

IMP: 50-1-203, 50-1-206, MCA

5. The department has thoroughly considered the comments and testimony received. A summary of the comments received and the department's responses are as follows:

COMMENT #1: A commenter submitted a comment in support of the proposed rules and expressed concern for their grandchildren who attend Montana schools.

RESPONSE #1: The department thanks the commenter for their support.

COMMENT #2: A commenter expressed concern with the transparency of the rule revision process and requested an extension of the public comment period.

RESPONSE #2: The department developed the proposed rules with input from partners and provided stakeholders multiple opportunities to participate. Stakeholders from whom the department solicited feedback on the draft proposal of the rules included the Office of Public Instruction (OPI), School Administrators of Montana, Montana School Boards Association, Montana Association of School Nurses, Department of Labor and Industry, MEA-MFT, Quality Education Association, Montana Rural Education Association, Montana Indian Education Association, Montana Small School Alliance, Montana Association of School Business Officials, and the Montana Board of Public Education. Additionally, all stakeholders have had the opportunity to participate in the rulemaking through the public hearing and comment period provided for under the Montana Administrative Procedure Act (MAPA). The department extended the public comment period to September 16, 2019.

COMMENT #3: Multiple commenters expressed a concern that it may be difficult for schools to comply with all the rule changes at the same time. Commenters suggested a staggered implementation of the rules.

RESPONSE #3: The department has set staggered implementation dates for the rules.

COMMENT #4: A commenter expressed concern about the rules and asked the department to reconsider the rules, as the commenter felt that they are onerous, will be another unfunded mandate that will burden schools financially, and are unnecessary as schools already have policies and procedures necessary for these safety issues.

RESPONSE #4: The department disagrees with the commenter on multiple points. While some schools may have policies in place that address different aspects of the proposed rule amendments, many schools do not have sufficient policies in place to fully protect their students and staff by providing safe and healthy learning environments. Many of the rule changes are updates meant to align with current laws and best practices. The rule changes which will result in significant fiscal impact will be supported by funding from the department and partner organizations like the DEQ.

COMMENT #5: A commenter offered the opinion that the rules are not clear or concise and left many open questions. The commenter's general stance was that the proposed rule amendments should not be approved for multiple reasons. The commenter felt that it is not possible for their school district or other districts to comply with the rules by October 1, 2019. The commenter also stated that the proposed rules would create a funding crisis and a new district position would be needed, as adding this work load onto an already busy employee would not be prudent.

The commenter requested that the department go back and work with school districts across the state to discuss how schools can improve safety procedures in Montana schools.

RESPONSE #5: Due to the extended comment period, schools will not be required to comply with any additions or changes to the rules by October 1, 2019. The department has included additional language in the rule that allows for staggered implementation of the rules over multiple years. The department has added language to emphasize school district local control. The majority of proposed rule changes allow for individual schools to set policies that work best for them while still meeting the rule requirements.

The department disagrees that the rules would create a funding crisis. Many school districts are already meeting various rule requirements that have been added to this rule to match current laws and best practices. Schools will have multiple years to

comply with the rules to the best of their ability. The department and other partners will provide technical assistance.

COMMENT #6: A commenter questioned whether implementing the water lead testing requirement on October 1, 2019 is feasible for schools.

RESPONSE #6: Due to the extended comment period, schools will not be required to comply with any additions or changes to the rules by October 1, 2019. The department has included additional language in the rules that allow for staggered implementation of the rules over multiple years.

COMMENT #7: A commenter requested that the lighting and heating sections in the current rules be kept because they are necessary to protect the health and safety of students and staff. The commenter also maintains that the sections help the department collaborate with state and federal regulatory authorities.

RESPONSE #7: The department is not proposing to amend the lighting standards set forth in ARM 37.111.830. Heating requirements were removed because they are addressed in the international building code applicable through Department of Labor and Industry administrative rules.

COMMENT #8: Multiple comments from the OPI disagreed that the only significant fiscal impact for schools would be from lead testing requirements. The commenters shared information from a survey of schools that indicated a need for training, technical assistance, and financial resources. Commenters also stated that schools expressed concern they would not be able to meet multiple rule requirements due to staff limitations. Surveyed schools were unable to determine potential financial impacts based on information provided by the surveyor. Some schools felt that there would not be significant fiscal impacts based on the information they have been given.

RESPONSE #8: The department disagrees that there will be additional significant, measurable fiscal impact. The department has included staggered implementation dates for multiple subsections of the rules to ease any administrative burden on schools. The department also plans to provide training and technical assistance to assist schools in implementing the rules. Multiple rule provisions have been moved to the pre-construction section so that current schools may be grandfathered in.

COMMENT #9: Multiple commenters from the OPI requested that the department develop guides, checklists, and sample policies for districts which can be customizable by district size. The commenters state these resources will be instrumental in assisting schools with implementation of these rules.

RESPONSE #9: The department will develop guides, checklists, and sample policies for districts. These materials will be distributed to schools in 2020 and on an ongoing basis as new guidance is developed.

COMMENT #10: A commenter felt that the number of changes placed on schools at one time creates an implementation burden. The commenter would like to understand the timeline as well as the resources available to support school districts of various sizes. The commenter would also like to know the expectations of their involvement.

RESPONSE #10: The department added staggered implementation dates throughout the rules to address the concerns expressed by this commenter and others. The department will work with schools, local health authorities, the DEQ, education partners, and other government and non-profit organizations to inform and support school districts as they work towards creating and maintaining healthy learning environments.

COMMENT #11: Multiple commenters expressed that tasks required of schools under the proposed rules are outside the scope of educator training and may require specialized training and support. Due to this, the commenters requested a staggered implementation to allow schools to effectively implement each new change.

RESPONSE #11: See Response #5.

COMMENT #12: A commenter expressed concern about jurisdiction over Hutterite colonies and who is responsible for ensuring these schools are compliant.

RESPONSE #12: The school districts responsible for the oversight of Hutterite colony schools are ultimately responsible for ensuring these schools comply with these rules to the best of their ability. If Hutterite schools are nonpublic and nonaccredited, the school rules would not apply to them.

COMMENT #13: Multiple commenters requested the department extend the comment period on the proposed rulemaking to the end of September 2019 because schools are not currently in session.

RESPONSE #13: The department extended the comment period to September 16, 2019.

COMMENT #14: A commenter requested the department and DEQ include stakeholders in the rulemaking process in a meaningful way.

RESPONSE #14: See Response #2. The department has carefully considered all comments received, which has led to the revision of the proposed rules as set forth in the final adoption notice.

COMMENT #15: A commenter requested the department provide a list of which education advocates and persons at the OPI the department contacted as part of the proposed rulemaking.

RESPONSE #15: The department has provided the list of individuals and organizations to the commenter.

COMMENT #16: A commenter requested the department participate in informal discussions about the proposed rulemaking with stakeholders and asked the department to be more transparent and collaborative during the rulemaking process.

RESPONSE #16: See Response #2. The department has been transparent and worked collaboratively with stakeholders throughout development of the rules.

COMMENT #17: A commenter stated the majority of the proposed rules will negate local control of Montana's school systems.

RESPONSE #17: The department disagrees. Schools are responsible for providing safe learning environments for their students and staff. The majority of these rules allow schools to determine school and district policies and procedures to comply with these fundamental health and safety rules.

COMMENT #18: A commenter stated she opposes the rules as currently written and the process leading to the proposed rules. The commenter also stated the rules need to be revised to ensure they are not an "empty mandate" to schools.

RESPONSE #18: The response to comment # 2 addresses involvement of stakeholders as part of the rulemaking process. The department disagrees the rules are an "empty mandate."

COMMENT #19: Multiple commenters stated the OPI was not meaningfully included in the rulemaking process. The commenters stated the copy of the draft rules provided in August of 2018 to OPI was significantly different from the proposed rulemaking notice.

RESPONSE #19: The department disagrees. The response to Comment # 2 addresses involvement of stakeholders as part of the rulemaking process. The OPI was afforded the opportunity to provide public comment like any other individual or organization and has done so. The proposed rules, as filed, are not substantively different from the draft that was shared with OPI in August of 2018.

COMMENT #20: A commenter stated the department failed to follow through with its commitment to continue to consult with stakeholders on the proposed rules following the August 2018 draft copy of the rules.

RESPONSE #20: The department disagrees. After receiving feedback from a fraction of the consulted stakeholder organizations, the department offered to share a final draft with stakeholders when the draft was ready to be submitted. The department notified stakeholders when the proposed rulemaking notice was filed.

COMMENT #21: Multiple commenters from OPI stated that the department's fiscal impact statement is inadequate because the rule will have a significant fiscal cost beyond just lead testing, such as record keeping, administrative expenses, training, and technical assistance costs of implementing the rules. The commenters further stated that school staff will have to spend significant time to implement new requirements within the rules, which will take time away from educating students.

RESPONSE #21: The department disagrees and believes the fiscal impact statement was appropriately drafted. The rules can be successfully implemented with limited additional time investment on the part of current school staff. The department has included staggered implementation dates and is committed to providing guidance and technical assistance to schools to reduce any perceived administrative burden.

COMMENT #22: A commenter stated that persons directly affected by the rules have not had an opportunity, or been afforded the opportunity by the department, to meaningfully participate in the rulemaking process.

RESPONSE #22: See Response #2.

COMMENT #23: A commenter requested the department communicate with schools about potential sources of funding available to implement the rules.

RESPONSE #23: The department will continue to communicate with schools about available funding to assist with the rule implementation.

COMMENT #24: A commenter stated that all schools are not the same and the proposed rules need to take into account the unique nature of rural schools. The commenter noted there are 92 one-teacher schools in Montana and many of these school systems have no administrator onsite, at most a "lead teacher." The commenter referenced prior comments which included a breakdown of enrollment by school system size. The commenter pointed out lead teachers at these schools will be responsible for implementing the rules within their respective schools.

RESPONSE #24: The department has revised the rules to address challenges faced by rural schools. The department has added staggered implementation dates to allow schools multiple years to establish and implement policies required by the rules. The department has also moved several requirements to the pre-construction rule (ARM 37.111.804) to avoid imposing structural alterations for existing schools that may not have the resources to make changes.

COMMENT #25: A commenter stated the impact of the proposed rules should be considered not just in the context of individual schools, but on school systems.

RESPONSE #25: The department considered the impact on school systems in the course of developing and proposing these rules.

COMMENT #26: A commenter stated the statement of reasonable necessity should address the number of students in Montana who have asthma rather than using nationwide data. The commenter stated Montana data, rather than nationwide data, should be the driving force behind the rules.

RESPONSE #26: Nationwide and Montana data on the number of school children who have asthma is nearly identical. Nearly 1 in 12 Montana children and nearly 1 in 13 children nationwide have asthma.

COMMENT #27: A commenter stated the data behind the proposed rules is compelling.

RESPONSE #27: The department thanks the commenter for their support.

COMMENT #28: A commenter suggested the department consider a 2008 study conducted for the Montana legislature on schools.

RESPONSE #28: The department has reviewed the 2008 study.

COMMENT #29: A commenter stated the department should consider how schools will actually implement the proposed rules.

RESPONSE #29: The department has considered this throughout development of the proposed rules and will provide example policies, checklists, forms, technical assistance, and guidance to assist schools with implementation of the adopted rules.

COMMENT #30: A commenter proposed that the department add the American Health and Safety Institute First Aid and CPR certification to a list of accepted valid first aid and CPR certifications that must be maintained by staff members present at school events.

RESPONSE #30: The department agrees. Language has been added to ARM 37.111.825 that qualifies the American Health and Safety Institute first aid and CPR certification as a valid first aid and CPR certification.

COMMENT #31: A commenter remarked that the new requirement to have a CPR certified person attending all activities and field trips could be a difficult task.

RESPONSE #31: The requirement to have a CPR certified person attending all activities and field trips already exists under ARM 37.111.825 and is not a new requirement under the proposed rules.

COMMENT #32: A commenter asked if the requirements under ARM 37.111.805, EXISTING BUILDING: CHANGE OF USE, apply to a new or used mobile/portable modular building brought on premises that is intended to be a temporary or permanent setting for additional office, storage, classroom, or other extra functional space.

RESPONSE #32: Language was added to the rule allowing schools to apply for an annual exemption of up to one year for modular or mobile buildings. Exemptions must be approved by the department.

COMMENT #33: Several commenters requested that the department address what they view as a threshold issue involving application of 1-2-113, MCA et seq. The commenters stated these statutory provisions prohibit adoption of the rules or require an extension of the implementation date until such time as the legislature provides a means to fund implementation of the rules. The commenters requested that the department either provide a direct source of funding to allow schools to comply with those new mandates out of its own state and federal sources of revenue, or, in the alternative, that the department delay the effective date of its rules as required by 1-2-113, MCA.

RESPONSE #33: The rules have been proposed in compliance with the MAPA and the department's rulemaking authority under 50-1-206, MCA. The department does not believe the provisions of 1-2-113, MCA, et seq, are applicable. Funding has been secured to cover the initial cost of lead testing required under ARM 37.111.832. The department will continue to work with schools to locate additional sources of funding to assist with implementation of the rules.

COMMENT #34: A commenter asked what is to be done with inspection forms used by the school to conduct indoor air quality inspections.

RESPONSE #34: The department has revised the rules to clarify that schools are required to maintain these records on site for no less than three years under New Rule I (37.111.826).

COMMENT #35: A commenter asked how administrators will be trained on conducting annual ventilation system checks to ensure they operate within manufacturers' parameters.

RESPONSE #35: The department will provide a brief checklist for schools to use to assist with ventilation system checks. Ventilation system manufacturers provide operating and maintenance instructions. Schools may contact system manufacturers or HVAC maintenance professionals for system specifications.

COMMENT #36: A commenter asked how much time it takes to complete the annual indoor air quality inspection including the inspection, potential staff training, and finalizing the report.

RESPONSE #36: The annual internal inspection checklist, to be provided by the department, is two pages in length. The overall time spent on the inspection depends on the size of the school building or buildings. The inspection may take as little as 30 minutes to 2 hours in small to medium-sized schools and anywhere from

1 to 5 hours in larger schools with multiple buildings. Inspections can be conducted at any time through the calendar year.

Training is not required, though the department will explore opportunities to provide indoor air quality trainings for interested facility managers, lead teachers, and administrators.

There is no additional reporting required beyond completion of the checklist and no additional significant time is needed to finalize or file the report. The school must maintain records of the checklist but is not required to post the results online.

COMMENT #37: A commenter asked how the department determined there would be no anticipated fiscal impact from New Rule I (37.111.826) on indoor air quality.

RESPONSE #37: The department determined that several components of internal air quality inspections are already conducted by maintenance or facility management staff in many schools. Schools are being asked to assess the condition of the roof and attic, ground level air intakes and outtakes, exhaust vents, bathroom drains, chemical usage and ventilation, radon levels, combustion appliances, and the condition of interior paint. Schools should complete the checklist to the best of their ability.

The inspection may take as little as 30 minutes to 2 hours in small to medium-sized schools and anywhere from 1 to 5 hours in larger schools with multiple buildings. Inspections can be conducted at any time throughout the calendar year. Schools not performing the basic components of an indoor air quality inspection may be putting the health of their students and staff at risk.

COMMENT #38: A commenter recommended that indoor air quality inspections and ventilation system checks be performed by staff at the local health department who are trained on air ventilation systems to reduce the burden on schools.

RESPONSE #38: Inspections can be easily conducted by facility managers or other school staff approved by the administrator using the two-page checklist to be provided by the department. Schools are welcome to request assistance from the local health department to perform indoor air quality inspections, but these inspections and ventilation system checks are ultimately the responsibility of the school.

COMMENT #39: Multiple commenters requested that schools with air filters be required to use filters rated between MERV 8 and 13 as recommended by the National Air Filtration Association and the Environmental Protection Agency. Commenters also proposed changes to the rule language which would require schools to use MERV 13 or greater efficiency filters during wildfire smoke events.

RESPONSE #39: Changes have been made to require that schools with air filters must use filters rated between MERV 8 and 13 if their HVAC system is capable. It is

recommended that schools use filters with greater efficiency during wildfire smoke events, but the department will not require this.

COMMENT #40: A commenter suggested revising New Rule I (37.111.826) and provided language to correct grammar and improve language clarity.

RESPONSE #40: The department has revised New Rule I (37.111.826) in response to this comment and others received during the comment period.

COMMENT #41: A commenter suggested adding a requirement that schools must address asthma prevention by developing a comprehensive school program based on the most current medical guidelines. The commenter indicates that this is needed to help schools effectively protect the rising levels of asthma, and related effects, in children.

RESPONSE #41: While asthma is a leading cause of school absenteeism, the department believes it is best to let the schools determine their chronic disease policies.

COMMENT #42: Multiple commenters suggested adding a requirement for radon testing and provided evidence supporting the health risks of elevated radon levels, as well as proposed testing and a mitigation plan.

RESPONSE #42: The department understands the risk of radon and has added language recommending new construction use radon prevention strategies. The department will provide guidance on what these techniques include. Schools will not be required to test for radon at this time. The department will continue to work with schools and local partners to encourage radon testing.

COMMENT #43: A commenter expressed concern that there is no deadline for compliance with New Rule I (37.111.826) "Indoor Air Quality." The commenter also asked if there is a recommendation for electrostatic filters that do not have MERV ratings.

RESPONSE #43: The department has set an effective date of September 1, 2020, for implementation of this rule. The rule has been revised to clarify that HVAC filter efficiency requirements only apply to HVAC systems with these types of filters. Language was also added to the rule requiring schools using electrostatic air filters to clean the filters according to manufacturer specifications.

COMMENT #44: A commenter recommended the department develop a notification system for administrators, so they do not have to search for and monitor the changing air quality standards from the department.

RESPONSE #44: Air quality standards do not change. Air quality standards and health effect categories embraced by the department are based on the National Ambient Air Quality Standards. The recommended outdoor air quality and activity

guidelines were developed by the department and the DEQ with input from the OPI. School administrators are responsible for assessing air quality using ambient air quality readings from the DEQ, other local air quality monitors, or visibility guidelines. The DEQ maintains the Today's Air website, which houses links to air quality guidelines and standards along with hourly air quality data for making decisions. Upon assessing air quality, the school and district have authority to cancel or proceed with outdoor events.

COMMENT #45: Multiple commenters stated New Rule II (37.111.827) "Outdoor Air Quality" is vague and asked what the best practices are for sealing a school building to outside air during poor air quality.

RESPONSE #45: The department will provide a sample protocol schools can modify to fit their school campus. The department is requesting that schools close the building off to outside air to the best of their ability. Actions will vary from school to school, but some simple steps may include closing windows, keeping exterior doors closed as much as possible, posting signage asking students, staff, and visitors to not prop open exterior doors, setting HVAC system air conditioners to recirculate if possible, changing HEPA filters to MERV 13 or greater efficiency in HVAC systems, and using portable air cleaners. The rule has been revised for clarity.

COMMENT #46: A commenter asked how training and technical assistance will be provided to schools regarding the best practices of sealing a school building.

RESPONSE #46: No training is needed to understand how to limit infiltration of outside air into a school during times of poor air quality. A sample protocol will be provided to schools and technical assistance will be provided as necessary.

COMMENT #47: A commenter asked how the department determined there would be no fiscal impact to schools to perform protocol development and implementation under New Rule II (37.111.827) "Outdoor Air Quality."

RESPONSE #47: The department determined that there would be no anticipated fiscal impact because a sample modifiable protocol will be provided for schools and schools can determine their protocol during regularly scheduled school board meetings.

Implementation will vary from school to school based on building specifics and staff capacity. The department is asking schools to determine which strategies will work for their individual situation. The strategies a school chooses will determine whether additional funds will be spent on things like more efficient HEPA filters or portable air cleaners. Schools will have until September 1, 2020 to add a protocol to their school policies and begin implementing the protocol.

COMMENT #48: A commenter asked if the department will provide schools a sample of the protocol, so it can be adopted without each district being required to write their own protocol.

RESPONSE #48: The department will provide a sample protocol that schools can modify to their school campus.

COMMENT #49: A commenter recommended changing the language in New Rule II (1) (37.111.827) from "shall" to "must."

RESPONSE #49: The department agrees. Schools are not required to follow the outdoor activity guidelines, but they are required to consult the guidelines as part of their decision-making process. Schools are encouraged to follow the guidelines and develop policies that will work best for them.

COMMENT #50: A commenter noted that the term "shop" is not current terminology used in education. "Industrial Arts" is the correct terminology to be used in the rules.

RESPONSE #50: The department agrees and has revised the rules accordingly.

COMMENT #51: A commenter asked how it was determined that the development and maintenance of a Chemical Hygiene Plan (CHP) and the designation of a Chemical Hygiene Officer (CHO) would not have a fiscal impact.

RESPONSE #51: The department determined that the development of a CHP could be completed in schools, where applicable, with the help of staff and administrators. Many districts with these types of laboratories are aware of the hazardous chemicals they use. This requirement simply asks schools to establish a more formal method of tracking the storage, use, and disposal of these hazardous chemicals. Schools do not need to dedicate additional FTE in order to designate a CHO. A CHO can be a teacher or administrator with knowledge of the chemicals the school is using. Schools with science, art, and industrial art laboratories will be given multiple years to develop a CHP. The department will provide examples of school CHPs to assist schools with implementing the rule.

COMMENT #52: A commenter asked who will provide the annual training and cover the training costs for someone in the district to be trained as the CHO.

RESPONSE #52: Free laboratory safety and CHO training is available through the Occupational Safety and Health Administration's online OSHAcademy. Additional training may be obtained at the cost of the school district if they feel it is necessary. The department will explore opportunities to bring chemical hygiene trainings to Montana.

COMMENT #53: A commenter stated that one-teacher schools will fail to meet the requirements of the rules if their teacher is not a certified science teacher.

RESPONSE #53: The department disagrees. The department is aware that most one-teacher schools may not have a certified science teacher. The rules do not require that the CHO must be a certified science teacher. The rules require a qualified faculty member. This faculty member should be someone with knowledge of the hazardous chemicals on school grounds. The requirement does not apply to schools that do not have science, industrial, or art laboratories.

COMMENT #54: Multiple commenters expressed concern and sought clarity on application of language in New Rule III (37.111.813) stating, "the department may work with the Department of Labor and Industry to determine if stop work orders are necessary."

RESPONSE #54: The department has revised the rules to remove language referencing stop work orders.

COMMENT #55: A commenter recommended that the department include the acronym for Chemical Hygiene Plan, CHP, to allow for space and cost savings in the rule, and ease of readability.

RESPONSE #55: The department agrees and has revised the rule accordingly.

COMMENT #56: A commenter recommended that Material Safety Data Sheets be changed to Safety Data Sheets to meet current chemical safety convention.

RESPONSE #56: The department agrees and has revised the rules to reflect current chemical safety convention.

COMMENT #57: A commenter recommended alternative language in New Rule III(6) (37.111.813) that would allow for space and cost savings in the rule, and to correctly provide for the oversight of states with jurisdiction over these areas.

RESPONSE #57: The department agrees and has revised the rule to address this recommendation.

COMMENT #58: A commenter asked why SDS sheets must be available to the public online. The commenter stated that SDS need to be available to people working with the chemicals.

RESPONSE #58: The department agrees and has revised the rule language accordingly.

COMMENT #59: A commenter expressed support for New Rule III (37.111.813), but stated the change will require funding to implement as that was a barrier for voluntary changes in prior discussions with schools.

RESPONSE #59: To ease any administrative burden on schools, the department has included a staggered implementation of the rules to allow schools more time to come into compliance.

COMMENT #60: A commenter proposed adding a starting date of September 1, 2020, for New Rule III (37.111.813).

RESPONSE #60: Based on this comment and other comments, the department has revised the rule to establish an effective date of September 1, 2021.

COMMENT #61: A commenter suggested editing the term "designed" to "designated" in (3)(b) of New Rule III (37.111.813).

RESPONSE #61: The department agrees and has corrected this typographical error.

COMMENT #62: A commenter stated that the rules as a whole are difficult to read and when references to external documents are mentioned, it seems laborious to ask school administrators to cross reference citations to understand the requirements. The commenter stated that all requirements should be spelled out in the rule in which they apply without the expectation of school staff doing research to find referenced regulations.

RESPONSE #62: The department disagrees. The publications referenced within the rules have been adopted and incorporated by reference under New Rule IV (37.111.802) in accordance with 2-4-307, MCA. As set forth in New Rule IV (37.111.802), copies of the publications may be obtained from the department.

COMMENT #63: A commenter asked if it is appropriate to put guidelines and handbooks in the rule. The commenter goes on to say that when a new version of the handbook is produced, the rules become outdated.

RESPONSE #63: The publications referenced within the rules have been adopted and incorporated by reference under New Rule IV (37.111.802) in accordance with 2-4-307, MCA. In the event the referenced publications become obsolete or outdated, the department can revise the rules through a future rulemaking process.

COMMENT #64: A commenter stated that districts who run a 4-day school week may not meet the definition of a school as defined in the rules because they are not used at least 180 days per year.

RESPONSE #64: The definition of "school" has been revised to include all schools independent of the number of days the building or buildings are used for instruction throughout the year.

COMMENT #65: A commenter suggested that definitions for the terms "bin placement" and "bin placement sample" be revised so that they are more easily understood by those who are not water quality specialists.

RESPONSE #65: The terms "bin placement" and "bin placement sample" refer to the categories in the table under ARM 37.111.832. The department does not believe that someone must be a water quality specialist to understand the table categories.

COMMENT #66: A commenter recommended including "radon" in the definitions and provided an example definition.

RESPONSE #66: Radon has been added to the definitions section of the rules.

COMMENT #67: A commenter recommended including "sanitarian" in the definitions and provided an example definition.

RESPONSE #67: The definition of sanitarian has been revised.

COMMENT #68: A commenter recommended including "LUX" in the definitions and provided an example definition.

RESPONSE #68: The department disagrees because this proposed rulemaking does not alter lighting standards for schools.

COMMENT #69: A commenter pointed out that the correct term for "home economics" is now "consumer science."

RESPONSE #69: The department agrees and has revised the rules accordingly.

COMMENT #70: A commenter asked how it was determined that the new additions to districts for construction will not have increased economic costs to a school/community. The commenter noted that ARM 37.111.804(4), (5), and (6) appear to add to the cost of constructing a new building.

RESPONSE #70: The department disagrees with the commenter's assessment that this will have a significant economic impact beyond what is already required under existing building code regulations.

All new requirements under (4), (5), and (6) can be easily added into the building plans for any new construction or renovation at a minimal cost.

COMMENT #71: A commenter recommended a revision to ARM 37.111.804(1)(a) to change "venting" to "ventilation" to use current mechanical systems vernacular.

RESPONSE #71: The department agrees and has revised the rule accordingly.

COMMENT #72: A commenter recommended a language change in ARM 37.111.804(3) from "Schools will be constructed" to "Schools must be constructed" to replace false imperative language. The commenter also suggests defining Local Education Agency.

RESPONSE #72: The department agrees. The rule has been revised to correct false imperative language and "Local Education Agency" was added to the definition rule.

COMMENT #73: A commenter recommended a language change in ARM 37.111.804(4) from "All chemical storage areas should be" to "All chemical storage areas must be" to replace false imperative language.

RESPONSE #73: The department agrees and has revised the rule to correct false imperative language.

COMMENT #74: A commenter recommended a language change in ARM 37.111.804(7) from "The department or local health authority shall" to "The department or local health authority must" to replace false imperative language.

RESPONSE #74: The department agrees and has revised the rule to correct false imperative language.

COMMENT #75: In the event, the local health authority is being requested to complete the pre-construction review, a commenter asked that consideration be given regarding local authority capacity. The commenter believes that the activity may require increased local training and funding. The commenter requested that a default clause be included to add the department if the local health authority does not have capacity.

RESPONSE #75: The existing rules require schools to submit plans for construction of a new school or an addition to or an alteration of an existing school. The established rule language already stipulates that schools must submit their plans to the department or local health authority. The department will provide training to sanitarians and other local county health department officials on the various amendments to these rules that will impact their work.

COMMENT #76: A commenter asked if subsections in ARM 37.111.804 are optional because of the term "should." The commenter requests that training and funding be provided if the local health authority is being identified to complete preconstruction reviews.

RESPONSE #76: Rule language has been changed from "should" to "must" to correct false imperative language. Local health authorities and the department are identified as the authorities to perform pre-construction reviews in the existing rules.

COMMENT #77: A commenter asked if a local health authority can charge a time and effort fee for review of a submitted plan review application with regard to new school construction or renovation of an existing school and/or charge a separate site visit fee to perform a pre-operational inspection of the completed new construction or renovations.

RESPONSE #77: Fees that may be charged are outside the scope of this rulemaking process.

COMMENT #78: A commenter suggested ARM 37.111.804 be revised to correct grammar in (1) and to replace false imperative language in (4).

RESPONSE #78: The department agrees and has revised the rule accordingly.

COMMENT #79: A commenter asked what the nature of complaints may be under ARM 37.111.810. The commenter indicated that, as the local health authority in their area, they do not currently respond to complaints, but instead they assess and refer complaints to organizations that can respond based on the type and level of concern.

RESPONSE #79: The department cannot predict the nature of individual complaints that may be submitted to local health authorities. The rule simply states that upon receiving a complaint, the local health authority may determine if more inspections are necessary. If the local health authority determines it is unnecessary to provide additional follow-up, they have the authority to refer the complaint to other local partner organizations.

COMMENT #80: A commenter stated that ARM 37.111.810(4) is awkwardly worded.

RESPONSE #80: The department has revised the rule to provide more clarity.

COMMENT #81: A commenter asked the department to clarify if the school administration would use the same type of department-approved form referred to in ARM 37.111.810 as the local health authority.

RESPONSE #81: Different forms will be created for schools and local health authorities. The internal inspection form will be a brief checklist that follows the requirements of the administrative rules. The department will work with local health authorities to incorporate different aspects of the rule requirements into existing forms used to inspect school food services and other areas of the school.

COMMENT #82: Multiple commenters asked if there will be a mechanism such as a cooperative agreement that establishes the duties and responsibilities of the local health jurisdiction to qualify for reimbursement of time and effort from the department under ARM 37.111.810.

RESPONSE #82: The department will explore funding opportunities to help offset local health authority expenses when performing inspections. Existing rule requirements encourage local health authorities to perform school inspections and require them to conduct plan reviews.

The rule has been revised to allow schools and districts to determine alternative inspection frequency if the local board of health and the local health authority deem it necessary.

COMMENT #83: A commenter suggested ARM 37.111.810 be revised by removing the term "internal" from (1) requiring annual internal inspections by the administrator, facility manager, or other school staff member. The commenter indicated it is redundant to spell out internal when the rule goes on to describe the school staff who must conduct inspections.

RESPONSE #83: The department agrees and has revised the rule accordingly.

COMMENT #84: A commenter suggested removing the language "more often if necessary" and changing it to "as necessary" in ARM 37.111.810. The commenter states this will allow the department and local health authorities more flexibility.

RESPONSE #84: The department agrees with the reasoning provided by the commenter and has revised the rule accordingly.

COMMENT #85: A commenter asked how the department determined there would be no fiscal impact to schools who need to add locks or ventilation to janitorial facilities under ARM 37.111.811.

RESPONSE #85: The existing rules already require janitorial and other storage areas containing toxic or hazardous materials to be kept locked between periods of use. The department has moved the requirement for all janitorial facilities to be locked and ventilated to the pre-construction section of the rules so it will apply only to new construction or additions.

COMMENT #86: A commenter asked how the department will define "adequate" coat/jacket storage under ARM 37.111.811 and if this requirement will impact schools that have students double on locker space.

RESPONSE #86: This requirement is in the existing rules. The department defines adequate coat/jacket storage as sufficient space to hang a coat or jacket without coming in contact with the coat or jacket of another student. All schools must provide "adequate" coat/jacket storage to the best of their ability.

COMMENT #87: A commenter asked if the department will provide a draft policy and procedure to all schools regarding the storage, administration, and lawful disposal of prescription, nonprescription, and over-the-counter medication to assist with the implementation of ARM 37.111.811.

RESPONSE #87: The department will provide example policies and procedures to schools. Schools will be given until the start of the 2021 school year to establish and implement medication policies. The department will provide technical assistance when necessary.

COMMENT #88: A commenter asked if the department can provide an implementation plan for how schools with one staff member will be able to provide a nursing mother reasonable break time to express breast milk and how they can provide a place for the employee to express breast milk under ARM 37.111.811.

RESPONSE #88: The department will not provide an implementation plan for schools to comply with established state and federal law. This section of the rule requires schools comply with existing federal law (29 U.S.C. 207) and state law (39-2-215, MCA) to the extent it is applicable. The department notes that reasonable break time for nursing mothers provided for under 29 U.S.C. 207 does not apply to an employer that employs less than 50 employees. 29 U.S.C. 207(r)(3).

COMMENT #89: A commenter asked if the department will consider an exemption to the requirement under ARM 37.111.811 for schools to provide reasonable accommodations for lactating pupils on the school campus to express breast milk, breastfeed an infant child, or address other needs related to breastfeeding. The commenter suggests an exemption should apply to one room school houses or other buildings where a private and secure room other than the bathroom is not available for breastfeeding. The commenter goes on to ask if a school would need to construct an addition to the facility to meet this requirement, which may have substantial fiscal impacts not addressed in the statement of reasonable necessity.

RESPONSE #89: The department has added an exception to the rule for schools where no such space other than a bathroom is available. Schools are not required to construct additions to the facility in order to comply with the rule.

COMMENT #90: A commenter asked if schools will be found in violation of the rule requiring that all livestock and poultry must be located more than 50 feet from food services areas, offices, or classrooms, if a classroom pet, that is also considered as poultry or livestock, is in the classroom during times of food service.

RESPONSE #90: Poultry or livestock housed in the classroom and approved by the administrator must be caged or contained away from food service areas and the animal must not contact eating or serving surfaces at any time. Additional clarifying language has been added to the rule to account for meals in the classroom.

COMMENT #91: A commenter suggested adding the following provision to ARM 37.111.811: "Medication requiring refrigeration must be kept in a locked, non-portable, mechanical refrigeration unit, manufactured to hold medications at required safe temperatures, and approved by the department. Food is not allowed to be

stored in a unit with medications." The commenter stated that this language should be added to ensure students and staff medications are safely stored on site.

RESPONSE #91: The department partially agrees and has revised the rule to include a portion of the proposed language. The department does not believe it is reasonable to require all schools to purchase new refrigeration units when the systems currently in place for most schools are sufficient for the most commonly used medications. Additional language has been added allowing authorized personnel to carry medication for off-site events.

COMMENT #92: A commenter suggested a language change to ARM 37.111.811 to correct and update language to current conventional language.

RESPONSE #92: The department has revised the rule to reflect modern conventional language.

COMMENT #93: A commenter suggested ARM 37.111.811 include over-the-counter medication in the original package with manufacturer label and instructions.

RESPONSE #93: The rule includes over-the-counter medication.

COMMENT #94: A commenter suggested that ARM 37.111.811 be revised to address that medication must be accessible and portable to leave the school with the school nurse. The commenter states this is needed in response to medication administration needs of individual students.

RESPONSE #94: The department has revised the rule to add language to allow for lockable, portable medication containers, that may be transported by the school nurse or other personnel authorized by the school administrator.

COMMENT #95: A commenter suggested adding the following language to ARM 37.111.811: "Shower and bathing facilities must be provided with anti-slip surface mats." The commenter indicates that this is to prevent accidental falls from walking on wet surfaces.

RESPONSE #95: The department recommends that schools use anti-slip surfaces or mats in shower and bathing facilities but will not require it.

COMMENT #96: A commenter asked if other animals, such as birds, turtles, lizards, snakes, frogs, and other types of reptiles or amphibian species, should be added to ARM 37.111.811(1)(i) because they are known to carry Salmonella and E. coli.

RESPONSE #96: The department recognizes the potential for the spread of other diseases by the animals listed, but this rule is directed specifically at livestock and poultry. The department will not adopt additional language to include these animals at this time but recommends that schools prevent contact between all animals and eating surfaces.

COMMENT #97: A commenter asked how it was determined that the provision requiring hot water be provided at handwashing sinks would not have a fiscal impact.

RESPONSE #97: While many schools already have hot water provided at handwashing sinks, the department has moved this language to the pre-construction rule so it will apply only to new construction or additions.

COMMENT #98: A commenter asked how it was determined that the provision under ARM 37.111.812 requiring the topography of the site must permit good drainage of surface water away from the school building to eliminate areas of standing water and infiltration of surface water into the school building would not have a fiscal impact.

RESPONSE #98: This requirement is in the existing rule. The department added clarifying language that surface water must drain away from the building to prevent water infiltration into the building. The department has moved this provision to the pre-construction section of the rules to ensure that only new constructed schools or new construction additions must account for drainage away from the school.

COMMENT #99: A commenter asked if there will be training for staff on how to conduct playground inspections under ARM 37.111.812. The commenter asked how the department determined that playground inspections would not have any fiscal impact.

RESPONSE #99: A brief playground inspection checklist will be provided by the department to school districts. This playground inspection checklist does not require training to accurately complete. Any school staff may complete the playground inspection over the course of multiple days. The majority of schools typically have staff members or volunteers who supervise recess. These employees or volunteers can conduct a playground inspection with relative ease. Inspections should take less than one hour to complete and can be done during recess or any other time. Small schools with very limited staff likely have a very small playground to inspect. These inspections will take significantly less time to complete.

COMMENT #100: Multiple commenters suggested a language change to ARM 37.111.812(1) to replace false imperative language.

RESPONSE #100: The language has been revised to correct false imperative language.

COMMENT #101: A commenter suggested revising ARM 37.111.812(4) to simplify the intended meaning of the requirement.

RESPONSE #101: This language has been moved to the pre-construction rule.

COMMENT #102: A commenter asked how often testing of water temperature will be conducted. The commenter stated that even if this is required monthly, this is a huge task to verify and calibrate to comply. The commenter then asked if this is meant to be tested once and then anytime there may be an issue.

RESPONSE #102: The temperature parameters for hot water are an existing requirement in the current rules. There is no water temperature testing requirement in the rules. If a complaint is received, a school may need to test water temperature.

COMMENT #103: A commenter asked if the rules require school districts to hire or have a Certified Playground Safety Inspector (CPSI) on staff.

RESPONSE #103: School districts are not required to hire or maintain a CPSI on staff. Monthly playground inspections are simple and can be conducted in a short period of time by any number of staff members. A brief playground inspection checklist will be provided by the department.

COMMENT #104: A commenter asked if school districts are required under ARM 37.111.812 to document all repairs, including leveling fall protection material each time.

RESPONSE #104: Schools are required to document all repairs to playground equipment. Fall protection material is a necessary component of student safety, but it does not constitute playground equipment. Therefore, leveling fall protection material does not require documentation. The department has revised the rule for clarity.

COMMENT #105: A commenter indicated that if the local health authority is identified to complete the playground inspection review then training and funding is needed for the increased capacity. The commenter requested that a default clause be included to add the department if the local health authority does not have the capacity.

RESPONSE #105: Local health authorities are not required to complete playground inspections. As part of their inspections with a school, the local health authority should verify that the school has records of monthly internal playground inspections and repair records.

COMMENT #106: A commenter asked if the removal of ARM 37.111.812(4) and (5) apply to new construction.

RESPONSE #106: These sections were moved to the preconstruction rule and apply to new construction.

COMMENT #107: A commenter suggested adding the department to the language under ARM 37.111.812(9).

RESPONSE #107: Language has been added requiring playground inspections results be made available to the department or local health authority upon request.

COMMENT #108: A commenter suggested removing the word "Material" from "Material Safety Data Sheets" in ARM 37.111.812(4).

RESPONSE #108: The department has revised the rule accordingly.

COMMENT #109: Multiple commenters recommended that staff members be included in the requirement to isolate individuals with reportable communicable or infectious illness under ARM 37.111.825.

RESPONSE #109: The department agrees and has revised the rule accordingly.

COMMENT #110: A commenter requested that the department add language to ARM 37.111.825 clearly identifying who is responsible for reporting the disease when no health professional is present.

RESPONSE #110: The department has added clarifying language to the rule.

COMMENT #111: A commenter asked where schools go to get chronic disease management training under ARM 37.111.825 and who covers the cost.

RESPONSE #111: Schools may obtain chronic disease training from multiple places. The OPI features three online chronic disease trainings for school staff on their Teacher Learning Hub. Current trainings focus on Asthma, Diabetes, and Allergies and Anaphylaxis. These trainings are free to anyone who signs up for a free learning hub account.

In many counties and in many school districts, school nurses and local county public health nurses are capable of providing training to schools on common chronic conditions free of charge. These trainings can be done as stand-alone events or included as part of pupil instruction related (PIR) days. Schools may also be able to work creatively with healthcare providers in their community to bring training to their staff.

COMMENT #112: Several comments were received relating to the tobacco signage requirement under ARM 37.111.825. A commenter recommended updating language to reflect recent changes to tobacco laws and asks how signs will be provided to schools. A commenter stated tobacco signage is currently posted only at the entryway to each building and that the new signage requirement imposes significant fiscal costs due to additional signage cost and labor to install the signs. Several commenters suggested adding language to address vaping/e-cigarette usage.

RESPONSE #112: The rule has been revised to address the prohibition against e-cigarette usage. The existing rules already require that no smoking signs be posted

in each hallway, entryway, gymnasium, lunchroom, and restroom, though not in each classroom. Metal signs are available free of charge from the Montana Tobacco Use Prevention Program. Schools can order as many signs as needed and the signs will be shipped to the school free of charge. Schools must go to the Montana Tobacco Use Prevention Program's online storefront to order signs at <http://mtupp.allegrahelena.com/>.

COMMENT #113: A commenter suggested revising ARM 37.111.825 to correct and update language to current convention such as by referring to children as students. The commenter also suggested changes to correct false imperative language.

RESPONSE #113: The department has revised the rule to reflect current convention and to correct false imperative language.

COMMENT #114: A commenter suggested changing child to individual in ARM 37.111.825(3)(a). The commenter also suggested adding the following language to (3)(b) of the rule: "if the individual is a student,..."

RESPONSE #114: The department agrees and has revised the rule accordingly.

COMMENT #115: A commenter requested that the report of "symptoms" to the local health officer be removed from ARM 37.111.825. The commenter explained that the request surrounds the commonality of signs and symptoms and believes that the rule language is not consistent with the reporting requirements in 37-2-201, MCA, where the report is required to be made by physicians or practitioners of the healing arts, not school personnel.

RESPONSE #115: The rule has been revised to address the potential for the over-reporting of common symptoms. Schools without healthcare personnel on staff will be asked to consult with a physician, other qualified medical professional, or the local health authority if they suspect symptoms of reportable communicable or infectious illnesses.

COMMENT #116: A commenter advocated for keeping scoliosis screening in the rules. The commenter provided a joint opinion from the American Academy of Orthopedic Surgeons, the Scoliosis Research Society, the Pediatric Orthopedic Society of North America, and the American Academy of Pediatrics based on a literature review that concluded there is a lack of evidence for or against screening and the benefits outweigh the harm, because scoliosis screening is inexpensive.

RESPONSE #116: Schools may continue to conduct scoliosis screenings, but the department will no longer recommend it because the best available evidence does not support continuation of the recommendation.

COMMENT #117: A commenter asked what the criteria are for mental health screenings under ARM 37.111.825 and if the department will provide guidelines.

RESPONSE #117: The department has not yet determined criteria for mental health screenings. As this is only recommended and not required, schools may determine the criteria they would like to use if they choose to conduct mental health screenings.

COMMENT #118: A commenter asked if a continuous towel system that supplies the user with a clean towel would be considered "common-use" as described in ARM 37.111.825(1).

RESPONSE #118: Common-use towels refer to non-disposable towels that are meant to be used more than once. A continuous towel system or paper towel dispenser would not be considered as common-use because separate individuals would not be using the same piece of paper towel.

COMMENT #119: Multiple commenters expressed support of the provisions requiring schools to test their water supply system for lead. The commenters agreed that lead is a serious threat to children's health and acknowledge that the rule will help to identify and remediate the worst cases of lead contamination in Montana schools.

RESPONSE #119: The department agrees and thanks the commenters for their support of the proposed rule.

COMMENT #120: A commenter expressed support for the provision requiring schools to test their water supplies for lead. The commenter is pleased that funding has been identified to assist schools with the cost of lead testing and is confident that if a school is found to need significant remediation, those funds will be found also.

RESPONSE #120: The department thanks the commenter for their support of the proposed rule.

COMMENT #121: A commenter is concerned that funding could become a barrier in the future if all schools are required to test their water supply for lead every three years with no exceptions. The commenter recommended longer times between testing under certain circumstances. The commenter would support more frequent lead testing if a school's water supply changed. The commenter also supports testing every three years in any school where lead levels in the water supply were found to be above 5µg/L.

RESPONSE #121: The rule has been revised to provide additional flexibility regarding routine monitoring frequency. Sampling frequency may be adjusted on a case-by-case basis depending on test results and inventory.

COMMENT #122: A commenter expressed uncertainty around the flushing and remediation requirements for water sources that reveal lead levels between 5µg/L and 15µg/L. The commenter would like to know if fixtures in this range are going to

require follow-up testing to ensure that the flushing or other remediation successfully brought lead down to a safe level.

RESPONSE #122: The rule has been revised to include flushing as a temporary remediation option. Table 2 in ARM 37.111.832 outlines the sampling that is required to be performed after remediation.

COMMENT #123: A commenter suggested the department start a new rulemaking process under which it only moves forward with the lead water testing and abatement rule.

RESPONSE #123: The department disagrees with the suggestion. The department views all requirements in the proposed rules as priorities.

COMMENT #124: A commenter indicated that historically water testing has been a function of other departments, not schools or OPI. The commenter asked that testing be conducted not by school personnel, but by trained individuals with experience in water quality. The commenter stated the amount of training and technical assistance needed appears insurmountable.

RESPONSE #124: Historically OPI and schools have not been asked to consistently sample all human consumption fixtures (HCF) in the facility. However, there are schools that have worked with the DEQ to test their water supply as part of the public water supply system. Multiple school systems around the state also voluntarily test their water for lead. The process of collecting water samples is simple and does not require training. Sampling guidance documents will be provided to show the step-by-step procedure.

COMMENT #125: A commenter stated that they assume the lead testing timeline will be adjusted due to the extended public comment period.

RESPONSE #125: The department has adjusted the lead testing compliance date.

COMMENT #126: Multiple commenters stated that plumbing schematics and inventories may be difficult to create if records do not exist for many older and rural school buildings in Montana. The commenters asked how the department would advise schools to research the information and how the department determined there would be no fiscal impact for the time it will take to create a schematic and inventory.

RESPONSE #126: The department is not in a position to estimate the costs for each individual school of varying size and staff capability. Many schools may already have this information while others will need to review their system. Blueprints are not required, and the department will not require schools to use engineers or plumbers to draw their schematic and complete an inventory. The schematic can be a simple aerial photo or hand drawn sketch showing the fixtures and sample locations at the school. The DEQ will provide a template schools can

use to create basic schematics to the best of their ability. This can be completed by facility managers, administrators, or lead teachers.

COMMENT #127: A commenter felt that the sampling and remediation schedule proposed in Table 1 of ARM 37.111.832 is unreasonable for Montana schools. The commenter cited the enforceable EPA maximum contaminant level of 15 ppb from the Lead and Copper Rule. According to the commenter there is no recommendation or directive backing the required follow-up action in bins 2 and 3 of Table 1. The commenter stated that the requirements are entirely arbitrary and imposing sampling and remediation actions on the part of the school will provide little benefit to students.

RESPONSE #127: Language has been removed requiring schools to remediate within a six-month time frame. Schools must not use HCFs that test high for lead until remediation and additional testing has occurred. The level of 5 ppb was selected as the action level based on the Practical Quantitation Limit (PQL) for lead. The proposed regulation is separate from the EPA Lead and Copper Rule. The current standard for lead in bottled water set by the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) is also 5 ppb.

Guidance and technical assistance on the various remediation options will be provided to schools by the DEQ. The department disagrees that sampling and remediating high levels of lead in the school water system will provide little benefit to students. The evidence of how lead impacts child development is clear and is addressed in the statement of reasonable necessity.

COMMENT #128: A commenter stated that drinking water is not the sole source of lead exposure in children and gave examples of other common sources of exposure. The commenter cited study results from the Journal of Public Health Management and Practice that examined blood lead exposure sources among Alaska children. The commenter said that Montana students spend just 23% of their week in school, or as low as 18.5% in districts with a 4-day school week, meaning that the large majority of lead exposure would happen outside of school.

RESPONSE #128: The department disagrees with the sentiment expressed by the commenter. The commenter is correct that drinking water is not the sole source of lead exposure in children. However, the department cannot neglect a potential significant source of lead in schools. Reducing lead in school drinking water systems is one way to reduce lead exposure to children.

COMMENT #129: A commenter expressed that local data does not show elevated blood lead levels are a problem of imminent public health importance, making extensive testing of potential lead sources an inefficient use of limited resources. The commenter recommended the department avoid reacting to national water quality stories and would like the department to use funding to help Montana health care providers establish baseline lead levels in Montana children.

RESPONSE #129: The department disagrees. Blood lead levels are not widely and frequently tested in Montana and therefore it is currently impossible to know how many children have been exposed to high levels of lead from various sources. The department cannot assume that because school-aged children are rarely tested for lead that they are not exposed to lead. By addressing a likely source of exposure to lead, we can help eliminate the risk of exposure in schools. Lead testing in schools is a priority for the EPA and federal funding is available to support testing.

COMMENT #130: A commenter suggested that the words "should," "shall," "will," and "must" in ARM 37.111.832(8)(a), (b), (d), and (9)(a) and (b) be updated to "must" to replace false imperative language.

RESPONSE #130: The department agrees and has revised the rule accordingly.

COMMENT #131: A commenter asked how school water supply systems that fall under the EPA's jurisdiction will be addressed. The commenter supports the proposed rule requirement and shared opinions on how the department may consider distributing funding, as well as the importance of reporting transparency and support for schools who do find elevated levels of lead.

RESPONSE #131: Schools in which the water supply system falls under the jurisdiction of the EPA will still be required to test their water supply systems for lead. School administrators will be responsible for working with the EPA to ensure compliance with this rule.

The DEQ will determine the best way to distribute federal EPA funding to support testing. The department and DEQ will continue to work together to identify other funding opportunities to help with on-going testing and remediation costs.

COMMENT #132: A commenter stated that the new requirement to test every HCF in each building would become very costly, unless a new funding source has been identified by the department. The commenter added that testing HCF in all 36 schools in the district could cost thousands of dollars.

RESPONSE #132: The department will work with the DEQ to determine the best way to distribute federal funding to support testing. The department and DEQ will continue to work together to identify other funding opportunities to help with on-going testing and remediation costs.

COMMENT #133: A commenter questioned the decision to sample all HCF and asked if the water is the concern or the fixtures are the concern. The commenter stated if the pH of the water is correctly regulated then the fixtures should not be a concern. The commenter suggested the following language to clarify what is being tested: "test the water that passes through the fixtures."

RESPONSE #133: Water quality at the schools is a concern. The chemistry of the water, along with the composition of the plumbing (piping, fixtures, and fittings), can

affect the quality of the water served. pH is only one of many factors in determining whether water is corrosive. Water temperature and alkalinity can also contribute to water corrosivity. Lead may also be released during the physical disruption to lead containing materials; i.e., pipe/fixture repair/replacement. The preferred remedy is lead source removal (i.e., removal of the lead containing fixtures, fittings, or piping).

Corrosion control treatment alters water chemistry, but does not eliminate the lead containing fixtures, fittings, or piping. This treatment can be more expansive to install and maintain and it may fail. Corrosion control treatment would also change a school's classification from a "service connection" (not regulated as PWS) to a "Public Water Supply" that would be subject to all of the PWS rules and regulations.

Schools must test all drinking fountains and sinks used in food preparation. The rule has been revised so that schools must test all other potential HCF unless the school or school district submits a plan to the DEQ to test a representative sample of the HCF in their facilities. Proposed testing plans will be approved or denied by the DEQ.

COMMENT #134: A commenter suggested that schools must report samples to the department as well as the DEQ.

RESPONSE #134: The DEQ and the department will coordinate to review testing results and contact schools that need additional assistance.

COMMENT #135: A commenter asked what the rationale is for 3 days as the inactive period under the water lead testing rule.

RESPONSE #135: The potential for lead to leach into water can increase the longer water is in contact with plumbing fixtures. Water of acidic or corrosive nature that has sat motionless in the interior plumbing will leach out metals in as few as 6 hours. Unidirectional flushing and reservoir turnover can be used to encourage fluid movement, minimize residence time, and replace stagnant water. Flushing does not suppress the process of leaching, but the movement of fluid helps to prevent the accumulation of contaminants in a localized area.

COMMENT #136: A commenter suggested the department revise the language in ARM 37.111.832(8)(b) to the following: "The schematic and inventory shall be maintained by the school and shall record any repair, modification, or change in water source that may result in a change."

RESPONSE #136: The rule has been revised to include the proposed language.

COMMENT #137: A commenter suggested adding the following descriptive language to ARM 37.111.832(7): "a suitable faucet apparatus for filling individual cups shall be designed to prevent contact with the lip-contact surface of glasses or cups."

RESPONSE #137: The department has chosen not to include this additional language at this time as it may place additional fiscal costs on schools.

COMMENT #138: A commenter suggested adding the clarifying term "tight-fitting lids" to ARM 37.111.833(1)(a).

RESPONSE #138: The department does not believe it is necessary to require tight fitting garbage lids. This may be included as part of a quality integrated pest management program that schools are required to develop. These type of program details are to be determined by the schools and not the department.

COMMENT #139: A commenter suggested changing the word "sewage" to "wastewater" to align with modern public health terminology.

RESPONSE #139: The department agrees and has revised the rule.

COMMENT #140: A commenter suggested revising ARM 37.111.840 to read "dried to greater or equal to 130°F for 10 minutes..." in order to be consistent with existing public accommodation rules.

RESPONSE #140: The department agrees and has revised the rule.

COMMENT #141: A commenter asked who approves properly vented storage areas under ARM 37.111.841. The commenter also asked how the department determined there would be no fiscal impact to schools needing to add ventilation to their storage closets.

RESPONSE #141: The requirement for janitor rooms to be ventilated already exists under the current rules. It is not a new requirement under the proposed rules.

COMMENT #142: A commenter stated that the requirements of ARM 37.111.841(1)(a), (b), (f), (g), and (h) may limit a custodian's ability to provide their professional services in the best way necessary by limiting the tools necessary to clean.

RESPONSE #142: The department disagrees. The department does not believe that ensuring janitorial storage rooms are lockable will impede a custodian's ability to provide professional services or limit the tools necessary to clean.

The department also does not believe that using toilet bowl and urinal cleaning materials for that purpose alone and separately storing these materials will impede the work of custodians. Storing materials separately simply means that these cleaning supplies must not come in contact with other cleaning supplies meant for other purposes.

COMMENT #143: A commenter asked if "EOA" registration number in ARM 37.111.841(1)(m) is a typo and should be "EPA."

RESPONSE #143: The department has corrected this typographical error.

COMMENT #144: A commenter suggested adding the following descriptive language to ARM 37.111.841(1)(c): "after use, mops shall be placed in a position that allows them to air dry without soiling walls, equipment, or supplies."

RESPONSE #144: At this time, no additional language will be added to this subsection of the rule.

COMMENT #145: A commenter stated that the language in ARM 37.111.842 is nebulous and creates confusion with schools. The commenter recommends the following language: "Licensure as a food establishment is required."

RESPONSE #145: The language is established in a current rule and is not a new proposal. Under 50-50-202, MCA, a retail food establishment is exempt from the licensure requirement if it is operated by a political subdivision of the state and the political subdivision employs a full-time sanitarian. Such establishments are still required to comply with the retail food establishment statutes in Title 50, chapter 50, MCA, and the department rules adopted under the statutes.

COMMENT #146: A commenter holds the position that ARM 37.111.842 conflicts with 50-50-102, MCA requiring food establishments to be licensed by the department. The commenter recommended that (1) should be written to state that according to 50-50-102, MCA schools must obtain a health department food establishment license. The commenter also recommended that (2) be reinserted.

RESPONSE #146: Please see Response #145. The department removed (2) of the rule because it is unnecessary for the department to adopt and incorporate by reference its own rules.

COMMENT #147: A commenter expressed that, as the local health authority, they are overseeing inspections and the specifications for food services.

RESPONSE #147: The department will continue to support the work of local health authorities performing food services inspections in schools and other establishments.

COMMENT #148: A commenter asked who approves integrated pest management programs and if there will be sample plans available for schools to use. The commenter expressed that the amount of detail and steps required to mitigate for pests appears to put an undue burden on schools, creating a situation where they may not have the resources to efficiently and effectively manage pests.

RESPONSE #148: Integrated pest management (IPM) programs do not need to be approved by any authority outside of the school. The local health authority will

check with the school when conducting inspections to ensure that the school has established and is implementing an IPM.

The department will provide example IPM programs to schools. Each school should tailor their IPM to their facility and situation. Many of the common steps identified in well-established IPM programs are already followed by schools.

COMMENT #149: A commenter pointed out that ARM 37.111.846(9)(c) references (9)(f) and the commenter cannot find (9)(f) within the proposed rules.

RESPONSE #149: The department has corrected this typographical error.

COMMENT #150: A commenter suggested that language be updated to replace false imperative language in ARM 37.111.846(5).

RESPONSE #150: The department has revised the rule to correct false imperative language.

COMMENT #151: A commenter recommended that the department change the language in ARM 37.111.846(9)(b) from "The department recommends that the print..." to "The department requires that the print...." The commenter stated that 26-point font is determined as readable font, so it must be required to provide health and safety.

RESPONSE #151: The rule has been revised to require at least 26-point font on pesticide application notices posted in the area where the pesticide is to be applied.

COMMENT #152: A commenter noted that it seems unnecessary and cumbersome to notify students, staff, and parents of pesticide use during summer months when school is not in session. The commenter suggested that a better method to identify and warn of areas where pesticide for weed mitigation has been applied would be to post signage at the site directing the public to contact the responsible party if any questions or concerns arise. The commenter also asked if a blanket warning that pesticide may be applied during the summer months would suffice as a warning.

RESPONSE #152: The department partially disagrees. The rule stated, "If pesticides are used outside the school term and the school is open or to be accessible by the public, the notification required must be prominently posted in a conspicuous location on the school premises at least 24 hours before the pesticide treatment is scheduled to begin."

If a school is not in session and not accessible to the public, no notification is required. If a school is not in session but is accessible to the public, signage must be posted. There is no provision that would require the school to notify students, staff, and parents of pesticide use beyond the signage near the area of use.

COMMENT #153: A commenter requested that the department include a definition of "pest" and asked if that includes bedbugs, lice, rodents, and pets.

RESPONSE #153: A definition of "pests" has been added to the definition section of the rules.

6. The department intends the following rules to be effective on the dates listed below:

New Rule I (37.111.826) INDOOR AIR QUALITY and New Rule II (37.111.827) OUTDOOR AIR QUALITY are effective September 1, 2020.

New Rule III (37.111.813) SCIENCE, INDUSTRIAL ARTS, AND ART LABORATORY SAFETY is effective September 1, 2021.

All other rules adopted and amended are effective upon publication unless specifically stated otherwise within a rule.

/s/ Robert Lishman
Robert Lishman
Rule Reviewer

/s/ Sheila Hogan
Sheila Hogan, Director
Public Health and Human Services

Certified to the Secretary of State January 7, 2020.

BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES OF THE
STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the amendment of) NOTICE OF AMENDMENT
ARM 37.85.105 pertaining to)
updating Medicaid fee schedules with)
Medicare rates, procedure codes and)
updating effective dates)

TO: All Concerned Persons

1. On November 8, 2019, the Department of Public Health and Human Services published MAR Notice No. 37-899 pertaining to the public hearing on the proposed amendment of the above-stated rule at page 1973 of the 2019 Montana Administrative Register, Issue Number 21. On December 27, 2019, the department published a notice of extension of comment period on the proposed amendment at page 2314 of the 2019 Montana Administrative Register, Issue Number 24.

2. The department has amended the above-stated rule as proposed.

3. The department has thoroughly considered the comments and testimony received. A summary of the comments received and the department's responses are as follows:

COMMENT #1: A provider association commented they did not have enough time to fully evaluate the department's proposed rule because the proposed fee schedule was not available during the comment period.

RESPONSE #1: In response to the comment the department extended the comment period to January 3, 2020, by filing a notice of extension of comment period on the proposed amendment. The department was able to provide and publish updated fee schedules to its website on December 27, 2019, allowing for public comment of the posted fee schedules.

COMMENT #2: A provider association commented that providing an extended comment period of six calendar days was inadequate and imposed a hardship on parties wishing to analyze the proposed amendment and prepare and submit comments.

RESPONSE #2: The department recognizes the extended comment period was for six days; however, the rule notice had already been open for public comment for 28 days, as required by 2-4-302, MCA. Each year, the department is obligated to adopt new codes that the federal government issues late in the year and which are to be implemented by the start of the following year. This process, including establishing rates and fee schedules to reflect the federal government's new procedure codes, is dependent on the federal government issuing the new codes and other pertinent

information. The department was able to provide and publish updated fee schedules to its website on December 27, 2019. The department made every effort to provide timely information about rates and fee schedules to providers and the public; however, the department was limited by the timing of the federal government's issuance of the new procedure codes.

COMMENT #3: A provider association commented that it supported the proposed rule amendment because it adopts increased reimbursement fees for providers effective January 1, 2020. The association, however, asserted that optometrists should be reimbursed a fee equal to the rate physicians are paid for performing the same services.

RESPONSE #3: The department appreciates the support. As provided in 53-6-125, MCA, the legislature has directed the department to establish a conversion factor for physicians with doctor of medicine or doctor of osteopathy degrees relative to the increase in the consumer price index for medical care for the previous year. The department uses the same resource-based relative value scale (RBRVS) methodology in determining reimbursement rates for physicians who are ophthalmologists and optometrists, and thus the professions are reimbursed in the same manner.

4. The department intends to apply this rule retroactively to January 1, 2020. A retroactive application of the rule does not result in a negative impact to any affected party.

/s/ Brenda K. Elias
Brenda K. Elias
Rule Reviewer

/s/ Sheila Hogan
Sheila Hogan, Director
Public Health and Human Services

Certified to the Secretary of State January 7, 2020.

BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the amendment of) NOTICE OF AMENDMENT
ARM 37.40.815, 37.40.816, and)
37.40.830 pertaining to hospice rate)
increase)

TO: All Concerned Persons

1. On December 6, 2019, the Department of Public Health and Human Services published MAR Notice No. 37-900 pertaining to the public hearing on the proposed amendment of the above-stated rules at page 2200 of the 2019 Montana Administrative Register, Issue Number 23.
2. The department has amended the above-stated rules as proposed.
3. No comments or testimony were received.
4. The department intends to apply increases in the hospice reimbursement rates retroactively to October 1, 2019. Decreases in hospice rates will not be applied retroactively, but will be effective upon adoption of the proposed rule amendments.

/s/ Robert Lishman
Robert Lishman
Rule Reviewer

/s/ Sheila Hogan
Sheila Hogan, Director
Public Health and Human Services

Certified to the Secretary of State January 7, 2020.

BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the amendment of) NOTICE OF AMENDMENT
ARM 37.81.304 pertaining to Big Sky)
Rx premium change)

TO: All Concerned Persons

1. On December 6, 2019, the Department of Public Health and Human Services published MAR Notice No. 37-903 pertaining to the public hearing on the proposed amendment of the above-stated rule at page 2204 of the 2019 Montana Administrative Register, Issue Number 23.

2. The department has amended the above-stated rule as proposed.

3. No comments or testimony were received.

4. These rule amendments are effective upon publication of this notice of amendment.

/s/ Brenda K. Elias
Brenda K. Elias
Rule Reviewer

/s/ Sheila Hogan
Sheila Hogan, Director
Public Health and Human Services

Certified to the Secretary of State January 7, 2020.

BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES OF THE
STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the amendment of) NOTICE OF AMENDMENT
ARM 37.85.204 pertaining to member)
copayment)

TO: All Concerned Persons

1. On November 22, 2019, the Department of Public Health and Human Services published MAR Notice No. 37-905 pertaining to the public hearing on the proposed amendment of the above-stated rule at page 2084 of the 2019 Montana Administrative Register, Issue Number 22.

2. The department has amended the above-stated rule as proposed.

3. The department has thoroughly considered the comments and testimony received. A summary of the comments received and the department's responses are as follows:

COMMENT #1: The department received a comment expressing support for eliminating copayment for Medicaid members.

RESPONSE #1: The department values the support from providers on the rule amendment.

4. The department intends to apply these rule amendments retroactively to January 1, 2020. A retroactive application of the rule does not result in a negative impact to any affected party.

/s/ Brenda K. Elias
Brenda K. Elias
Rule Reviewer

/s/ Sheila Hogan
Sheila Hogan, Director
Public Health and Human Services

Certified to the Secretary of State January 7, 2020.

BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the amendment of) NOTICE OF AMENDMENT
ARM 42.20.173 pertaining to)
statutory deadlines for request for)
informal classification and appraisal)
reviews)

TO: All Concerned Persons

1. On November 22, 2019, the Department of Revenue published MAR Notice No. 42-1006 pertaining to the public hearing on the proposed amendment of the above-stated rule at page 2092 of the 2019 Montana Administrative Register, Issue Number 22.

2. The department has amended ARM 42.20.173 as proposed.

3. No comments or testimony were received.

/s/ Todd Olson
Todd Olson
Rule Reviewer

/s/ Gene Walborn
Gene Walborn
Director of Revenue

Certified to the Secretary of State January 7, 2020.

BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the amendment of) NOTICE OF AMENDMENT
ARM 42.21.154, 42.21.155,)
42.21.158, and 42.22.1311 pertaining)
to trended depreciation schedules for)
valuing personal property)

TO: All Concerned Persons

1. On October 18, 2019, the Department of Revenue published MAR Notice No. 42-1007 pertaining to the public hearing on the proposed amendment of the above-stated rules at page 1838 of the 2019 Montana Administrative Register, Issue Number 20.

2. On November 13, 2019, a public hearing was held to consider the proposed amendment. No proponents or opponents were present, no proponent or opponent oral testimony was received, and the department received no written comments in support. The following person appeared as an interested person to the rulemaking and provided oral and written comments: Bob Story, Montana Taxpayer's Association (Montax). A written comment was also received by the department from State Representative Llew Jones, which the department answered directly to Representative Jones and is summarized in this adoption notice.

3. On December 27, 2019, the department filed an Amended Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Amendment to address errors in the Industrial Machinery and Equipment Trend Table Lookup located on page 18 of the Proposed 2020 Personal Property Depreciation Schedules and Trend Tables publication. In accordance with 2-4-305(8)(c), MCA, the department allowed additional time for the public to provide oral or written comment to the rulemaking until January 3, 2020.

4. The department amends ARM 42.21.154, 42.21.155, 42.21.158, and 42.22.1311 as proposed.

5. The department has thoroughly considered the comments received. A summary of the comments received, and the department's responses are as follows:

COMMENT 1: Mr. Story comments that Montax concurs with the department's plan to move the actual trended depreciation schedules (schedules) from the body of the ARM and placing them on the department's website with the caveat that schedules are placed so they are easily accessed, and the previous year's schedule is placed so comparisons can be made. The current placement of the schedules should be maintained, at least. The department may consider using the same format as was used when the schedules were contained in previous rule notices where old numbers were crossed out and the new numbers inserted.

RESPONSE 1: The department thanks Mr. Story for the comment. The department understands Mr. Story's formatting request pertaining to past rulemakings; using interline and underline to distinguish what is proposed for amendment and assures Montax that this will be the only instance of this type of formatting. Since the 2020 schedules are new - in this independent format - and the 2019 schedules are in rule, the department determined it best to propose the adoption and incorporation of the 2020 schedules as a new document; this would show all text without editing. The department feels this more accurately reflects the requirements of 2-4-307, MCA.

COMMENT 2: Mr. Story questioned whether it is the department's intention that an annual rule notice will be posted to notify the public of the adoption of the new schedules or are they automatically adopted once they are posted on the department's website? Or in other words, will ARM 42.21.155 be amended each year as the new schedules come into play?

Representative Jones forwarded similar comments from an individual who is an accountant and member of the tax review group asking about the department's intention in publishing the trend tables.

RESPONSE 2: The department followed the requirements of 2-4-307, MCA, and ARM 1.2.210 pertaining to the adoption and incorporation by reference of a resource or publication. In doing so, the department intentionally titled the schedules and their placement in ARM 42.21.155 to keep the annual amendment of the schedules subject to the posting, notification, and public comments requirements of the Montana Administrative Procedure Act (MAPA).

In approximately September of each year, the department will prepare the upcoming year's schedules and valuation tables and will interline and underline the prior year's version to illustrate what changes are being made and will watermark the schedules as "Proposed." The department will initiate a MAPA-compliant rulemaking to propose adoption of the new schedules and will follow MAPA and its internal procedures as it has done in the past with other rule proposals.

COMMENT 3: Mr. Story commented that Montax has concerns with the department's proposed amendments in ARM 42.21.154(7). While Montax agrees with the changes represented in (7)(a) through (c), it questions in (d) whether there should be some due process practice in place if the property owner has certified the value, but the filing amounts to providing a false statement if the certified value is not accurate.

RESPONSE 3: The department's proposed amendments in (7)(d) address situations where a taxpayer fails to provide the required information needed for the department to fairly value the equipment, or the department believes the information provided was not indicative of fair market value based upon an open arm's length transaction between a willing buyer and willing seller. Due process is provided through the normal appeals and AB-26 - Request for Informal Classification and Appraisal Review processes when taxpayers disagree with the department's

assessment or classification. If the taxpayer still feels aggrieved with the department's appraisal after the informal review, they can file a formal review with the county tax appeal board and then the state tax appeal board as outlined in 15-7-102, MCA.

COMMENT 4: The last of Montax's comments concern the actual trended depreciation schedules and trend factor tables. Mr. Story comments that like 2018, Montax does not see the logic in the numbers that appear in many of the new schedules compared to the old schedules. The pertinent changes appear to be in the trend factors. This results in a change in the final wholesale trended good number. Some of these trend factors are increasing, some are decreasing, and some stay the same for the same type of equipment depending on the age of the equipment. Some of the changes are small, less than 1%, and some are large at 4 or 5%. The whole process is complicated and seems not very transparent. It seems that there would be a benefit in a simpler process where there are not so many moving parts, some of which cancel the others out.

RESPONSE 4: Trending is a common and accepted appraisal practice and is part of the cost approach to valuation for personal property.

Trending is a method of estimating a property's current cost, as if new, where a trend factor is applied to the property's historical cost to convert it into an indication of current cost. Trending is intended to reflect the movement of prices over time. This "trended" cost is then depreciated to recognize the subject property is not new and has a lesser value than a new item of the same type of property.

The department uses cost index information from Marshal & Swift to develop its trend factors. Cost indexes allow for comparisons of costs between two years - a prior year to the current year. Each year's trend is an independent value and reflects the difference in cost for each year compared to the current year. Different market forces in one year compared to another year can result in non-linear trends.

To simplify the calculations, the department applies the trend factor to the depreciation percentage for each year instead of trending the acquired cost of each of the thousands of individual personal property items reported annually.

Support for the trending and depreciating methodology employed by the department can be found in authoritative appraisal texts such as "Appraising Machinery and Equipment" sponsored by the American Society of Appraisers.

COMMENT 5: Representative Jones' forwarded comment described in Comment 2 also states that the schedules the department changed for 2019 raised personal property taxes. The commenter contends that many taxpayers are unhappy about the increases.

RESPONSE 5: The department did receive feedback from taxpayers concerned with the original proposed trended depreciation table updates for the 2019 tax year. Based upon public comment and feedback, the department extended the rulemaking process and revised the schedules' values, where appropriate, to help alleviate these concerns. The department observed that property owners were generally very understanding once the issues were identified and the revisions were made.

/s/ Todd Olson
Todd Olson
Rule Reviewer

/s/ Gene Walborn
Gene Walborn
Director of Revenue

Certified to the Secretary of State January 7, 2020.

BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the amendment of) NOTICE OF AMENDMENT
ARM 42.13.1202 pertaining to beer)
wholesaler and table wine distributor)
limited delivery exceptions)

TO: All Concerned Persons

1. On October 18, 2019, the Department of Revenue published MAR Notice No. 42-1008 pertaining to the public hearing on the proposed amendment of the above-stated rule at page 1855 of the 2019 Montana Administrative Register, Issue Number 20.

2. On November 8, 2019, a public hearing was held to consider the proposed amendment. No proponents were present, no proponent oral testimony was received, and the department received no written comments in support. The following persons appeared as opponents to the rulemaking and provided oral comments: Brad Griffin, Montana Restaurant Association; Dan Graves, Whitefish Mountain Resort; Brian Clark, Fun Beverage; Jim Walker and Bob Petitt, Bridger Bowl, Inc.; Wayne Driscoll, Cardinal Distributing; Kristi Blazer, Montana Beer and Wine Distributor's Association (MBWDA); and Bob Riso, Hellroaring Saloon. Written comments were also received at the hearing from Brad Griffin, Brian Clark, and Kristi Blazer.

3. The department has amended the following rule as proposed, but with the following changes from the original proposal, new matter underlined, deleted matter interlined:

42.13.1202 BEER WHOLESALER AND TABLE WINE DISTRIBUTOR -
CONDITIONS FOR OPERATING (1) remains as proposed.

(2) When a beer wholesaler or table wine distributor's trucks and equipment are incapable of delivering alcoholic beverages to a retail licensee's premises due to the unique physical location of the retail licensee's premises - examples of which are premises located on an island or atop a mountain - ~~the beer wholesaler or table wine distributor may request the assistance of the retail licensee to deliver the alcoholic beverages if: the beer wholesaler or table wine distributor and retail licensee may seek prior department approval for an alternative delivery arrangement on a form provided by the department. If the department approves the alternative delivery arrangement request, the department shall provide the beer wholesaler or table wine distributor and the retail licensee a written summary of the conditions of the approved delivery arrangement. Failure to comply with the approved alternative delivery arrangement may subject the beer wholesaler, table wine distributor, or retail licensee to administrative action.~~

~~(a) the beer wholesaler or table wine distributor's employee remains with the alcoholic beverages to be delivered until delivery has occurred at the licensed~~

premises; and

~~(b) the beer wholesaler or table wine distributor seeks prior department approval on a form provided by the department.~~

(3) and (4) remain as proposed.

AUTH: 16-1-303, MCA

IMP: 16-3-212, 16-3-231, 16-3-232, 16-3-242, 16-3-301, 16-3-404, 16-3-406, 16-4-103, 16-4-106, 16-4-108, 16-4-402, 16-4-415, MCA

4. The department has thoroughly considered the comments and testimony received. A summary of the comments received and the department's responses are as follows:

COMMENT 1: All opposition commenters provided general testimony as to their respective wholesaler and retailer experiences regarding what they referred to as "servicing difficult to reach locations," which are premises in dangerous or difficult to reach locations for distributors, such as a mountain top bar or restaurant. All commenters testified about alcoholic beverage product delivery and the logistics of resupplying mountaintop bars and restaurants, and that the delivery of beer and wine is being made to alternate secured storage areas through which the retail licensee resupplies the hard-to-reach premises.

Mr. Graves supplemented his testimony with a brief video taken from a remote-controlled drone, which was shown to the hearing's attendants to illustrate Whitefish Mountain Resort, the handful of retail licensees operating on the mountain, and the route a distributor must take - in season and off-season - to deliver alcoholic beverages to the area's licensees.

RESPONSE 1: The department thanks the commenters for the comments. Mr. Graves' video and testimony showing the difficulties of delivering alcoholic beverages to Whitefish Mountain Resort is a good representation as to why the department is pursuing a rule amendment. The department understands that certain licensed retailer premises are in areas where a beer wholesaler or table wine distributor's trucks and equipment are unable to deliver, such as premises located on an island or premises situated atop a mountain with no road access.

COMMENT 2: Several commenters testified that their own delivery compliance concerns arose following the results of some recent alcoholic beverage code violations involving a high-profile retail licensee, its wholesale distributors, and the department.

Mr. Graves commented that he is wary whether the department is attempting to consider the commenting distributors and licensees in the same vein of non-compliance as the other recent violating licensees and offered that the commenters' circumstances are different.

RESPONSE 2: The department appreciates the retailers, wholesalers, and distributors bringing examples of their delivery concerns to the department's attention. For these hard to reach retail premises, the department has exercised its discretion to defer administrative action until a solution could be provided in rule. The department has further amended ARM 42.13.1202 to allow for retailers, wholesalers, and distributors to request an alternative delivery arrangement.

COMMENT 3: Some commenters stated that the current licensing requirement for the delivery and storage of alcoholic beverages to occur only at the licensed premises is impractical because it cannot be applied to all retail licensees, some of which conduct business through hard-to-reach premises.

Messrs. Graves, Clark, Walker, and Pettitt commented their opinions that the distributor delivery rules and policy enforcement issues were created by the department when it approved and issued on-premises consumption licenses in these hard-to-reach locations, and the department should have known that distribution of product to the licensed premises might not be possible given the hard-to-reach location of the premises.

Mr. Clark commended the department's willingness to propose a solution to address a "...[c]atch 22' of mutually conflicting administrative rules that by their current enforcement, after three decades of non-enforcement, cannot be fully complied without some reasonable and appropriate changes."

RESPONSE 3: The Montana Alcoholic Beverage Code requires beer and wine to be delivered to a licensed retailer's premises. Section 16-3-219, MCA. The department recognizes that throughout the years certain licensed retail premises with unique physical characteristics making deliveries not possible have been approved. As such, the department has made a commitment to address deliveries to these locations by rule.

The department's original proposal to require the wholesaler or distributor's employees to remain with the product until delivered at the retailer's licensed premises was not an unreasonable solution and is an option that was presented to the department by members of the alcoholic beverage industry. However, the department realizes this is not an ideal solution for all hard-to-reach retailers and has further amended ARM 42.13.1202. Those amendments are described in Responses 4, 6, and 7.

COMMENT 4: Mr. Griffin commented that the law regarding these difficult to reach locations needs to be changed and proposed working on legislation to fix this situation. However, since legislation won't take effect until May of 2021 at the earliest, Mr. Griffin believes the administrative rules need to allow businesses to function "...[i]n the same way that they have for decades - without fear of administrative actions."

Mr. Graves stated that until now the non-enforcement of the delivery laws amounted to prosecutorial discretion, and the department should continue this policy of discretion until the 2021 Legislature can address the situation, as Mr. Griffin recommends. Mr. Clark and Ms. Blazer concurred with these comments.

RESPONSE 4: The department believes the amendment of ARM 42.13.1202 will provide licensees with the flexibility to continue operation with minimal burden. The department proposes to further amend ARM 42.13.1202 to allow wholesalers/distributors and retailers the ability to request department approval for an alternative delivery arrangement. The department encourages the interested parties to seek legislation to address deliveries to premises with unique physical locations.

COMMENT 5: Several commenters expressed concern over the timing of the effective date of proposed rule changes because the 2019-2020 ski season starts in November and runs through April. If the rules become effective during this time, affected distributors and retail licensees may suffer substantial financial losses.

Messrs. Graves and Clark concurred with these comments, but stressed the economic impacts they feel the proposed rules would have on Whitefish Mountain Resort and the surrounding community.

Messrs. Walker and Petitt similarly commented with respect to Bridger Bowl ski area.

RESPONSE 5: The department understands the urgency for the retailers, wholesalers, and distributors impacted by these situations to have a solution in place for the upcoming 2019-2020 ski season. While rulemaking has progressed, the department has exercised its discretion to defer administrative action until a solution could be provided in rule. As the rule has now been amended, the department urges each affected retailer, wholesaler, and distributor to request an alternative delivery arrangement. Each instance will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis.

COMMENT 6: Messrs. Graves, Clark, Driscoll, Petitt, and Walker testified that the department's proposed rulemaking requirement that a distributor's employee remain with the alcoholic beverages to be delivered to a licensee is logistically unworkable because some licensees, like those at Whitefish Mountain Resort and Bridger Bowl, conduct product restocking by snowcat, snowmobile, or other specialized means - often after normal operating hours - and safety, worker's compensation insurance, and liability issues arise.

Mr. Riso commented that staffing issues for licensees are often impacted because restocking of these bars and restaurants has to be accomplished outside of normal operating hours. The result of keeping these establishments adequately stocked with available staff sometimes means that business hours are shortened, and several restaurants opt for a less than full meal service.

RESPONSE 6: As mentioned in Response 4, the department has further amended ARM 42.13.1202. The amended language no longer requires the distributor or wholesaler's employee to accompany the product to the retailer's licensed premises. Rather, the wholesaler/distributor and retailer will need to submit a request for approval, on a form provided by the department that explains how the alcoholic beverages will be delivered to the retailer's licensed premises.

COMMENT 7: Messrs. Graves, Clark, Driscoll, Petitt, and Walker commented that the proposed rule would create unintended consequences where distributors would be forced to discontinue service to their customers or the hard-to-reach bars would go out of business because of the administrative burden and increased cost of purchasing, delivering, and resupplying the alcoholic beverage inventories to the premises.

Mr. Driscoll commented his belief that should the rulemaking be adopted as proposed, the interruption of delivery services to these licensees may put distributors in violation of their brewery contracts.

RESPONSE 7: The department's additional amendments to ARM 42.13.1202, as described in Responses 4 and 6, should address the concerns of the commenters. The department has further amended ARM 42.13.1202 to allow for alternative delivery arrangements if the entities involved request approval from the department and can demonstrate that adequate safeguards are in place to control the accessibility of the alcoholic beverages until they are ultimately delivered to the retailer's licensed premises.

COMMENT 8: Mr. Clark also provided an alternate proposal to the rulemaking, via his comments, which would involve the creation and department approval of a temporary storage location, which would constitute part of a single retail licensee's licensed premises, exclusively for the alternative and secure delivery of alcoholic beverages. The proposed temporary storage location would also have other restrictions and would not replace storage areas on a licensee's primary licensed premises.

RESPONSE 8: The department appreciates Mr. Clark offering a proposal for the department to consider. The department has further amended ARM 42.13.1202 to allow for alternative delivery arrangements if the entities involved request approval from the department and can demonstrate that adequate safeguards are in place to control the accessibility of the alcoholic beverages until they are ultimately delivered to the retailer's licensed premises.

COMMENT 9: Ms. Blazer provided background commentary regarding four proposals discussed by the MBWDA board of directors and forwarded to the department that constituted preliminary industry input. Ms. Blazer also commented that the MBWDA did not sufficiently discuss the amendments in proposed (2) with retail licensees.

Ms. Blazer also proposed alternatives to the rulemaking that reflect other options contemplated and supported by the MBWDA:

1. Similar to Comment 3, the department should exercise prosecutorial discretion and not prosecute distributors for failure to deliver to the actual licensed premises (where difficult, dangerous, or impractical) until the legislature has had the opportunity to be informed and act in the 2021 legislative session. Ms. Blazer opines that there is authority for prosecutorial discretion and provided information of an occurrence where the federal government exercised discretion in the deferral of penalties against wholesale distributors for past unreported ownership changes.

2. Use the administrative rule process, not to contravene 16-3-219, MCA, but to consider transitional rulemaking that would define "licensed premises" to permit alternate delivery methods until the 2021 Montana Legislature is able to pass legislation to provide for delivery restrictions exceptions. Ms. Blazer provided draft text amendments to ARM 42.13.111 and 42.13.1202 in support of this concept.

3. The department notifies and requires all hard-to-reach retailers to submit new floor plans to include the storage areas where deliveries are currently being made. This would expand the licensed premises, making current deliveries legal.

RESPONSE 9: The department appreciates Ms. Blazer offering proposals for the department to consider. While rulemaking has progressed, the department has exercised its discretion to defer administrative action until a solution could be provided in rule. The department has further amended ARM 42.13.1202 to provide beer wholesalers, table wine distributors, and retailers more flexibility in delivering to premises with unique physical locations.

COMMENT 10: Messrs. Riso and Petitt also commented their disagreement with the department's small business impact disclosure in #9 of the proposal notice. Mr. Riso believes if the proposed amendments were adopted, there will be significant impact to his small business.

RESPONSE 10: The department appreciates Messrs. Riso and Petitt's comments regarding the impact of the proposed rules on their business. The department's original proposal allowed hard-to-reach retailers the ability to continue to get deliveries from wholesalers and distributors which justified the small business impact statement. However, as the commenters presented at the hearing, that original proposal still created some unexpected or unavoidable burdens on the hard-to-reach retailers. The department has further amended ARM 42.13.1202 to better account for these unavoidable burdens.

/s/ Todd Olson
Todd Olson
Rule Reviewer

/s/ Gene Walborn
Gene Walborn
Director of Revenue

Certified to the Secretary of State January 7, 2020.

BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the amendment of) NOTICE OF AMENDMENT
ARM 42.20.683 pertaining to)
specialty and unique crops; additional)
requirements for agricultural land)
classification)

TO: All Concerned Persons

1. On November 8, 2019, the Department of Revenue published MAR Notice No. 42-1011 pertaining to the public hearing on the proposed amendment of the above-stated rule at page 2006 of the 2019 Montana Administrative Register, Issue Number 21.

2. On December 5, 2019, a public hearing was held to consider the proposed amendment. No proponents or opponents were present and no proponent or opponent oral testimony was received. The department received written comments requesting an additional change to the rule from an interested person.

3. The department has amended ARM 42.20.683 as proposed.

4. The department has thoroughly considered the comments received. A summary of the comments received, and the department's responses are as follows:

COMMENT 1: The sole commenter to the rulemaking requested a change to ARM 42.20.683(2)(c) to remove the words "marketing of" and "results," as well as changing the cited authority at the end of the subsection from ARM 42.20.683 to 15-7-202, MCA. The commenter believes the proposed additional amendments are necessary to eliminate unnecessary, inconsistent, and potentially confusing language with 15-7-202, MCA, as amended by Senate Bill 69 (2019), as it relates to the gross income requirement for agricultural parcels of less than 20 acres. Further, the commenter offers that a landowner does not market gross income which is what the current rule text implies.

The commenter also states that (2)(c) is not consistent with tax appeal board precedent which determined the department could not impose an acreage requirement in rule where statute did not contain such a requirement.

The commenter contends that the provisions of 15-7-202(1)(b), MCA, apply only to parcels of 20 to 160 acres and not to parcels of less than 20 acres, which are instead subject to the different provisions of 15-7-202(2), MCA.

RESPONSE 1: The department thanks the commenter for his comments. The department agrees that the provisions of 15-7-202(1)(b), MCA, apply to contiguous parcels of land 20 acres or more but less than 160 acres; however, the department's proposed rule amendment is not inconsistent with the statutory requirements for classification as agricultural. The department's proposed rule

amendments in (2) summarize the statutory requirements for agricultural classification for both parcels of land 20 acres or more but less than 160 acres and parcels of land totaling less than 20 acres. Section 15-7-202(1)(b)(i)(A) and (2)(a), MCA similarly state that " . . . [t]he owner. . . . markets not less than \$1,500 in annual gross income from the raising of agricultural products produced by the land." The department will leave in references to 'marketing' because this is consistent with the language in statute.

The department also disagrees with the commenter that the rule amendments run contrary to previous case decisions made by the Montana Tax Appeal Board since the department is not instituting an acreage requirement by rule. Although, the department acknowledges those case decisions were the basis for prior department rulemaking to remove such requirements from its rules.

The department also believes that it correctly cites to ARM 42.20.620 in the amendments to (2)(c), which is necessary to cross-reference the rule that provides the acceptable proof of gross income requirements because those standards are not found in 15-7-202, MCA.

Based on the foregoing, the department declines to make further amendment to ARM 42.20.683 and adopts the rule amendments as proposed.

/s/ Todd Olson

Todd Olson
Rule Reviewer

/s/ Gene Walborn

Gene Walborn
Director of Revenue

Certified to the Secretary of State January 7, 2020.

NOTICE OF FUNCTION OF ADMINISTRATIVE RULE REVIEW COMMITTEE

Interim Committees and the Environmental Quality Council

Administrative rule review is a function of interim committees and the Environmental Quality Council (EQC). These interim committees and the EQC have administrative rule review, program evaluation, and monitoring functions for the following executive branch agencies and the entities attached to agencies for administrative purposes.

Economic Affairs Interim Committee:

- Department of Agriculture;
- Department of Commerce;
- Department of Labor and Industry;
- Department of Livestock;
- Office of the State Auditor and Insurance Commissioner; and
- Office of Economic Development.

Education and Local Government Interim Committee:

- State Board of Education;
- Board of Public Education;
- Board of Regents of Higher Education; and
- Office of Public Instruction.

Children, Families, Health, and Human Services Interim Committee:

- Department of Public Health and Human Services.

Law and Justice Interim Committee:

- Department of Corrections; and
- Department of Justice.

Energy and Telecommunications Interim Committee:

- Department of Public Service Regulation.

Revenue and Transportation Interim Committee:

- Department of Revenue; and
- Department of Transportation.

State Administration and Veterans' Affairs Interim Committee:

- Department of Administration;
- Department of Military Affairs; and
- Office of the Secretary of State.

Environmental Quality Council:

- Department of Environmental Quality;
- Department of Fish, Wildlife and Parks; and
- Department of Natural Resources and Conservation.

Water Policy Interim Committee (where the primary concern is the quality or quantity of water):

- Department of Environmental Quality;
- Department of Fish, Wildlife and Parks; and
- Department of Natural Resources and Conservation.

These interim committees and the EQC have the authority to make recommendations to an agency regarding the adoption, amendment, or repeal of a rule or to request that the agency prepare a statement of the estimated economic impact of a proposal. They also may poll the members of the Legislature to determine if a proposed rule is consistent with the intent of the Legislature or, during a legislative session, introduce a bill repealing a rule, or directing an agency to adopt or amend a rule, or a Joint Resolution recommending that an agency adopt, amend, or repeal a rule.

The interim committees and the EQC welcome comments and invite members of the public to appear before them or to send written statements in order to bring to their attention any difficulties with the existing or proposed rules. The mailing address is P.O. Box 201706, Helena, MT 59620-1706.

HOW TO USE THE ADMINISTRATIVE RULES OF MONTANA AND THE MONTANA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER

Definitions:

Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) is a looseleaf compilation by department of all rules of state departments and attached boards presently in effect, except rules adopted up to three months previously.

Montana Administrative Register (MAR or Register) is an online publication, issued twice-monthly, containing notices of rules proposed by agencies, notices of rules adopted by agencies, and interpretations of statutes and rules by the Attorney General (Attorney General's Opinions) and agencies (Declaratory Rulings) issued since publication of the preceding Register.

Use of the Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM):

Known
Subject

1. Consult ARM Topical Index.
Update the rule by checking recent rulemaking and the table of contents in the last Montana Administrative Register issued.

Statute

2. Go to cross reference table at end of each number and title which lists MCA section numbers and department corresponding ARM rule numbers.

RECENT RULEMAKING BY AGENCY

The Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) is a compilation of existing permanent rules of those executive agencies that have been designated by the Montana Administrative Procedure Act for inclusion in the ARM. The ARM is updated through September 30, 2019. This table includes notices in which those rules adopted during the period July 26, 2019, through December 27, 2019, occurred and any proposed rule action that was pending during the past 6-month period. (A notice of adoption must be published within six months of the published notice of the proposed rule.) This table does not include the contents of this issue of the Montana Administrative Register (MAR or Register).

To be current on proposed and adopted rulemaking, it is necessary to check the ARM updated through September 30, 2019, this table, and the table of contents of this issue of the Register.

This table indicates the department name, title number, notice numbers in ascending order, the subject matter of the notice, and the page number(s) at which the notice is published in the 2019 Montana Administrative Registers.

To aid the user, this table includes rulemaking actions of such entities as boards and commissions listed separately under their appropriate title number.

ADMINISTRATION, Department of, Title 2

2-4-581	Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards - Report Filing Fees - Filing Penalties - Waivers and Extensions of Penalties - Audit and Audit Reporting Standards - Roster of Independent Auditors - Resolution and Corrections of Audit Findings - Financial Reviews - Incorporation by Reference of Various Standards, Accounting Policies, and Federal Laws and Regulations - Audit Contracts, p. 761, 987, 2217
2-13-585	Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) Certification and Funding, p. 558, 903, 1368
2-13-592	Applicant Priority and Criteria for Awarding 9-1-1 Grants, p. 1759, 2095
2-13-593	Applicant Priority and Criteria for Awarding 9-1-1 Grants, p. 2075
2-21-584	Voluntary Employees' Beneficiary Association (VEBA), p. 1195, 2011
2-59-586	Government Sponsored Enterprises - Designated Manager Supervisory Requirements - False, Deceptive, or Misleading Advertising - Internet or Electronic Advertising, p. 1917, 2338
2-59-587	Semiannual Assessment for Banks, p. 1682, 2228
2-59-590	Renewal Fees for Mortgage Brokers, Lenders, Servicers, and Originators, p. 1545, 2017

(Public Employees' Retirement Board)

2-43-591 Operation of the Retirement Systems and Plans Administered by the Montana Public Employees' Retirement Board - Allocation of Additional Employer Contributions on Behalf of Montana University System Employees in the Optional Retirement Program, p. 2274

(State Lottery and Sports Wagering Commission)

2-63-580 Sports Wagering Accounts - Self-Exclusion - Responsible Gaming - Age Verification - General Provisions - Place of Sale - Licensing - Fees - Electronic Fund Transfers - Accounting - Retailer Commission - Notices - Investigative Cooperation - Prizes - Redemptions to Implement Sports Wagering - Forms of Payment, p. 1685, 2229

AGRICULTURE, Department of, Title 4

4-19-258 Hemp Processing and Associated Fees, p. 698, 1369
4-19-259 Certified Natural Beef Cattle Marketing Program, p. 702, 1047
4-19-260 Apiary Fees, p. 782, 1166
4-19-261 Pesticide Registrations - Worker Protection Standards - Containers and Disposal Program, p. 905, 1523
4-19-262 Commodity Dealer Licenses, p. 1104
4-19-263 Pesticide Records and Registrations - Use of 1080 Livestock Protection Collars - M-44 Cyanide Capsules and Devices, p. 1109, 1629

STATE AUDITOR, Office of, Title 6

(Commissioner of Securities and Insurance)

6-256 Annual Audited Reports - Establishing Accounting Practices and Procedures to Be Used in Annual Statements - Internal Audit Function Requirements, p. 1216, 1740
6-258 Notice of Protection Provided by the Montana Life and Health Insurance Guaranty Association, p. 1224, 1741

(Classification Review Committee)

6-260 Establishment, Deletion, or Revision of Classifications for Various Industries for Supplementing the NCCI Basic Manual for Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability, p. 1548, 2339

COMMERCE, Department of, Title 8

8-94-171 Administration of the 2021 Biennium Federal Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program—Planning Grants, p. 1120, 1630
8-94-172 Deadline for the Second Cycle for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)—Planning Grants, p. 1705, 2096
8-94-175 Administration of the Montana Historic Preservation Grant (MHPG) Program, p. 1926, 2340

- 8-94-176 Administration of the 2021 and 2023 Biennia Treasure State Endowment Program, p. 2182
- 8-94-177 Treasure State Endowment Program (TSEP), p. 2283
- 8-99-167 Certified Regional Development Corporation Program, p. 785, 1168
- 8-99-168 Implementation of the Big Sky Economic Development Trust Program, p. 788, 1169
- 8-100-169 Montana Board of Research and Commercialization Technology, p. 915, 1370
- 8-111-170 Administration of the Coal Trust Multifamily Homes (CTMH) Program, p. 992, 1631
- 8-111-173 Housing Credit Allocation Procedure, p. 1762, 2239
- 8-119-174 Montana Economic Development Industry Advancement Act (MEDIA), p. 1929

EDUCATION, Title 10

(Office of Public Instruction)

- 10-1-133 Soliciting Applications for Membership on a Negotiated Rulemaking Committee to Develop and Amend Rules Related to K-12 Content Standards for Computer Science, Library Media, and Technology, p. 1707
- 10-1-134 Soliciting Applications for Membership on a Negotiated Rulemaking Committee to Develop and Amend Rules Related to K-12 Content Standards for Career and Vocational/Technical Education, p. 1710
- 10-1-135 Soliciting Applications for Membership on a Negotiated Rulemaking Committee to Develop and Amend Rules Related to K-12 Content Standards for Social Studies, p. 1713
- 10-16-132 Special Education, p. 165, 790, 1371

(Board of Public Education)

- 10-54-288 Deadlines for Transformational Learning Aid, p. 793, 1048
- 10-54-289 Deadlines for Applications and Annual Reports, p. 1716, 2097
- 10-54-290 Deadlines for Applications and Annual Reports, p. 2079
- 10-55-286 Hazard and Emergency Plans, p. 564, 1049
- 10-55-289 Accreditation Process, p. 997, 1742
- 10-56-285 Student Assessment, p. 567, 1050
- 10-57-287 Educator Licensure, p. 573, 1051

FISH, WILDLIFE AND PARKS, Department of, Title 12

- 12-522 Closing Pictograph Cave State Park in Yellowstone County, p. 1858
- 12-523 Pilot Program for Aquatic Invasive Species in the Flathead Basin, p. 2286
- 12-524 Removing Canyon Ferry Reservoir From the List of Identified Bodies of Water Confirmed or Suspected for Aquatic Invasive Mussels, p. 2288

(Fish and Wildlife Commission)

- 12-515 Two-Way Electronic Communication While Hunting, p. 919, 2018
- 12-516 Tagging Carcasses of Game Animals, p. 921, 2019
- 12-517 Animal Kill Site Verification, p. 923, 2020
- 12-521 List of Water Bodies With Specific Regulations Found in
Administrative Rule, p. 925, 1379

GOVERNOR, Office of, Title 14

- 14-6 Energy Supply Emergency Rules, p. 1122

ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY, Department of, Title 17

- 17-406 Technologically Enhanced Naturally Occurring Radioactive Material
(TENORM) Waste, p. 1239
- 17-407 Junk Vehicles, p. 1439, 2098
- 17-408 Nutrient Standards Variances, p. 1443, 2100

(Board of Environmental Review)

- 17-405 Subdivision and Public Water and Wastewater Review Fees -
Certification Under 76-4-127, MCA, p. 1228

TRANSPORTATION, Department of, Title 18

- 18-174 Motor Fuels Tax Electronic Refunds, p. 927, 1380
- 18-176 Motor Carrier Services Maximum Allowable Weight - Wintertime and
Durational Permits, p. 1002, 1632, 2348
- 18-177 Electronic Utility Permitting for Right-Of-Way Occupancy, p. 1145,
2021
- 18-179 Aeronautics Division Aircraft Registration, p. 2184

(Board of Aeronautics)

- 18-175 Loan and Grant Program - Pavement Preservation Grants, p. 930,
1525

CORRECTIONS, Department of, Title 20

- 20-4-65 Rental Vouchers for Re-Entering Offenders, p. 2290

JUSTICE, Department of, Title 23

- 23-16-258 Antique Gambling Devices - Gambling Operator License Applications
and Processing - Escrowed Funds - Illegal Devices - VGM Permit
Eligibility - Sports Pool Games and Sports Tabs - Shake-A-Day
Games - VGM Specifications and Restrictions, p. 1448, 1860

(POST Council)

23-13-257 Certification of Public Safety Officers, p. 1940

LABOR AND INDUSTRY, Department of, Title 24

Boards under the Business Standards Division are listed in alphabetical order by chapter following the department notices.

- 24-17-350 Prevailing Wage Rates for Public Works Projects, p. 1766, 2349
- 24-21-346 Registered Apprenticeship, p. 579, 934, 1381
- 24-29-347 Certification of Workers' Compensation Claims Examiners, p. 1550, 2119
- 24-29-348 Drug Formulary in the Utilization and Treatment Guidelines for Workers' Compensation and Occupational Disease, p. 1719, 1953, 2363
- 24-29-352 Description of a Prosthesis for the Purpose of Reopening Medical Benefits in Workers' Compensation Claims, p. 2295
- 24-35-349 Registration of Home Inspectors, p. 1721, 2121
- 24-181-7 Private Alternative Adolescent Residential or Outdoor Programs Obsolete Rules, p. 2192
- 24-301-347 Definitions - Incorporation by Reference of International Building Code - Calculation of Fees - Modifications to the International Building Code Applicable to the Department's Code Enforcement Program and to Local Government Code Enforcement Programs - Incorporation by Reference of International Residential Code - Incorporation by Reference of International Existing Building Code - Incorporation by Reference of International Mechanical Code - Incorporation by Reference of International Fuel Gas Code - Incorporation by Reference of International Swimming Pool and Spa Code - Incorporation by Reference of International Wildland-Urban Interface Code - Extent of Local Programs - Funding of Code Enforcement Program - Incorporation by Reference of Independent Accountant's Reporting Format for Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures During Audits of Certified City, County, or Town Building Code Enforcement Programs - Incorporation by Reference of Uniform Plumbing Code - Minimum Required Plumbing Fixtures - Incorporation by Reference of National Electrical Code - Enforcement, Generally - Site Accessibility, p. 1273, 2242

(Board of Personnel Appeals)

- 24-26-351 New Unit Determinations - Elections, p. 1948, 2352

(Board of Alternative Health Care)

- 24-111-27 Definitions - Certification for Specialty Practice of Naturopathic Childbirth Attendance - Licensure of Out-of-State Applicants - Midwives Continuing Education Requirements - Minimum Education and Experience Requirements for Midwife and Midwife Apprentice Applicants After January 1, 2020 - Direct-Entry Midwife Apprenticeship

Requirements for Midwife Apprentice Applicants After January 1, 2020
- Renewals, p. 1560, 2364

(Board of Architects and Landscape Architects)

24-114-37 Architect Examination - Architect Licensure by Examination - Education and Experience Required for Landscape Architect Licensure - Architect Continuing Education Requirements - Unprofessional Conduct, p. 275, 1052

(Board of Dentistry)

24-138-76 Definitions - Fees - Mandatory Certification - Dental Auxiliary Functions - Dental Hygienist Limited Prescriptive Authority - Dentist License by Examination - Dental Hygienists License by Examination - Dentist License by Credentials - Dental Hygienist by Credentials - Dentist Specialist by Credentials - Dental Hygiene Local Anesthetic Certification - Dental Hygiene Limited Access Permit - Denturist License Requirements - Denturist Internship - Converting Inactive to Active Status - Reactivation of Expired License - Reporting Procedures - Dentist and Dental Hygienist Unprofessional Conduct - Denturist Unprofessional Conduct - Anesthesia Standards and Continuing Education - Approved Clinical Exam Criteria for Dentists and Dental Hygienists - Denturist Scope of Practice—Dentures Over Implants - Denturist Examination, p. 1461, 2366

(Board of Funeral Service)

24-147-40 Definitions - Fee Schedule - Name Change, Closure, Transfer, or Change of Ownership—Mortuary, Branch Establishment, Crematory, or Cemetery - Mortician Licenses - Crematory Records - Cremation Authorizations - Integrity of Identification of Human Remains - Cremation Procedures - Crematory Prohibitions - Requirements for Sale of At-Need, Preneed, and Prepaid Funeral Arrangements - Continuing Education Requirements—Morticians - Unprofessional Conduct - Preneed Arrangements—Notification of Closure or Change of Ownership—Mortuary, Branch Establishment, or Crematory, p. 1769

(Board of Hearing Aid Dispensers)

24-150-41 Fees - Record Retention - Fee Abatement - Traineeship Requirements and Standards - Minimum Testing - Transactional Document Requirements—Form and Content - Continuing Education Requirements - Unprofessional Conduct - Standards for Approval, p. 582, 1862

(Board of Nursing)

24-159-87 Definitions - Nonroutine Applications - Educational Facilities for Programs - Program Annual Report - Program Faculty - Curriculum Goals and General Requirements for Programs - Renewals -

- Alternative Monitoring Track - Biennial Continuing Education Requirements - Auditing of Contact Hours, p. 706, 1055
24-159-88 Use of Clinical Resource Licensed Practical Nurses, p. 1270, 2370

(Board of Occupational Therapy Practice)

- 24-165-24 Definitions - Fees - Military Training or Experience - Examinations - Supervision - Deep Modality Endorsement - Recognized Education Programs - Standards of Practice - Approved Modality Instruction - Approved Training - Endorsement to Apply Topical Medications - Use of Topical Medications - Protocols for Use of Topical Medications - Debriding Agents Protocols - Anesthetic Agents Protocols - Nonsteroidal Anti-Inflammatory Agents Protocols - Antispasmodic Agents Protocols - Adrenocortico-Steroid Agent Protocols - Protocol for Use of an Approved Medication as a Neuropathic Pain Agent - Temporary Practice Permit - Inactive Status - Continuing Education - Continuing Education–Exemption - Unprofessional Conduct - Bactericidal Agents Protocols - Applications for Licensure - Pass-Fail Criteria - Supervision–Methods - Documentation of Instruction and Training - Approval to Use Sound and Electrical Physical Agent Modalities Endorsement - Documenting Education and Competence to Perform Sound and Electrical Physical Agent Modalities–Out-of-State Practitioners, p. 509, 1743

(Board of Pharmacy)

- 24-174-71 Fee Schedule - Military Training or Experience - Collaborative Practice Agreement Requirements - Internship Requirements - Preceptor Requirements - Required Forms and Reports - Registration Requirements - Use of Pharmacy Technician - Ratio of Pharmacy Technicians to Supervising Pharmacists - Transfer of Prescriptions - Registered Pharmacist Continuing Education–Requirements - Qualifications of Pharmacy Technician - Pharmacies–Annual Renewal - Pharmacy Technician–Renewal - Renewals - Registered Pharmacist Continuing Education–Noncompliance, p. 935, 1633
24-174-72 Administration of Vaccines by Pharmacists - Prescription Drug Registry Fee, p. 1731, 2240
24-174-73 Positive Identification for Controlled Substance Prescriptions, p. 1954

(Board of Psychologists)

- 24-189-40 Definitions - Required Supervised Experience - Continuing Education Implementation - Requirements for Licensees Providing Telehealth Services - Licensees From Other States or Canadian Jurisdictions, p. 1567

(Board of Public Accountants)

- 24-201-52 Alternatives and Exemptions - Verification - Exercise of Practice Privilege in Other Jurisdictions - Enforcement Against License Holders and Practice Privilege Holders, p. 1151, 1863

(Board of Real Estate Appraisers)

24-207-43 Ad Valorem Tax Appraisal Experience, p. 420, 1382

(Board of Realty Regulation)

24-210-45 Fee Schedule - Applications for Examination and License in General—Broker and Salesperson - New Licensee Mandatory Continuing Education—Salespersons - Continuing Real Estate Education - Continuing Property Management Education - Waiver of Experience Requirement for Broker Licensing Prohibited - Board Approval of Courses, Providers, and Instructors, p. 588, 1056

(Board of Respiratory Care Practitioners)

24-213-22 Continuing Education Requirements - Acceptable Continuing Education - Waiver of Continuing Education Requirement - Traditional Education by Nonsponsored Organizations - Teaching - Papers, Publications, Journals, Exhibits, Videos, Independent Study, and College Course Work, p. 1007, 2241

(Board of Behavioral Health)

24-219-34 Application and Licensing Rules for Licensed Clinical Social Workers (LCSW), Licensed Clinical Professional Counselors (LCPC), Licensed Marriage and Family Therapists (LMFT), Licensed Addiction Counselors (LAC), and Certified Behavioral Health Peer Support Specialists (CBHPSS), p. 1787, 2371

LIVESTOCK, Department of, Title 32

32-18-292 Diagnostic Laboratory Fees, p. 1573, 2123

32-19-297 Subject Diseases or Conditions - Importation of Restricted or Prohibited Alternative Livestock, p. 714, 947, 1864

32-19-298 Identification - Definitions - Identification of Alternative Livestock - Waivers to Identification - Inspection of Alternative Livestock - Change of Ownership Testing Requirements for Alternative Livestock - Requirements for Alternative Livestock Gametes (Ova and Semen) and Embryos - Importation of Alternative Livestock - Quarantine Facility - Requirements for Mandatory Surveillance of Montana Alternative Livestock Farm Cervidae for Chronic Wasting Disease - Alternative Livestock Monitored Herd Status for Chronic Wasting Disease - Import Requirements for Cervids - Management of Alternative Livestock Cervid Herds Identified as CWD Trace Herds - Management of CWD Positive Alternative Livestock Cervid Herds - Management of Alternative Livestock Cervid Herds With at Least One Animal Diagnosed With CWD and With Low Probability of CWD Transmission, p. 1584, 2380

- 32-19-299 Requirements for Importation - Importation of Diseased Animals - Official Health Certificate Documents for Importation - Permits - Special Requirements for Goats, p. 1597, 2125
- 32-19-301 Model Procedural Rules, p. 2082
- 32-19-303 Definitions - Applications to Be in Writing - Inspection of Plans and Facilities Prior to Issuance of License - Food Safety and Inspection Service (Meat, Poultry), p. 2298
- 32-19-304 Importation of Restricted or Prohibited Alternative Livestock - Import Requirements for Cervids, p. 2307

(Board of Milk Control)

- 32-19-305 Milk Control Assessments, p. 2311

NATURAL RESOURCES AND CONSERVATION, Department of, Title 36

- 36-22-204 Water Rights - Water Reservations, p. 1295, 1865

(Board of Oil and Gas Conservation)

- 36-22-201 Privilege and License Tax, p. 1601

PUBLIC HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, Department of, Title 37

- 37-830 Foster Care Licensing Requirements, p. 1636
- 37-847 Wholesale Foods and Food Standards, p. 598, 2126
- 37-865 Updating Requirements to Limit Opioid Supply for Members Without Cancer Diagnosis, p. 1012, 1637
- 37-873 Healthy Learning Environments in Montana Public Schools, p. 795, 1016
- 37-877 Rural Health Clinics and Federally Qualified Health Centers, p. 1017, 1603, 1866
- 37-878 Medicaid Rates, Services, and Benefit Changes, p. 618, 964, 1061
- 37-880 Montana Trauma System Plan 2019, p. 822, 1170
- 37-885 Youth Care Facilities, p. 1034, 1526
- 37-886 Migrating Billing to Medicaid Management Information System (MMIS), p. 723, 1171
- 37-887 Communicable Disease Control, p. 1299, 1745
- 37-888 Medicaid Rates, Services, and Benefit Changes, p. 1156, 1640
- 37-889 Medical Marijuana Testing Laboratories, p. 1480, 1868
- 37-890 Private Alternative Adolescent Residential Programs or Outdoor Programs (PAARP), p. 1309, 1606, 2029
- 37-893 Inpatient and Outpatient Hospital Reimbursement Adjustors, p. 1957, 2382
- 37-895 Medical Marijuana Program, p. 1364
- 37-896 Vital Records, p. 1607, 2057
- 37-897 Low Income Energy Assistance Program (LIEAP), p. 1964, 2383
- 37-898 Assisted Living and Nursing Facility Reimbursement, p. 1735, 1835, 2252

- 37-899 Updating Medicaid Fee Schedules With Medicare Rates - Procedure Codes - Updating Effective Dates, p. 1973, 2314
- 37-900 Hospice Rate Increase, p. 2200
- 37-901 Prohibiting the Sale of Flavored Vapor Products to Reduce Youth Risk of Vaping-Associated Lung Injury or Death, p. 1879
- 37-903 Big Sky Rx Premium Change, p. 2204
- 37-905 Member Copayment, p. 2084
- 37-906 Update of the Healthcare Effectiveness Data and Information Set (HEDIS), p. 2315

PUBLIC SERVICE REGULATION, Department of, Title 38

- 38-2-243 Discovery and Pre-Filed Testimony Procedures, p. 1612
- 38-5-244 Pipeline Safety, p. 2089

REVENUE, Department of, Title 42

- 42-1000 Industry Trade Shows - Catering Endorsements - Catered Events, p. 727, 1173
- 42-1001 New Form MW-4—Montana Employee's Withholding Allowance and Exemption Certificate - Wage Withholding Exemptions - Tax Treatment of Interest on Certain Government Obligations, p. 1978, 2384
- 42-1002 Implementing Legislative Changes to Table Wine, Hard Cider, and Sacramental Wine Tax Reporting Requirements and Microdistillery Production Changes - Updating Labeling and Packaging Requirements, p. 1497, 2058
- 42-1003 Implementation of a Point-Based Penalty System - Revising Procedures Relating to Revocation, Lapse, or Suspension of Alcoholic Beverage Licenses, p. 1505, 1837, 2141
- 42-1004 Livestock Reporting Per Capita Fee Payment and Refund Process, p. 1619, 2059
- 42-1005 Access Control Systems (ACS), p. 1622, 2257
- 42-1006 Statutory Deadlines for Request for Informal Classification and Appraisal Reviews, p. 2092
- 42-1007 Trended Depreciation Schedules for Valuing Personal Property, p. 1838, 2320
- 42-1008 Beer Wholesaler and Table Wine Distributor Limited Delivery Exceptions, p. 1855
- 42-1009 Competitive Bidding Processes for Retail All-Alcoholic Beverage Licenses, p. 1994, 2385
- 42-1010 Property Tax Assistance Program (PTAP) - Montana Disabled Veteran (MDV) Property Tax Assistance Program, p. 2000, 2387
- 42-1011 Specialty and Unique Crops - Additional Requirements for Agricultural Land Classification, p. 2006
- 42-1012 Agricultural Land Valuation, p. 2207
- 42-1013 Mobile Home Exemption Ownership Determination, p. 2214

- 42-1014 Resort Areas, Determinations, and Licenses, p. 2322
- 42-1015 Net Operating Loss Carryback and Water's-Edge Rules Revisions, p. 2328
- 42-1016 Limited All-Beverages Licenses for Continuing Care Retirement Communities, p. 2333

SECRETARY OF STATE, Office of, Title 44

- 44-2-232 Notaries Public, p. 948, 1530
- 44-2-233 Filing UCC Documents, p. 1040, 1532
- 44-2-234 Performance Standards for Devices That Provide Accessible Voting Technology for Electors With Hearing, Vision, Speech, or Ambulatory Impairments, p. 1045, 1517, 1884
- 44-2-236 Records and Information Management Fees, p. 1519, 1646
- 44-2-237 Scheduled Dates for the 2020 Montana Administrative Register, p. 1626, 2060

(Commissioner of Political Practices)

- 44-2-235 Contribution Limits, p. 1163, 1645

MONTANA ADMINISTRATIVE
REGISTER

2020 ISSUE NO.1
JANUARY 17, 2020
PAGES 1-122

COREY STAPLETON
SECRETARY OF STATE

P.O. BOX 202801
HELENA, MONTANA 59620